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Form No. 5—7-21-77—20M

INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION OF VIRGINIA
P. O. Box 1794
- Richmond, Virginia 23214

APPLICATION FOR HEARING

File No ;
Employee __EVELYN ADAMS SMITH, Route 1, Box 276, Bassett, VA 24055
smployer ?mldcfeg; Mills, Inc., Fleldale, Virginia Adldfié,ag
Date of Accident ___ N/A , 19 Averc.ge Weékly Wage $1 7000
Ylace Where Accident Occurred Fieldale, Heary County __Virginia |
(City or County) (State
Nature of Injury or Occupational Disease: . Byssinogis :
Jate Disability Began: —September—4- , 1979
Jate of Return to Work: , 19 — ;nd wage then earned $

The applicant requests a hecrin§ before the Industrial Commission of Virginio on the grounds of:

(1) Accidental Injury ... .. .. . e e D) "

(2) ‘Occupotio‘nal Disease. ........0......... U e : (%

(3) Death on. ,19 , due to Accidental Injury. ........ e Y
Occupational Disease. ............ ................... ()

(4) Change in Condition. ........ ... ()

If application is based on a change in condition, state nature of change:




Compensation was last paid at‘the rate of & » per week through the ______ day of

~
, 19
OPY OF APPLICATION : Signature of Applicant:
WUSTBESENTTO |  []ves
JTHER PARTY (SO IN- ddress: o ..
DICATE BY A CHECK) Address: Route—1;Box—276
Bassett, VA 24055
Signed this 19thyay of __February 19.80

Subpoenas for: witnesses will be issued by the Industrial Commission on request or may be obtained at the
Clerk's Office of the City or County where the hearing will be held (§65.1-21, Code of Va.). Medical reports are

acceptable in lieu of physicians’ personal appearanccs.

Edwin A. Gendron, Jr. \
GENDRON, KIRBY & SMITH

P.0. Box 351

Martiasville,VA 24112
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a : , SHELBY MEDICAL ASSOCIATES, P.

803 SCHENCK STREET )
SHELBY, NORTH CAROLINA 28150

C. M. MCMURRAY, M.D,
T. REGINALD HARRIS, M.D,

INTEANAL MEZDICINE

- PULMONARY DISEASE ) JOEL F. SPHAGINS, 14.D.
1o . GASTHOENTEROLOGY

[ 7 CMHARLES P, LANGLEY, I}, M.D.

& LEY. I,

Re . September 17, 1979 —_

’ o ' : ) C. D. HUSKINS
' BUSINESS MANAGER .-

.1
.|

> =
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Dale Gullett, M.D. a
Medical Department

Stadium Drive -

Eden, Morth Carolina 27288

J e

éﬁ.-‘ RIS U S S
W owd BY 8 & W e s d

"RE: Evelyn Smith
Dear Dr. Gullett:

4y veport on the above individual ié-enc1osed. She has significant
obstructive lung disease which is most 1ikely both byssinosis and
emphysema. She wants.to continue working and is most anxious to - do ~ .
SO. : -

She should not work in any area of significant cotton dust exposure.
I doubt she would tolerate a respirator which would remove all of the
significant dust from:her inspired air. Her best answer would be .
transfer to an area without cotton dust exposure if such is possible.
Her pulmonary function studies are so poor that she might well qualify - -
7 for retirement under Social Security, it this is desired. She does -
s appear to be well motivated and wants to and needs to continue work.
Her health is such that it seems 1ikely that she will require early
retirement. In the mean time, maximum efforts to protect her from
further cotton dust expesure are to be encouraged.

-

. , - :‘ “Very truly yours,

T. Reginal Harris, M.D.




MEDICAL REPORT

! , Evelyn Smith
: Route T, Box 276
Bassctt, Virginia 24055

3
Date of Exam: (8-29-79 -

Referred by:

- Dr. Dale Gullett
Corporate Medical Director
Medical Department
Stadium Drive
Eden, North Carolina 27288

T. Reginald Harris, M.D.
. 808 Schenck Street
Shelby, North Carolina 28150




MEDICAL REPORT

AT e e laa
ooy omita
Route

N cop-
D{,x.“,\.()ebhg

This patient is referred by Fieldcrest Mil]s.Incokporated for pulmonary evaluation. The
patient is referred by Dr. Dale Gullett, Corporate Medical Director, Hedical Department,
Stadium Drive, Eden, Morth Carolina ~27288. : :

h-d

Tiis is a 61 year old wnite female born 6-7-28 in Henry County, Virginia. She was
married for 32 years but has been a widow since Jduly 1979. Of her two children,
one 12 year old remains at homa. The patient has a 10th grade education and is
a textile worker. She has smoked cigarettes since age 18. She smoked 1-2 years

P ‘but stcpped fer 22 years and then restarted at about age 40 and smoked until five

& years ago as much as two packs per day. She has now stopped smoking and has not
smoked for 5 months. She does have a 20+ pack year history of cigarette smoking.

ne does not use alcohol. ' -

Occupational History:

o
®

<
L3

1) She worked about ona year from 1945 to 1946 as a clerk. _ ,
2) From 1946 until the present time, she has worked for Fieldcrest Mills in

-
!

rieigale, Vivginia.

Jeb Description: She works in the "yarn preparation” department which
includes spinning and spocling. The fiber if 100% cotton and toweis are
prepared in this plant. Her particular jeb is a quiller tender and she
runs Tillings for vieavers. In her particular piant, carding, spinning
- and yarn preparaticns departmenis are.all din on2 big rooms The carding
is at one end of the roum, spinning in the middle and her depariment is the
- opposite end of the room from the carding department. She seldom goes




Evelyn Smith
Page 2--Medfcal Report
Uate of Exa 8-29-79

L_n(.m\
-

éi,tcupational History (continued):

through the carding departmant unless she is walking through to go to somz2
cther area. She worked second shift for about 25 years but for the past
8 years has been ¢n the first shift and she works 5-6 days per v.eek.

-In describing her wiork area, she notes that the area is dusty and that the
- dust is much worse when the machines are "blown off". There has been less
dust for the past year or so because the machines are blown of7 onlj when
absolutely necessary. For the past year, there has been a piece of plastic
placed betuween carding and spinning in-an “effort to eliniinate Soma of_the.
dust _from.the card1ng area gett1n0 into the otker areas.  The plant 1s ¢1so

Cair. cond1t tonad. iy - , p———

. Tha eguipinent she operates is blown off once a day and usually. it takes about
30 minutes for this task. At this time, she makes an effort to take a break
and be away from the dust. She has tried to wear a mask in the past 6 months
but only wore it for a few hours. She could not tolerate. the mask well because
of a sensation of smothering. She just took off her mask because she feels
she.is unable to wear one. - .

-

Chief Comp]éint:

o

Present Iliness:

’

As Tar back as ]971, she remembers having some_chest tightness on Monday. Over the
" years, she has become more short of breath and tires easier now than in the past.
She can hardly make production now when formeriy she had no difficulty nak1ng
produciion. She notices more chest tightness. _on_Mondays now after being of7 on
the vaek-and  than in the nast, She also notices ed”"‘““i' sympLoms ov
shortness of breath on days other than Monday. ondays remain the worst day for
chest t1gqtness and fatiguability however. Some days are worse Lhen others
regardless of day of the week and she is not able to explain this. She does think
dust makes her worse and thus avoids being in the area when "blowing of7" is taking
place.

PN

|
|
Shortness of breath. , ' o
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ent [1Iness (continued):

Siie ¢an walk at a normal pace on the level without d1f1zc1.ty She believes she
‘could climb one flight of staivs without stopping but would be tired when she
reached the top. She does her housework at home but gets short of breath when
nopp1ng. sweeping or vacuuming. Generally, she tires easier at homz2 than she did
a vew years ago.

™.
AN
N,

When she was asked about her wviork, she indicates that her job is rea]]y rather
easy and is one of the easiest jobs .in the mill but she "gives out" just trying
to make production. She Tikes her job and needs and wants td continue work. e
In inquiring about other symptoms, she mentions that she rarely coughs and notes
no particular changes in cough at home or work. There is a rare wheeze when. she
has a chest cold. She has never had asthma. In the past, she had some pleurisy
in the winters but none for the past two winters. She sees her family physician
only when needed and sees a dermatologist, Dr. Judith Sheliaki in Martinsville,
Virginia for treatment of psoriasis. Her present medications are Vitamin C,
Valium and an ointment for her psoriasis and stasis ulcers.

5. 3t History:
K.

Hospitalized for ch11db1rth in 1955 and 1956. She had a breast lump removed in
1970. '

Family History:
vents and three s1b11ngs are 11v1ng There 1s no fam111a1 h1story of TB, cancer,
inoates, haari diseasz, lung disease or other Tamilial diseases.

Systemic Review:

.1" review veveals the following additional informaticn:  She has worn glasses
ve years. She had a slight decrease in her hearing according to tesis at the
but is not aware of this prroblem. She deas wear ear plugs at work and believes
: oz wall. There s swinz nasal stuffiness. She has dentures. She has bean
ervous and upset for the past Tive years and has been worried and depresszd about
her husband's health. HNervousness was somewhat accentuated when he died in July.

i

2 TEN,




Evelvn Smith
Page A--Hedig
I'it‘. ‘.t) r\ ’-\(

ﬁf’:‘:\.

The above infoy

nud1 jonal Clinical Infoimation:

rmation was obtained from the patient. _A_ respixatory_QUﬂsfionnaire'

at work dated 7-13-71 indicates that she_had difficulty with_ her chest sometimes

nday.

A quest tionnaire.
two hours.afier beginning. work. on. Monday. and lasts the rest of .

in.1975 findicated- thatwshoruneqb of breafh started
the_day. Screening

pulmonary function studies have bzen made at work and some cop1es vere forwarded.

These are reviewed and I am not certain of dates, technique, etc.
. suggest the preoence‘of obstruction to air flow.

-They do
Af_1 identify correctly. the

before and after sp1rom°try tracings, they suggest a reduction 1n‘FEVl;and FVC‘"‘

fo]}qy}ngﬂyorx.expocure _ v , o

Examination:

This is a somewhat thin white female who Ls cooperat1ve but uho does not appear
in robust health.

Vital Signs:

Head:
Eyes:

ENT:
Nack:
Heayt:
Breast:
Lungs:

a

Abdomen:

Pelvic:

Rectal:
"Extremities:

Blood pressure 90/60, pulse 68, resp1rat1ons 18, temperature 98 6,
vieight 105, height 65".

Normal size and shape without abnormalities.
Pupils equa] and react to light and accommodab1on.
conjunctiva pink, funduscopic normnal.
Normal mucous membranes, denturea.
Supple, no goiter. o
Normal sinus rhythm without murmurs. Cardiac examination is normal.
Two inch well healed scar of the right breast but no other abnormalities.
The thoracic contour appears normal. The breath sounds are of normal
cuality on quiet respiration. With forced expiration, there is
generalized wheezing. MNo dullness is present.

Sc1era£c1ear,

Flat, no masses or tenderness.

Good support, no abnormatities.

Good tone. :

There are stasis ulcers of the left ankle which measure 2 inches by

1 inch on the outer aspect and 1 inch by 1 inch.on the inner asnect.

Both ulcers are indurated and ulcerated -and contain a bloody discharga.

There is 1+ pitting edema around the left ankle. The left leg seems
somewhat cooler than the right but peripheral r1r"u1a+1on seems adequate.

There appears to be miid venous insu.;1c1encv of the left Teg

associated with stasis ulcers on the 1eft. The skin otherwise app
1ormal except for patches of pseriasis on bOLh elbows and the righ

knoe.

ars

aa
o

.
L
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Flectrecardingram:

Laboratory:

Pulmonary

Nowrmal sinus vrhycthm, normal electrocardiogram.

4

SMA-12 is normal with the following results: calcium 9.9, phosphorus 3.6,
glucose 85, BUM 14, Cholesterol 220, prote1n 6.9, albumin 4.2, bilirubin O 4,
aikaline pruspunuasc 65, LDH 205, SGOT 29. HQF““10b1n 14.5 grams, wiite count
8,200 with 5% eosinophils, 68% segs and 27% 1ymphocytes. ' :

Urinalysis clear yellow urine with a specific gkaVity of 1.019 and negative for
albumin, sugar, acetone, bile, blood or significant formed elements.

‘Chest x-ray:

X-rays vere not made bj me mb X-rays brouoht by the patient labeled F1e|d;res;
fledical, Ldon, fo.Lw Carolina, 7-25-79 were reviawed. The x-rays sug JC\, overall
hvpn“1w lation of the lungs u1uh somawhat Tow but. curved d1aphrurns which are at
The 12%h vib bi 1ayera11y. They appear low in the Tateral vies also but again are
stightly domed. The retrosternal clear space is somewhat increased. Stight
pleural capping is present bilaterally. Nipple shadows are seen bilaterally.

The chest x-ray appears to be normal with the possible exception of an cnpearance
ssuggesting emphysema based on hypevin'lat10ﬂ and some 1nc1eJSeJ radiolucency of the

Tz o e 3 iy e —

lung .1e]ds. _ ; _ P

‘See attached report.

5

Severa_restrictive. 1u1g_d1sease,wh1ch is part1a1]y reversible by broncho;.]ator

therapy. There is significant hyperinflation with increased total lung capac*uy
AxLeriaT biocd gases show severe arterial hypoxemia with significant dﬂc ~ease in
hemeglebin saturation. The pulimonary function studies show severe cbsiructive lung
discase with some reversibility by bronchodilator therapy. Theve is also hypei-
invlation and marked arterial hypo>en1a. A]tPOUHh not_diagnostic, the pulmonavy
function studies are suggestive of pu]ro“ary enpny ma. '

J—




Evelyn Smith/
Page G-~l2q1k
" Date af Lﬁﬁn

%,
Diagnosis:
1) Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease.
Respiratory impairment class IV.
(Estimately whole person 1mpa1rm°nu 60%) .
Emphysema.
- Byssinosis.
+ Schilling Gradg III.
Recommendations:
1) Remove from area of significant cotton dust exposure.
2) Avoid exposure to respiratory irritant, marked changes in hum.dlgy or temperature.
3) - Prempt treatment of respiratory tract infection or re3p1ratory tract symoucﬂs
~and contlnL 1 pﬁraod1c pulmonary surveillance.
,‘A/""—I7 . ,( \// ‘ ~
& 7. Pea1na1d Harris, M.D.
%

TRH/fh
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"NGE 51 SEX F HEIGHT _ 65" WEIGHT 165
BEFORE AFTER :
BRONCHODILATOR - BRONCHODILATOR
Measured Normal %Normal "~ Measured %MNormal
I: - LUNG VYOLUMES _ ' ~ - _ :
Forced Vital Capacity (L) 1.51  3.40 44 .4 - 2.21 65.0
Functional Residual Capac1ty (L) 4.69 2.85 164.6 ———— ————
Residual Volume (L) 3,99 1.88 212.2 ———— _———
Total Lung Capacity (L) 6.20 4.93 125.8 -——- -
IT:  FLOW RATES :
FEV, 1.0 Second (L) 0.65 2.58 25.1 1.01 - 39.1
FEF 25-75 , 0.36 2.92 12.3. - . 0.51 17.4
" PEF ' L ' - 1.97  5.05 39.1 2.91 - .57.6
‘Max, Vol. Vent. (L/Min) 21.00 98.59 21.3 " 36.00 36.5
Knudson ' FVC 1.51  3.21% 47.0 . 2.21 63.8
_ . - FEV, 0.65 2.59* 25.1° -1.01 39.0
IT1: COMPUTED VALUES _
Residual Volume/Total Lung Capac1ty 38.1% '
Forced Expiratory Volume, 1.0 Second/rorced Vital Capac1ty A

~ PULMONARY FUNCTION LABORATORY REPORT

V:  ARTERIAL BLOOD . ' Rest
P! . 7.40
Oxygen: Tension (mm Hg) S 58.0 -
Carbon' Dioxide Tension (mm Hg) - 36.0
Oxvgen, Saturation (% by Nomogram) 90.2
- Aci¢~-Base (meg/L by Nomogram) ' -2.0
Bicarbpnate 22.0

Interpretation: Severe restrictive lung diseasé which is partially reversible by bronchodilato
therapy... There is significant hyperinlation with increased total lung capacity.

43, 0% = 45.7

Arterial

blood gase s show severe arterial hypoxemia with significant disease in hemoglobin saturation.
e pulmenary Tunciicn studies show severe obstructive lung diseaso with some veversibility

by brenchodilator therapy. There is also. hyperinflation and marked arterial hypoxenia.
Although not diagnostic, the pu]monary function studies are sngce>L1ve of- pu]monarj emphysema.

TRH/fh
*tormals from Knudson, R.J.

sl e

T Rog1na1d Harris, M.D.
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- DEPARTMENT OF WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION
é‘i, : INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION OF VIRGINIA

- P.0O.BOX 1794

A heanng wnll be held at

gouncil C‘lamber - P.acm 202
hmicipal Buildiag -

55 Hest Chureh Street

:f.mmsm, Virginia

o Septanmber 10 19&: at 9: {)‘) a. =
SUBJECT OF HEAR!NG
Clainamt 3 annlicai on,

a'r counsel, filed with this o
Commissicon on 1‘ia.:':a::a 27 1389,

fuh b

-

ThlS heanng is part of a  schedule. Postponement
vill cause inconvenience and extra expense. Continuance is
:ntirely within the diseretion of the Commission except as
stherwise provided by law.

R

All medical réports are to be submitted to this Com-

RICHMOND, VIRGINIA 23214

éW%ICE OF H?%%WW
Fud
‘/-(o/ép)

L . Bassett, .. VA 24355 5 __|

o

nission _so  they can be placed in- the file prior to the

'ate of hearing. Medical reports are acceptable in lieu of-

shysicians personal appearances.

 The parties must arrange to have all witnesses present
o testify at the time and place designated. Failure of any
arty to appear .at the time and place herein prescribed

4l result in action by the Commission as provided by law..

VTLLIsM R. YATES, Deputy Conmisy

INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION OF VIRGlNlA

r M. Xenneth Doss

. Flelderest ¥ills, Inc.
Eden, M. C. 27288
L ' , _

0?7’ 13 5

(Refer to 1.C. File No. in all
correspondence about  this
injury.)

1.C. FILE NO. xﬁﬁﬁzﬂ

660-314
" CARRIER'S NO.

Cccupational Diseasa
DATE OF ACCIDENT Cokn.

5’-%-77

EV.‘:’.L‘ZH ADANS S"!ITF

"ielc.crest dills, Inc.

Clalmant_ » S
Evelyn Adam.s Qmit:h
Rt. 1, Box 276

Employer _ A
r R R I " kel
. Filelderest ¥ills, Tnc. ™

Insurance Carrier '
r ' S
. Self Tnsuraed
(notice to counsel)

L 4 : B

Claimant's' Co_unsel

Edm‘.n:' A. Gendron;f’.}‘t.' . :s'?. -
P. 0. Box 351
da--b-f 33 110, YA 24112

Defendant’s Counsel

n..so-..h.te General Counael

Date of this Notice 2/23/3%3 pz




{DRON, KIRBY
& SMITH
'ORNEYS AT LAW
€. MAIN STREET
NSVYILLE, VIRGINIA

RUG 2 81380
: REQUEST FOR ANSWERS
! }.F't/ . AND

!
' SUPPLEMENTAL INTERROGATORIES

COMES NOW the claimant and says that she has hereinbefore
on the 24th day of March, 1980 filed interrogatories and
Fhat the Employer has on the 27th day of May, 1980 responded,
ﬁhat certain responses.are inadequate. and that certain
Questions contained in the interrogatories have not been
fully and completely answered and claimant therefore requests
that said answérs_be supplied by the Employer forthwith:
; 2c The answer to the question is "see employée profile”--
no profile is attached--the question remains unanswered. |

2d The answer to the question is "see employee profile"--

no profile is attached--the question remains unanswered.

4. Subsequent to 1965 describe the veﬁtilation éystem
in the area claimant worked if it consisted of anything
other than an éir conditioning sYstem.

i 6. Was there a temporary installation of a device to
heasure‘air pollution or inhalants and if so, when was it
finstalled and removed and will you attached a copy of all

[
results recorded to these answers?

8. The answer to questions 8a-e is "see spirometry"
éand there is no attachment--The question remains unanswered.
‘ | 9. The answer is "see medical report“-—no report is
rattached and the question remains unanswered.

! 12. The substance of testimony has not.been'provided.

Therefore questions 2c; 2d; 4; 6; 8; 9; and 12 are

" tessentially unanswered and claimant respectfully requests

- that each be answered fully under oath pursuant to §65.1-95

of the Code of Virginia. .
ot gimg- 44




These 1nterrogator1es should be considered as continuing.

EVELYN ADAMS SMITH

cffj;f:v fééfT ;%éézdfvyf

By

Counsel

SUPPLEMENTAL
- INTERROGATORIES

1. Does the Employef have in its posSeséion a letter from
Dr. T. Reginald'Harris stating that the claimant is not able
i to work and qualified for Social Security disability payments

(letter probably received by Steve Culligan'although not nece--

i ssarily addressed to him) or any other document from Dr. T. |
Reginald Harris concernihg the physical condition of the claim-
ant. -

These interrogatories should be considered as-continuing.

EVELYN ADAMS SMITH

e /"’/—o-z

Counsel

| Edwin A. Gendron, Jr.
GENDRON & KIRBY
6 E. Main Street
Martinsville, VA 24112

i _ ' CERTIFICATE

| This is to certify that a true and exact copy of the
foregoing has this :if:iday Qf August, 1980 been mailed to.
the employer, Fieldcrest Mills, Inc. at their plant in

Fieldale, Virginia, 24089. ,

//9
C, oAZ:~ 4//* s i%>*4“1;'/

.Counsel for Clalmantb/

135




ANSWERS . TO INTERROGATORIES

NOW COMES Defendant in the above-styled case and files

Answers to Interrogatories propounded by the Plaintiff and

answers aé follo&s:
Zlc. See Exhibit A.
'2,4. See Exhibit A.

4. Subsequent to 1965, ventilation system was an air

conditioning and air transfer system which filtered the air as
- .

well és conditioning the air.

61l Vertical elutriators are used from time to time to

measure dpst levels. Results are attached as Exhibit B.

8v' See Exhibit C.
|
9. See Exhibit D.
12L Dr. Harris' report plus interrogatories will be

submittedL K. R. Baggett will testify as to dust measurements and
dust leveﬁs in Plaintiff's work .area plus tendering and placing

Plaintiff in another job area in accordance with doctor's

recommendation.

1. Yes (See Exhibit E).

=5 , T
- /‘/-»/'

cEes s 2
1 - '// -
L - VERIFICATION
1, Kenneth R. Baggett decl;re:

Director of Safety : of

1 am the

Fieldecrest Mills, Inc., a corpcration, and that I have read the

| : ,
foregoing Answers to Interrogatories and believe the same to be

16

true.



i - :
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true

i
and correct.
: P

Executed at' Eden, North Carolina on September 4,1980.

Lf;/a——-_— VC /j{c"( ///
T 7

STATE OF; NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM

aforesaid, certify that the above-named Kenneth R. Baggett

i . .
personallly appeared before me and having been duly sworn made

oath thel foregoing Answer is true and correct to the best of his
knowledge and belief.
Given under my hand this 4th day of September, 1980.

i

My Commission expires: July 27, 1982,

1,'Corinda R. Thompson, a Notary Public for the jurisdiction

Notary Public

"(NOTARIAL.SEAL)
N

CERTIFICATE

The undersigned hereby certifies that the foregoing

class|mail, postage prepaid to the attorney for the Plaintiff,
Edwin|A. Gendron, Jr., Esq., Gendron, Kirby & Smith, 6 E. Main

i
Stree%, P. 0. Box 351, Martinsville, Virginia 24112.

<‘€3LLﬂ&CH~ CSR 4’);U“Tm{?&\r\-

Answer was served upon the Plaintiff by mailing a copy thereof first-

17 W%VM W
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‘PHI-EGM or alternative word to su..”local custom,

(an gelting up)t
Do you usually bring up any phlegm from your chest first thing in -
the morning? (Count phlegm with the first smoke or on “first going
out of doors.” Exclude phlegm from the nose. Count swallowed

PRICEMLY ittt et s aesess e e esb s s reesasnes Sheases ben Fatenanemaaesesssbensunssesans Yes. No (36)
Do you usually bring up any phlegm from your chest during the.day or at . /
night? (Accept twiCe OF MOTE.) ... e et e et sivnsssseesmsscssassasinrosaeces ¥ €5nraeneeees NO (37)

‘Yes’ to either question (36) or (37):

Do you bring up phlegm like this on most days for as much as three

MONTRS CACH YEAT? ... ettt et ee cevaeeeens e esneseesaesnsseceaeisearanenn eeee aevetereeeenenen Yes...... ..... No............ (38)
If *Yes’ to question (33) or (38):
' S (cough) S A - (39)
How long have you had this phlegm? .. it et e e iriiiae e em e srae s nianes .. Yrs. .
(Write in number of years) : :
1These words are for subjects who work at night - ) ) )
CHEST ILLNESSES T ' T - _ o
_In the past three years, have you had a period (1) Q/o( o ' .«.'-.' B " (40)
of (increased) *cough and phlegm lasting for . . : -
3 week.. or more?... . (2) [] Yes, only one period
. @ Qd Yes, two or more periods
iFor subjects whao usually have phlegm ’ R ’ ) )
Durmg the past 3 years have you had any chest illness whlch has kept : S / '
you off work, indoors, at home or m bed? For as long as one week, {lu?) Yes.. /... Ng ... (41)
If *Yes’ to (41): Did you bring up (more) phlegm than usual in any- T - / .
" of these illnesses? - ‘ _ . Yes..... No.... ... {42) -
If ‘Yes' to (42): During the past three years have you had: ' o - - .
" Only one such xllness with . increased phlegm? = (1) 2/ ) 43)
' More than one such .1lmess' L | o - (@) ' _—

- ' . . " _ - i Br. Grade.. -/k/ (CE))
TIGHTNESS E ] I : i . ., / .

- Does vour chest ever fcel tight or your breathing become difficult?. ... ......... Yes.¥.. No. (45)
Is your chest tight or your breathing difficult on any particular day -~ / . :
of the week?.... (after a week or 10 days away from the mill).. - ..YesA ..... No........... (46)

If 'Yeés": \\-lhich days .. . r\n Cv\é aZ)3. .of, T(Sf&é&’cK@\Q a(§_ etimes.__ Always :'4)
a

(48)

“If ‘Yes' \Tonday' At what time on Monday does your chest (] Before cnterma the rmll

~ feel tight or your breathing difficult?
: .(2)9/—@:- entering the mxll
If after entering the mill: : '

| _ _ S
tlow many hours after beginning of the shift does this begin?. .. 3 x'\O\)'\ S eeeies
fow long does this tightness or breathing difficulty last? _ .. . .. O o ‘3\ .
Daes it ever reoccur in the night?. 501’7\ 4:.‘" . "'\ f_.> e Yes M No..

1f *Yes': How many hours after initial exposure? ... IC"' l’& 'l.UM”/

I ‘*Yes' Tuesday:
At what time on Tucsday does your chest feel tight (1) (] Before entering the mill
or yout breathing difficult? . .
(AN After entering the mill
I after entering the mill:

How many hours after the begmnmg of the shift does this begin?..

: HO_W long does this tightness or breathing difficulty last? _..................... e e e e

Does it ever reoccur in the MIGhL2 ... e et sa e seenee ceneeeiras eeerraae Yes ......... No. .......

If ‘Yes™: How many hours after iritial exposure? 21 eeeterseaseenaseassennte sassbanne <

hrs. (49)

hrs (50)
V... (31)

hes. (52,53)

(61

. hrs. (55)
hrs. (56)

hrs. (38,59)

GT

;{_:

o/

St



_ iAsk only if NO to Questio })

W It the past, has your chest ever been tight or your breathing

‘difficult on any particular day of the week?.......... reeae No..........
1f ‘Yes': Which day? ' Sometimes .. ....--. Always (61)
] Bys. Grd. .. -
g BREATHLESSNESS
If disabled from walking by any condition other than
heart or lung disease put “X" here and leave 0O (62)
questions (63-71) unasked -
Are you ever troubled by shortness of breath, when hurrying on the /
level or walking up a shght RIBE?Z. e e e i Yes T No . (63)
If ‘No’, grade is 1. If ‘Yes', proceed to next question :
"Do you get short of breath walkmg with other people at an .
_ordinary pace on the levcl" et e e o s . Yes 7. No.... .. (69)
1f ‘No grade is 2. 1f ‘Yos', procccd to ncxt qucstxon . o
Do you have to stop for breath when walking at your own pace . S / '
on the 1evelZ. s o crernsecsnnns - Yes......... No.. .. (65)
It "No’, grade is 3. If “Yes’, procced to next question ' _ B
Are you short of breath on washing or dressing?.....oveciocesineniies e YOS NOcooon (66)
" If ‘No’, grade is 4. If *Yes’, grade is 5.
(67)

- If

Do you have a heart condition for which you are under a doctor’s care" No. (73)
Do you have an allergy or reactxon to food or drugs?... " Yes No ¢£))
‘Yes’, speii:ify the food or drug and ‘
the reaction......... e et eeabeeseaimi e R SRR 15 /75) .
Have you ever had asthma?.. . (- S— No...l.... (76)
It “Yes', did it begin: S o ' ‘
’ : : (1) [] Before age 30
(2) ] After age 30 .
If “Yes' before 30: did you have asthrha before ever going to work in
a te\txl_e mil?. . . Yes ...No 17
. Have }‘bu.ever had hay fever or other allergies (other than above)'.',h?.‘.‘.\,:iff.f Yes ». ... No ... (78)
It ‘Yes’, did you have hay fever or allergies before ever going i :
to work in a textile M2 e e e YeS YT No......... (79,
Have your parents, brothers, sisters or children had hay fever, /
asthma a food or drug allergy, or other allergies? ..o [SUUTORIRURID 4 - RPN No.&7..... (80)
If ‘Yes’, to (80) Did those with these allergies work in a textile mill? ..o Yes ...No (81)
If ‘Yes', to (81): Did any of these who have worked in a textile mill
have these allergies before ever going to work in
C ERE TN Z e rens R e Yeso No ..ccoceene (82)
' 0o A. Grd L (83)

OTHER ILLN"SSES AND ALLERGY HISTORY

"AYP;

Now

(60) .

v



_ TOBACCO SMOKING }

g

, Do you smoke" ) . .
.Record ‘Yes' if regular smoker up to one month ago. (Cigaretles, cigar . - /
or pipe);. ............................................. ceteeer e sueses et reens smereiaee wre 2 e e .. Yes...... No (84) ‘

If ‘No' to (84) / |
Have you ever smoked? (Cigarettes, cigars, pipe. Record 'No’ if subject ... Yes. o No. ... (85)
" has never smoxed as much as one cigarette a day, or 1 oz of tobacco a )
month, for as long as one year) years
g 1f *Yes’ to (84) or (85); what have you smoked and for how many years? : Cigarettes /Q
(Write in specific number of years in the appropriate square) Pipe
| , » Cigars
}§4 éigarettes, how many packs per day? a . o
(Write in number of cizarettes) B \4 2v S R NP ¢~ - &
Pack Years = numbers of packs smoked da1 ly x numbér of years. of smoh ng. .
: <1 -Grade0
lto 510 Grade 1
11 ta 20 - Grade 2 , : _
21 to0 80 - Grade 3 ) » L . oL _
OverBl Grade 4 . I : Smoking History Grade ..l. Teees
OCCUPA‘I‘IONAL HISTORY S N ' . /
Have you ever worked in: A foundry? (As long és one year),...... Yes....... .No...7.... (93)
' ' .~ Stone or mineral mining, quarrying or processing? -
X . (A3 long as one year) ........... ‘ . Yes .No.. 9 -
Asbestos milling or processing? (Ever) ............ Yes -No. .27 95y 2
P o Cotton or cotton blend mill? (For controls only).. ' Yes. No.. (986)
- Other dusts, fumes or smoke? If yes, specify: e Yes... No.. t"/v'/(Q'I)
| : _ Type of exposure....... _—
_ - ' Length of exposure ———— eeeeeee s eeeee et e 28 e e »
At what age did you first go to work in aptextile mill? . e \ g PRI 4 2- 1 & I
) - When you fzrst worked ina textxle mill, did you work with (1) {J Cotton or cotton blend o (39)
’ ' o (2) [J Synthetic or wool '
. Wxt"nn the fxrst few days you first worked in a textile mill, do you remember _ o B
becommg sick with fever, chills, cough or sickness of the stomach? (Accept : o /
any of t.he 'T!bove sxgns or symptoms)......... cerrrrareene Y€Se . No.Ar (100)
If “no”™ to (93): Have you ever had such an 1llness after returning to the mill - S /
. after a few days away from the mill?, veeers Yes..... ... No {101)
' How many years have you worked in a textile mill? (Write in total . Processing T e ars
number of yeara inappropriate square) . Tt Qotton oor Cotton Blend
All Synthetic or Wool -
If cotton, how many years did you spend in each arca? (Write in years in each area) : .
!(wq) (105) _(105) (107) {103) {109) (116 (mn (112) iy (114) A

Open Plck. ‘Card Spia wind Twlat | Spool Warp Slasia Weavs Other

ZE RN E RIS - L1330

For those working in more than one area:

Did you move from a dusty work area to one that was not as dusly'? e ieiiiine e Yeso.....No............ (115)
If ;j;es, did you move because the dust bothered vour breathing? . ... Yes... .. No...... (116)
!
)- . P THE ABOVE INFORMATION WAS GlVEN'BY ME AND IS COBRECT.

/ A /4/// 23 QWM R\,
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“ FIELOCREST MILLS, INC. 4 | /;f//}D'@/ / e -
Medical Department o
326 E. Stadium Drive < | A 73 éS\ﬁO

Eden, North Carolina 27288

[N F TS SO DR
N
PR 3 e

AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE MEDICAL INFORMATION

e /0///7? .

'..1 hereby authorize Aé / BC/LZ SOL /IM/ /5 /MgB’ICA 7 }ﬂ‘#

: to glve comp]ete 1nformat10n tq/qq /f) (Jf?g?lczkiﬁj Lij CTZLAZLLJSU*;7

[/égﬂ/l/ld olo/UJ ‘

zﬁjfer ng hea h of the und gned in :Zgij:nce
aﬁ M ( (
V

/- /Z /WM/L»K

Signaturé

Witness

25
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4 .-.'.‘ . , ‘ . { ‘ ’ { . . ) (
,' { (
o __ FIELDCREST MILLS, INC.. o

EDEN, NORTH CAROLINA 27288

‘F_‘{“
Received from Fieldcrest Mill, Inc., Medical Department . )
a copy of consu] tant waJp and p /?mwn UZ;mtten S o
opinion prov1ded b_y/yl /20 STt
Date. ‘ /0///77 v B
| Signature :
Witness : | :
>
. '
) '. ‘ e
i




- a PESTRRES

i

FIELDCREST MILLS, INC. - - . -

- - Medical Department =— - : Co . . - “

.+ 326 E, Stadium Drive ' : LT
" Eden, North Carolina 27288

. AUTHORIZATION TO RELEASE MEDICAL INFORMATION .

i
ol

" Date 828779, o ¢«

K héré};y auvthorize -}'AFiel'dcr‘eét,"  Mills , Medical Dept.

to give complete information to T. Reginald Harris, M.D. '

concerning the health of the undersigned in reference to pyat1un o Smith .

G- Respiratory, consultant workup.

f Signaturel _Zg;{y%/@,}é _
- Wifness' :& Dl w - uﬁ{%y

C e e e o p—_ e TS

et A ——— e &+ 141 A S P A oA SR b O 14 ot = ot 0
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- FIELDCREST MILLS, INC.
Eden Medical Department

-X-RAY FINDINGS

-

Pat1ent s Name: CSkYD&éh: éZ%Z%fk'/g Age: 37 M111/Departnent czoééééééff;¢&u//€2y9 ;
Job Title: %«%I‘* j//,d// .X-Ray Number: 96(0/4 © Date: 7 28=24 Techmcvan-'ﬂ

e . o ETERE 0
Reason for Request: /ZQL/ /5? «ﬁﬂy;é?é%fﬁxi ' BT

eRegjon X-Rayed._

B WPRRREEE BTSN B R T B | S
“/\_ CHEST:: Chest examlnatlon shows norma] bones SWOOLh d1aphragmat1c surfaces, sharp
angles, normal heart and c]ear ]ungs ' . . P

EXTREMITY There is no ev1dence of fracture, d1s]ocat1on or 1ntr1nswc bone d1sease"?{
in x-rays of the r1ght/]eft ' _ -

SKULL" Except for R

T TER : : Lo e s A e,

: "'skull,examinatiOn shoWs-intactAdhner and outer tables, pneumatized paranasal and = -
mastoid air cells, midline calcification of the pineal gland, normal sellar Do

_ structures, norma] petrous r1dges and is cons1dered othen!1se nonna].v.ﬂ B

LUMBO SACRAL SPINE Except for :

T X rays of the 1umbo—sacra] sp1ne show norma] abdor1nal and pe1v1c viscera, bony
~... - architecture compatible with the patient's age, normal sacroiliac and hip joints,

- well maintained intervertebral spaces, and heights of the vertebral bodies, patent

-~ .. neural: foramina, intact facets and normally aligned apophysea] joints. The y

- lumbo-sacral angle is acceptable, the line of weight bear1ng is exce]]ent and 15

" considered otherwise normal v A . 5

CERVICAL SPINE: Except for

L T

~ X-rays of the cervical sp1ne shows normal bony arch1tecture and curvature, intact
vertebral bod1es, spinous and .lateral processes as well as preserved intervertebral

spaces. and is cons1dered otherwise normal. : v éi-
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" Section A, Employee ldentification: o '_ o FCR-1T3A
/ L "mo'ioyea Namf' A v _ __Emoplovee Number
BV SN \/,,,, | Bl32s
First 4 _Middle La:t i _{1-5) ~
. Age '_ 1 “Height . " Mill No. . Department No. A Task No.
SO | (of 07 L9 =7
. » ' ) {6~-8} ‘ {9—-10) {11-12) ) {13-17).
. Section B.  Pulmonary Function Test Results =~ » ) L , 3}
Test Date -} Test Day{ Befare Work Sampie 6 Hour Sample Since st Test * Positive History
ol LY —~ - 2 1Year (1) | - '
$ , .
]Q; q 378 . ] » @ Oi{ /?5 O:ﬁ ( ‘qo _ 3 Mos. (3) . b
MMIDD 'YY A FEVI | FVC | FEVI FVC 2?382 {g; A | B | c | o
{18-23) {24}~ (25-27) (28-30) - (31-33) (33-36) | —____ Special (0) | (38) 139) . {400  (41)

-~

{4

_ particular day of the weex? o o ~
_ © .. Yes . : :

_ Are there any noticeable changes in your breathmg when you return to work {Mondays) 2567 being out over a weexend')

Do you cough on any partu:ular day of the week more so than on others? ~

- ST e </ - : -
1 | | | e

Do you experience chest tnghtness shortnas of breath or difficult breathing that Is continad to or more severe on any

_. Y&s.._._.,_
i.

‘Ia

During the past year have you had any chest illness that required tr2atment by a physician?

. | . /
T Yes - 7___
Do you smo»l-=> (Record Yes :f e poyea/smoxes cxgarntte:s cigars, or pige)

Yes .__(Z__ . - Mo

If Yes cigarette smoker, record number of cigarettes per day | : .

i
Interviewer Comments

- U 4 o e o e e Gt e = & st + ot % mmm e % e e ——a e e . T G e
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Section A, Emp!oyee ldem\fucanon - - o
Employ_ee Name ‘ Emolovee Number
: ; - 4
irst - {1-5)
: o 226“30"‘2417 .8,3».,\ . —
Age ) : sdev 2nt No. Task No,
. “19 . .
50 hdtd 07 65 07—22-46 i _
. o {6—8) {9-10) (11-12) ‘. (13-17)
Section B.  Pulmonary Function Test Results = _ .
Tast Date "Test Day{ Befora \Work Sample {6 Hour Sample . Since Last Tes; ~ * Positive History .
1 o : & 1 Year (1) | '
125 8 / o o —— 3Mos. {3) ,
MMiOD'YY] | FEVI | FVC__ | FEVI FVC Sm“; {g; A | B | C | o
.. {18~23) (24)  (25-27) (28-30) = (31-33) (34-36) | T Special (0) | 38) © i%9) - @0}  (aD)
o :. ! . , _ . a7 o ( (
AL Do you expenence chest tightness, shortnass of breath or diificult breathing that.is oonhned to or more severe on any

particular. day of the weézo

Yes

\. Yes \/

No

a—

. Yes No
2. - Do you cough on any pérﬁcular day of the week more so than on others? ‘ \/
-  Yes No '
. D. During the past year have you had any chest iliness that required treatment by a W?
| E. Co yousmoke? (Racord Yes if employee smokes cigarettes, cigers, or pipe)

No

If Yes cigarette smoker, record number of cigarettes per day JQ___

nterviewer Comments

Are there any noticeable chahges in your breathing wﬁen you return to work (Mo \@aher being.out over a weekend?

e r———— S0 mm
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Section A, Emptoyee Identlflcatvon FCR-113A

' o ‘ . Emp)oyt» Nama , - Employee Numb"r ,
P ! " EVELYN- A SMITH 2 C6-28-28 | b
— Frst 226-30~2617 81520 | R 3

j " Age ] ' h ' iNo Task No.

——— : 1927 07 - &5 07-22-46 _

Y8 N L 1

' (6-8) o {9-10) {11-12) {13-17)

Section B,  Pulmonary F_unction Test Results ) ' / - ) : ’

Test Data | Test Day{ Beafore Work Sample 6 Hour Sample | Since Ldst Test * Positive History.

/ ', / 3 ' b , L7 1 Year (1)

(00T L. L g% 08 | £sg |2 VT smos | L

MMIODIYY( [ FEVi | FVC | FEVI | FvC Shos i T4 8 |.c | b0
(18-23) . (24)  (25-27) * (28-30) (31-33) (3436 Special (0) | (38)  139) (400  (41)

(37

|
T

A, Co you exﬁérience chest tightness, shortness of breath or difficult breathing that.is confin
~ particular day of the week? ' _ ‘ _ .
- Yes, e ' No '/
'B. Are there any not:ceable changes in your breathmg when you return to work (Monday
Yes No
C. Do you cough on any particular day of thg week more so than on others?
S | Yes | No
| -
D. B During the{past year have you had any chest illness that required treatment by a ;{hyzﬁci'an?
| :

m

o Yee Mo

Co vyou srq':oke? {Record Yesife ployee smokes cigarettes, cigars, or pips)

Ya._f;_._._.

If Yes ciga‘rette smoker, record number of cigarettes per day

1
tnterviewdr Commeanis
|

o or more severe on any (

after bemg out over a weekend?
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Saection A,

Emplayee dantification:

pamcular day of the week?
Yes

,;§. o3 on /‘/oﬁ/ﬂﬁ')fs

Nog

‘ . FCR?II3A
.. Empiloyee Nama Emplayes Number
: T3 1 : -
] 14
. EVELYN & SMITE 2 Le—z28-~28 .
First o - {1-5)-
~oe ' [ : . 226=30-2417 o g1zen SN ,TaSkI'Nb.
q_jfg : 1927 07  &F CT-22-46 |
— -8 — e-10) ' T 1-12) 1317
Section B, - Pulmonary Function Test Results , L - o )
i Test Date | Test Day Before Wark Sample 6 Hour Sample ] Since Last Test ~ * Positive History
by gl 3 ' S 1 Year (1) | X '
‘ & ] ¥4 ) - -
f@»if:?g /I 2. ?97 194 P ?7 /ép 3:305. (g) X 1A o _
VMDD IYY | | FEVI | FVC | FEVI .| FWC Ve :g} A | 8 | c [ o
18-23)  (24)  (25-27) (28-30) (31-33) (34-36) | T Special {0) | (38} {39 w40} (41)
A, Do yoﬁ experience chest tightness, sh rtness of breath or difficult breathing that.is contined to or more severe on any

Ara thera any noticeable changes in i/lz’ur breathing when you return to work (Mondays) after bemg out over'a weekencP

S5a0b. CT[ath' ')./7‘0

Do you ccugh on any particular day of the week more so than on athers?

Yes

.Nor '

During the past year have you had any chest iliness that required treatment by a physician?

No.,?__--

Co you smake? (Record Yas if emplayee smokes cigarettes, cigars, or pipe)

| " 'Yes__%,:.. No

Yes

1§ Yes cig]'arene smoker, record number of cigarettes per day Q_Q__

Intarviewner Comments
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INTERVIEW: Date :ﬁ’/y ﬁ; lntervnewer s Employee No. .

Employee

< FCR-108 INTERVAL QUESTIONNAIRE

- S (RESPIRATORY)

N\
SMITH, EVELYN A 2 06-25~28 o L § ’
Employee : ' S i Age
226-30-2417 " ' 81220 ' .l .
|

1927 - o7 L 07-22-46 .

f shortness of breath or difficult breathing that is confmed to or
ay of the week" . _ e

No'

Do you expenence chest tightn
more severe on any partlculﬂ

Yes )
tnteiLlewerComments _ W yﬁﬁ/ 5’;:43/'?: #M

uwéﬁfjéié;i dﬁzﬂg” aﬁf ef:aﬁ#éfﬂ?ﬁif af’é?S?i”'evéﬁg’ P> -

Are eable changes in your reathmo when you return to work (Mondays) after bemg

out over a weekend? ‘ : S~
. . Yes M R ' No_____ ;

lnte rviewer Comments

see ,@-é&fzs .

Do you cough on any partlcular day of the week more so than on other

~ Yes

Inte rvuewer Comments

. . Durmg the past year have you had any chest lllness that requ:red tregithent by F physncran" . .

Yes

lnte rviewer Comments

Do you smoke? (Record Yesi#empioyee smokes cigarettes, cigars, or pipe)

No

Yes




¢ o ' L .7
| \ INTERVAL QUESTIONNAIRE <9 o - .
(RESPIRATORY) L{
INTERV:IW:  Date_ /- 24P 3 Interviewer’s Employee No.
Employee Name | EVEL_YN A SMITH 2 06-28-2g8 : - Age 95
Lo 226-30-2417 81320 f |

Employee Payroll No. 1927 o  07-22-46 t.No. -
Do you experience chest tightness, shortness of breath or difficult breathing that is confmed toor - -
more severe on any partlcular day of the week?

0,

Are th

I Ci ' I a
2;@; om';e: ; 47‘»/;;5 R Iy 2> //\57‘_5‘ _,&z//@W/

Higt- (wot EvVeRy r7ox) -

ere any noticeable chanoes in your breathing when you return to work (Mondays) after bem':r )

out over a weekend?

Yes - - No X

Interviewer Comments_ -

Do you cough omany particular déy of the week more so than on others? - -

Interviewer Comments

During thé paét year have you had any _chési illness that required treatment by a physician?

P

Yes

"NOA_

Interviewer Comments

Do you smoke? (Record Yes if employes smokes cigarevttes, cigars, or pipe)

If Yes

Yes l/ : N No

cigarette smoker, record number of cigarettes per day ,_? a .

o A PAS T

41 ] - c’/é
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FLR-108. ¢ INTERVAL QUESTIONNAIRE (—\ _ | @

o S (RESPIRATORY)

A. INTERVIEW: Date _ GM} f.,/L/ g ).Q 72 d. Interviewer’s Employee No. 3 359 g
Emleoyee Name\5m DL/’\ b e /ur» /Q 'Date of Birth é;?g-’)’?/\ge 4 %L :

Last First ~/ ‘Middle
- Empléoyee Payroll No. 9_-/3Q.O Mill No. 07 .. Dept. No. /2 _

-B. Do yl)u experience chest tightness, shortness of breath or dlff' cult breathmg that is confined to or
mare severe on any pamcular day of the week?

‘ . ‘Yes-!-/ PEEE _No

-1
R

_ Intemewer Comments
. \

o ;/)1464430_ R -

C. Are there any noticeable changes in your breat.l'nnar when you return to work (Mondays) after bemc
out over a weekend? - . .
S  ; Yes / o " No _ .

|
. Interviewer Comments - o ' A : .

|

|

’
{

Yes T .No__‘../;.’ﬁ.'

Interviewer Comments

D. ‘Do you cough on any particular day of the week more so than on others?

S

‘ . Yes_ No ‘/

Interviewer Comments -

" F. Do you smoke? ({Record Yes if employee smokes cigarettes, cigars, or pipe)

\ : :
Yes ./ | No .

———tais

P ' .
If Yes cigarette smo_kér, record number of cigarettes per day 7/< 0 . : N

|

E. Duﬁ%ng the past year have you had any chest iliness that requiréd treatment by a physician? . .
|
|
| \

A a8 . L)
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mao:

T - 507
- 634 13471

FIELDCREST MILLS

. 226-30-2417

2

Diaphragm Height: PA(in) mm. PA(ex) mm.

NA~2R~2R Q>7
History: Ast%ma/ﬂay

0712
Fever-

Other Respiratory Diseases-[2]

N7=272—= A
07-27-5%;

(Type and date of occurance)

Diaphragm Excursion Value: 01234567 89 1021 12 13 1% 15 16 17 .18 18 20 2

Screening Film Impression:

[13 Nojabnormalitie§ noted
[2] Tuberculosis suspect
[3] Lungs questionable REPEAT

[#] Lungs abnormal, probably arrested

[5]} Lungs abnormal, URGENT
[6] Heart disease. suspect
[7] Skeletal abnormality:

[a] Ribs [b] Spine [c] Clavical [d] Other]Radiologisth

[éé/;mphjsema [11 [24/:;]

[9] Other conditions--recommend 14 x 17

£ilm (impression:

[u]

i

<)

[10] Unsatisfaéfory

Film

Remarks on technique:

49




LY A Y - Y -

N

' ) -1, BeFore , Before 6 H 6 H
: //,f/ﬂ HEIGHT- é 2 FEV-1 / D0 rve szoir/ [ ), rvcourj 55

% of | % of % of % of .
Prdtd. Prdtd. _ Prdtd. Prdtd. :
o :
R - FEV-1 % Change + (- )
e e BYSSINOSIS FUNCTIONAL SEVERITY CODE:
EVELYN A SMITH 2 06—28—28, ,
o ; F-0 (a)___ (b)___(c)
226~30-2417 - 81320 | L
R _ | F-1 (a)___ (b)___ (e
1927 07 | 07-22—46}
N L . e { F-2 (a)  (b) - (c)
— _
‘ .
SMOXER: __ NON-SMOKER: __ DYSPNEA GRADE: 1 2 3 4 5 MONDAY BREATHLESSNESS: 12 3 4 5

CHRONICIBRONCHITIS GRADE: 1 2.3 4 ALLERGY GRADE: 0 I II ITT

BYSSINOSIS HISTORICAL GRADE: 0 1 2 3 4 ' HEART CONDITION? YES___ NO
I - (0) (33 (1) (2) (3) -

CHEST X-RAY: NORMAL '~ EMPHYSEMA GRADE: 0 1 2 3 4 OTHER (SPECIFY):

;jl~ . DIAPHRAGM EXCURSION VALUE:
RECOMMENDED DISPOSITION: |
NJ CHANGE; ANNUAL FEV-1.
IE POSSISLE, MOVE TO LOW RISK AREA; ANNUAL FEV-1.
WQRK REQUIRING NO DUST EXPOSURE; DETAILED PULMONARY EXAM, THREE HONTH FEV-1.

MOVE TO LOW RISK AREA; THREE MONTH FEV-=1l. .

SUMMARY SHEET

| B e éj/



;¢,i | . (T : | _ ' (- Page-2

RESPIRATORY QUESTIOVWAIPE

INTERVIEW: DATE7 ;5 7 9 g INTERVIEWE @2 34567 i

PRESENT WORK AREA: If working in more than one speczfied work érea, X area
where most of the work shift is spent. If "other", but spending 25% of the
work shift in one of the specified work areas, classify in that work area.

(19) (20) (21) (22) (23) (24) €25) (28) (27) '..(28) (29)

OPEN PICK CARD SPIN| WIND| TWIST| SPCHL| WARP | SLASH | WEAVE | OTHzR

o™

Use actual wording of each question. Put X in appropriate square after each questlon.
When in doubt, record 'No'. When no square, circle appronrlate answer.

B. COUGH

"

"If 'Yes' to either qu

Do you usually cough first thing (jon getting up) in the morning?... Yes No ;A (3L)=%
(Count a cough with first smoke or on "first going out of doors’. ' ‘
Exclude cleam.nc throat or a single cough.) (If no, go to question 36)

Do you usually cough . dLrJ.nc the day or at nlcht..................... Ye No  (32)*
(Ignore an occasional cough. ) B
If 'Yes' to either question (31 or 32):

Do you cough like this on most déys for as much as three months a :i
s No, K33)

YEEP et teetonnionaacscocessocaroscssacsensanssoscncescssscsacsnasaea Y€
Do you ceﬁgh oo any particular day of the week?......ccccvvvncccec.. Yes No (34)

If 'Yes': Wnich day? (1) Monday (2) Tuesday (3) Wednesday (4) Thursday (5) Friday
' (6) Saturday (7) Sunday _ ‘ .. (35)

PHLEGM I -

Do you usually bring up any phlegm from. you" chest first thing (+on getting 3
up) in the morn*ng?................................................. Yes_ No ) (36)*

" (Count phlegm with the first smoke or on "first going out of doors"

Count swallowesd pnlegn. Exclude phlegm from the nose. ) o o

Do you usually bring up any phlegm from your chest during the day or o
at night? (Accept twice or more.)...c..eceevnn sreesenenn ceeeesnaannn Yes N A (37)%

o
[

tion (36 or 37):

Do you briﬁc up phlegm like this on most days for as much as three
TONTRS @8Ch YEar?.ceee it irvrernrrreanssonenesscrsesonacaansocneses . Yes No (38)

If''Yes' to questioa (33 or 38):

How long have you hai this phlezm? (1) [] 2 years or less, (2) [] more than
2 years to 9 years, (3) [] 10 to 19 years, (#) [] 20+ years. - (39)

50 Zé

i For subjects who work at nignt.




PELEGH éontinued

c.:

In the past three years, have you had a perlod of (+ increased) cough

and phlégm lasting for three weeks or more? (1) [] No; (2) L[] Yes, only

one period; (3) [] Yes, two or more periods.. C(uL)E

~ + For S?bjects who usually have phlegm.

D. HEST ILLNESSES

Durlna the past three years have you ‘'had any chest illness which has kept-
you off: work, indoors, at home or in bed?....ecc... ervseseas cecrane . Yes N (42)=
(For a5|lonc as one week, flu?) ‘ ' '

if 'Yes‘ to (42): Dld you bring up (more) phlegm than usual . in any
of these illnesses? Yes ' No (43)*

If 'Yes' to (43);v During the past three years have you had* ' (uy)
- . . | .

(1) £1 Only one such 1llness with increased phlegm'>
‘ L (2) [] More than one such J.J.J.ness'> s
S Bronchitis Grade:. 0 (o) _ ' {u5)
i L 1 - )
: ‘ L2 (2)
3 (3)

E. TIGHTNESS
: Does your chest ever feel tlcrht or your breathing become difficult? Yes zg No (46)*
5 (if 'No ', 80 to questlon (57) : '

Is your ichfas+ tight or your breathing difficult on any particular day _
of the we ek?,..(after a week or ten days away from the mlll) ......... Yes “No - (u7)*
If 'Yes': Which day? (1) Monday, always ¥2) Movdav, sometimes X 3) Tuesday - - (48)
' | ' (4) Wednesday (5) Thursday (o) rriday (7) Saturday ' 4
* (8) Sunday

|
If 'Yes' Monday: At what time on Mo1day does your chest feel tight or your -

breathing difficult? (49)

| (1) []gBefore entering the mill.
| (2) 1

it aftlf entering the mill: , /éi;%aiﬁ; . ;ﬁ?ﬁgzéi

After entering the mill.

g

How many hours after beginning of the shift does this begin? ~ (hours) (so)

How long does this tightness or breathing difficulty last?
| .

‘.
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TIGHTNESS continued

I
If 'Yes' Tuesday:

At what time on. Tuesday does your chest feel tlght or your breathlna :
difficult? : ' (53)

(l)![] Before entering tne mill.

(2) [1 After entoring the milln
If‘after;entering the mill:

How‘many houra affer tne.neginning of the shift does this-begin?-(hounsl___;.(SQ)

‘How long does this tlghtness or breauhlnd dlfflculty last° .~ (hours) (55, 56

[Answer bnly if 'No' to questlon (us)]

In the past, has your chest ever been tight or your breathing difficult on

any partlcular day of the week?; ............ seceracessen cessesses-ss Yes No (57)
If 'Yes'h ‘Vhich day? - (l) Monday, always (2) Monday, sometimas (3) .Tuesday {58)
‘ (4) Wednesday (5) Lhursday (6) Friday (7) Saturday
(8) Sunday
‘BREATHLESSN“SS

IL disabled from walking by any condition other than heart or lung disease '
put "X" here and go to. question (70). S [1 (59)*

ON WEEKENDS:
" Are you |ever trdubled by shortness of breath when hurrying on the level 2: )
No (60)

or walking up a sllcht hlll’........ ............... teerenscanaaneaies Yes

If "No', grade is 1 and go to questlon (70). If 'Yes', proceed to next
questlon. - :

| ‘ : . .
Do you gat short of breath walking with other people at an ordinary pace

the 1eVE1l7ceececccracevsaonsscoccs cesesssasensene S, ceesecsenan Yes JA No (s1)

I

rh

'!o'éigrade is 2. If 'Yes', proceed to next question. N

Do you Aave to stop for breath when walking at your own pace on the 3\
level?.iveeinrinennaes M eeeeerserencenarerrarasseenans et Yes N (62)

If 'lo', grade is 3. If 'Yes', proceed to next queastion.
Are yon!short of breath on washing or dressing? Yes No (63)

If 'No', grade is 4. If 'Yes', grade 1s 5, proceed to question (65).

Dyspnea Grade: e (64)

2 ..
L .
Cj;/ ’ '
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BREATHLESSNESS continued

On Mondays:

Are you
or walk

Ing up a slight hill?....iiiieiiierncncrerocncncecenacanenass YE

ever troubled by shortness of breath, when hurrying on the leve; :

If 'No',.gréde is 1. If 'Yes', proceed to next question.

.If 'Yeas

Do you get short of breath walking with other people at an ordinary pace
on the 1evel?..............u..........................,..............Yes

If 'No! -grade is 2. If 'Yes', proceed to -next question.

Do you have to stop for breath when. walking at your own pace on the level?

.......L.,..,....;.....u..........f...........,.........,........... Yes____
.IfAfNof,.grade-is_S;' If 'Yes', proceed to néxt question.

Are you sﬁort éf.b;eath on.wéshing and dfessing? ..... cesecsceconnnes Yeg;_-
If 'No'} grade is 4y, If "Yes', grade is 5.

"Monday Breathlessness Grade

0
%
1
2
3

~ OTHER ILLNESSES AND ALLERGY HISTORY

Do you have a heart condition for which you are under a doctors care?Yes

Do you have an allergy or teaction to.food or drugs?...c.cececececc...Yes

!
i
If 'Yes!,

specify the food or drug and

the realtién

Have you ever
| . )
, did it begin: (1) [J Before age 30. (2) [] After age 30.

If 'Tes! before 30: did you have asthma before ever going to work in a

cotton textile Mill?.eeceeteccsoes

--------------

Yes No
. [
Have you ever had hay fever or other allergies (other than abova?... Yes ;\ No

, did you have hay fever or allergies before ever going to work
.. Yes

If 'Yes

ave your parents, brothers, sisters or children had hay fever, asthma,
a food or drug allergy, or other allergies?......cevvecroccvennnn

had asthma?..,...;.................;...u;.....;;.;.... Yes -

... Yes

(66)
No (67)
No____ (88)
(1) (69)
(2) ,
(3)
(u)

(5)

No g\/'( 70 );"=

No _‘&('71)*

No
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TOBACCO SMOKING

OTHER \ILLNESSES AND ALLERGY HISTORY- continued

If 'Yes' to (77): Did those with these allergies work in a cotton textile
1 B ciecsesasssss Yes No (78)

If 'Yes' to (78): Did any of these who have worked in a cotton textile
mill have these allergies before ever going to work in the mlll°.... Yes No (79)

(0) : - (80)
(1) '

Allergy Grade: O
2 (2)
3
I

———————t

(3
T (4)

Do you smoke? Record 'Yes' if regular smoker up to one month ago. (Ciga-
c1gars or plpe)..................................................... Yes

If 'No' to (81):,. _
Have you ever smoked? (Cigarettes, cigars, ~p1pe. Record 'No' if subject
has never smoked as much as one cigarette a day, or 1 ounce of tobacco

a month for as long @S ONE YeaTr)..eeeetrececreccsccnrancssennesnnsss YOS No (8_2-)

If "No' to (82), go to (94).

If 'Yes' to (81) or (82): What have you smoked and for how many years°

Cigarettes g/ SJ (83, ' 83)

Pipe ) (85, 86)

| | Cigafs _ ' (87, 88)

If c1éarettes, how many c1garettes per day?..ceeenensn A{,f?549 (89, 90)

Number of pack years.................................. ;? ?jiz-r‘ (91, 92)
If an ex-smoker. (c1garettes, cigars & pipe), how long since you (93)_

stopped? (WPlte in number of years) (1) [] 0-1 years (2) [] 1-4 years

(3) [1 5-8 years (4) [] 10 + years

OCCUPATIONAL HISTORY

Have jou,ever worked in: A foundry (as long as one year?)...........Yes No ;; (9u)*

Stone or mineral mining, quarrying, or 'ix
processing, (as long as one year?).........Yes No 9

Asbestos milling or processing (ever?)..... Yes No #4(96)

" Cotton or cotton blend mill? (For controls




-

OCCUPATIONAL HISTORY continued

Have you ever worked in: .Other dusts, fumes or smoke? If.yes, specify
type of dust

- length of exposure

Yes

" At what age did you first go to work in a textile mill? (Write in s?iga

No 2-§(98)*

fic age.) . B
(99, 100)%

How many years have you worked in a textile mill? , (Write in total number & ears)

|
|-

If cotton, how many.years'did you spend in each area? (Write in years in each area)

(lOSS-l(lOG) ,(1Q75 (108) (109) '(110) (111)

Cotton or Cotton Blend
All Synthetic or Wool

. (112) (113) - (11s) = (115)
? JOPEN | PICK | CARD [SPIN | WinD | TWIST | SPOOL | WARP |SLASH | WEAVE | OTHER
—r L (1)
- L N (2)
-9 (3)
0-1k (%)
5-19 J sy
02u oy
5-29 \EZ' (7).
A .
T o (&)

% Key questions-

6

Lt i —————— et 4 T

101, 102)%
(103, 104)

(6)
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EVELYN ADAMS SMITH, CLAIMANT

V. Claim No. 660-~914

i
i
i
i
\
|
;

FIELDCREST MILLS, INCORPORATED, Employer
SELF INSURED

Edwin A. Gendron, Jr., Esq.

P. O. Box 351° ‘

Martinsville, Virginia 24112
For the Claimant

M.'Kenneth Doss
Associate General Counsel
326 E. Stadium Drive
Fieldcrest Mills, Incorporated
Eden, North Carolina 27288

For the Defendants

Hearing before Deputy Commissioner YATES at Martinsville,

Virginia, on September 10, 1980.

All witnesses having been duly sworn, the following

testimony was taken:

DEPUT& COMMISSIONER YATES:

| An agreed wage of $180.24. The defense is no occupational
.diseaSe. Secondly, even if it should be true, this lady has
byssinosis that it is not stageable undef the Virginia Act. If it

is not stageable, it is not compensable. And another defense is

there' is other causation that has intervened to cause the difficulty. -

Was there something else, Mr. Doss, as to your grounds of defense?
MR. DéSS: Yes, I think, if she would show up with any disability

would be just as likely the result of byssinosis.



AT
V™)

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES:

Right.
MR. DOSS:

| And if there is any disease, it is a disease common to

the general public.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES:

i

E Right. And the date of communication was furnished by

Mr.GengKHrand is indicated to be August 29, 1979 and that has be-
coﬁe by statute, the accident aate. I.have granﬁed.&efensghcounsel
the right to cross-examine any doctors propounded by the.claimant.
I havé granted’Mr. Gendron the right to cross-examine ﬁhe doctor
“who is reportedly submitted by the employer to whom the plaintiff
was/sént by the employer. :Apparently in furtherance of OSHA regu-
lations but nevertheless, you gentlémén can éo under Section 95

and I |think that will do it. Go right ahead, Mr. Gendron.

EVELYN ADAMS SMITH, CLAIMANT

1
BY MRJ GENDRON =

State your full name for the record, please?
Evelyn Adams Smith.

Ms. Smith, where ére you currently employed?
Fieldcrest Mills.

Where is that located?

A o R 2 ¢ - o

~Field Dale, Virginia.

2 : Ms. Smith, Claimant

59 _
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Field Dale, Virginia?

Yes.
! How long have you been employed there?
| Thirty-four years.

Do you remember whét year it was that you went to work
ithere? |
| July 22, 1946.

| [End of Tape 7]

i Okay, have you held any’job other than the job at
Fielderest Mills since 19462

No sir, ofher thén when I was about sixteen or seventeen,
iI worked in the five and ten-cent store. |
? Was that before you went to Fieldcrest?

Yes.

And then you went straight to Fieldcrest?

Yes. . | |

And you have worked there ever since?

Yes. | |

Okay. .When you first went to work at Fieldcrest, which
department did you work in?
In the yarn prepération.

Yarn preparation?

Yes.

3 60 Ms. Smith, Claimant

! | . ' _ <8
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Can you describe, if you know, when cotton comes into
the Fieldcrest Plant and what happens td‘it befofe it get to
the yarn preparation department? |
- Well, at that time, it started, you know, from the card
room and then it was spinned, you know, and then it wouidv
come into the yarn prepafation.' |
Now, at the Mill whére you work, are fhese three rooms
separéted?

No, sir.

'So the Card Room, Spinning Room, and Yarn Preparation
are all together? . |

Yes.

Whét do they do ih fhe card room?

Well they rbll_cotton, ybu.know, make rolls of cotton
that they use in the épinning room.,

Where does thebcotton come from in the card room?

I don't knéw where it.éomes from.

Well, I don't mean what field does it come from but I
mean does‘it come into the plant, into the card réom, or does
it éome from another department or What?

No, it comes into the card room.

It is delivered directly to the card room, so that is
the raw materiél?

As far as I know, you know, it is, vyes.

a 64 -~ Ms. Smith, Claimant
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? And then from the card room they do what with it there?

They make the yarn that they spin with.
.And then they send it to the spinning department?

Yes.

Then what does spinningvdo with it? |

Well, they make bobbins, you know, that they use in the
yarn Preparation.

i When'you‘say that they méke'bobbins,Aéan you describe
ﬁt a little bit?

E Well you just run off the yarn, you know, on these
's@inners that makes the yarn, for the spools and all like
that to run in the yarn preparation.
How does it come out bf the card room, what does it look

like?

| Well, just as long as I have been down there, I don't

know wihethexr. I can explain it or not. But it seems round, ah,
you know, round cones like, big large cones, and it sits in
the spinning room that rolls off into bobbins.

Okay, So when it comes out of the card room it is on
conhes?
Uh Ah.
What kind of cones are they?

Well, down there in the spinning room, they are on wooden

cones.,

5 - ‘:2 Ms. Smith, Claimant

/:’ 7y . .
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They come out of the card room and the cotton is wrapped

around wooden cones?

Yes.

And then in the spinning room they take this cotton on

the wooden cones and what do they do with it there?

It is run on, well, some of them are run on Xeys. that

are used on the spoolers and other are run on cones, you kow,
S | _
that is what we run on our job.

The spinning room puts it on different type cones?

The spinning room don't, the yarn preparation does.

Well, I am still in the spinning room, then, okay.

Oh yes, I'm sorry.

We moved from card over to spinning, when it comes out

of card it is on the wooden spools?

Yes.

Or the wooden cone?

Thats right.

And in the spinning room, what do they do with it?
Well, they make, yéu know, ah, in the spinning room all

do is make yarn on the bobbins.

Okay, well you indicated earlier it comes out of the card

as yarn on a cone?

Yes.

6 63 - Ms. Smith, Claimant
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Does the spinning room refine that yarn somehow, do they

make it into better thread, or what? |
Weli, I guess they do. They make into, you know, into
thread fhat theyvuse in the spools that they spool with.

Okay. Thén When it comes into yarn preparation, which ié‘
your department, | o |

Yes. . |

How does it look?

It is madeon cones now that we run. It is bff_on-big

jround large cones.

How big are they?
- I.really don't know but I think they use the, will last,
will run about forty~-five minutes, if théy don't have ahy.
préaks.
7 Well; I mean what size altogether?

Oh, its about like this.

May be é foot and a half or two feet around?

Yes, I guess, I don't kﬁow héw

How high? |

Oh they are about like that, they are just a round, you

know, just a round sheet, cone rather.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: She is showing

about a foot high.

7 64 - Ms, Smith, Claimant
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Yes, it is made into yarn then.

And the cotton is wrapped around that cone?
 Can you tell us some kind of comparisom about the

\
\
&ondition of the cotton when it reaches your department, does

it look more like a cotton béll in a medical kit or more like |
a piece of cloth on your shirt or what? R :
| Wéll,-it's.Wrapped around a éone and it's, you knéw,-it's
ﬁust a hard, it is hard, y¢u know} and wrapped around there hard
I%@an and thenygut it on our Job ana run it off to make bobbins.
i What is your job called? ‘ |
| Qﬁill attender.
What does that involve, @uill attender?
It makes-yarn forAthe weave room.
.So you are further refining the yarn, then.
"A Yes.
l You are making it.into.better.yarh with every process?
| Yes. |
And you are making it into yarn that goes to the wéave-
room?'. |
Yes.
: Now, what does your machine do and what do yéu do with
i' Well, it was eight, I run eight machines and as I run,
| ’ .
\

‘ | 8 635 Ms. Smith, Claimant
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into bobbins.

What is it now, is it a cone or a bobbin?

1
I

| Well, a bobbin is just a small little bobbin that they
use in the weave room that we prepare. And a cone is.a, well,
it is different sizes in cones. They could use the large
éones iﬁ our departmen£ that we ran.

| I see, in other words you are running it from somevkina
of a bulk packagé into a smaller package

}. Yes. .' . . s

| - That is used for seWing?

Yes.

Okay and. what does your machine do other than change the
éontainer for the cotton, does it change the condition of the
cotton as well?

‘ Ah, well, it naturally, it runs it, you'kndw, it is
ﬁunning all the time, for eight hours, or if it is not stopped
off.

Well I mean while it is running what ié it doing to the
dotton?

probably

Well, I guess you can, it/sturs up some dust and_ah—

Let me see if I can ask it this way, is it changing the
condition of the cotton any? | |
| No, I wouldn't think so;

Okay.

9 ' Ms. Smith, Claimant
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So it comes off of the cones and goes on to the bobbins .

in the same condition?
Yes, I would think it would, yes.
Léoks the same when it is transfered fo the bobbins?
Yeé. |
Okay, so.primarily then your job as a quill atténdér was
to get this cotton from the cone onto smaller bobbins?
' Yes. |
And you ran.eight machines a day?
Yes.
- How mény‘hours_a day did you work?
It was eight.
Eight hours a day?
. Yes.
Ahd what did‘you do, what was.your actual job?
Well, you quilled your yarn on and run it off into bobbins,

you watch for breaks, you tied them up when the yarn' broke, and

it was, you know, all through the years they made changes. It

wasn't near like when I went out, like it was when vaent there.
Ah Uh.

And they have changed in the years to come in the
difference in the bobbingp the difference in the size, the
Jifference in the cdnes, and a lot of difference from the

through _
Fard room down / the spinning room, down through the yarn

10§;? Ms. Smith, Claimant
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preparation. And it is just hard to remember, you know, just

when and how that they have made the changes.

Okay, well, say in the last ten years, what basically
was your job?

Same, quill aﬁtender.

Alright, when you say, you-quill, what does thaﬁ mean?
‘Wéll, it means I quill yarn 6n'and then tie it on to a
bobbin.

So.yéu just put-the'éone on the machine?

Yes. Like, you know, like I put it on, like tﬁié..

Uh. |

And then you run.it through, and thread it, and tie it on
to a quill, and'that‘makes yarn. Ah, on a bobbin, makes yafn

-

on the bobbin. .

Okay. And fhen yoﬁ have to watch it to make Sufe that
there are no breaks or |

Yes.

Nothing that stops?

Yes;

And you were responsible for eight machines?

Yes.

How many machines, quilling machines were in that room?

Sixteen.

11 ' Ms. Smith, Claimant
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Q ! And what was in the spinnihg department?

A |  Well, I}don't know how much, you know, I'didn;t work in
the spinning department.. It was all the way across, you know,
%hé building. But I don't know how many spinnihg frames they
ﬂad there. | -

Q - Can you give us a reasonable éstimate?

A e Well, it would be hard to say.

0 Well, if you can't, that's okay. Now, in the carding
toom,Add they haVevmachines in the card room?

A Yes.
YJ- | What do they do with those machihes?

A ! -They‘made cotton, I.reckon, or rolled the cottoﬁ off in
the spools, yOﬁ know,.that they used in the spinning room.

Q . ‘And all of these departments were in the same big room?

A | Well, it is the card room, and the spinning room, and
ﬂhe yarn preparation. It's just, you know, all one big
building. Only, you'knéw, we don't, it‘s a lot of space in
ﬁetween the card room and where we worked at. :
T Were there walls between it for every room?

A ? No, there wasn't no walls but I mean it just, you know,
just space. It is a great big roomﬁ» |

5 Okay. then every department is in the same room?
A ‘ Yes.

12 Ms. Smith, Claimant
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And normally you worked an eight-hour day?
Yes. | |
How many days a week did YOu work?
Well, five days. We worked a lot of overtime, we did,
one time worked a lot of overtime.

When was that?
: Well,fI haven'tbworkedkfoo much, ah, bvertime I would
say'its been.close to two years. It'run;around forty hours
until just recently'we.have worked shorter time.'
What shift were you working?
i worked second for twenty~-five years and then I am -
working first ﬁow.'
Can you describe the air in your room'érOund the areév
where you worked?
Well, ah, it was, as I stated, they have made a lot of
:haﬁges»in the years tb come but when I first went there to
WOrk, they would do the blowing, you know, overhead and
cleaning up, you know, the whole mill. Overhead they would
blow down and it would, you know, settle on your méchin&sand
theﬁ they would
What settled on your machines?
The cotton, and the dust, and allj-you know. ‘And_sé
then they would have to stop your job and blow off, the job

off, you know, and then'they would, you know, would sweep

13 . Ms. Smith, Claimant
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thé floors and get all the dust and all up. And then after

years to come, they stopped, you know, blowing overhead and
cleaning up like that and they would take a shiftthat the mill

@as stopped off.
| : .
- Well, we will come back to that in a minute. When you

Eaid, blowing overhead, they were blowing cotton?
: Yes.
3 Where was the cotton that they were blowing?

Well, it Was the cotton that settles overhead,_you_know,
én the pipes and on these heating pipes, and overhead, and
it would just settle on the machines and it would just settle
all-in the mill, you know. |

How did they get it off?

‘They would blow it, they blowed it down with a blow pipe.

With a blow pipe?
é Yes. ' -
* Is that while.ydu were vorking?
! -Yes, uh ah.
| What @id the air look like when they did that?
Well, it was feal, real, dusty. Now you would usually
have to get out, you know, when they were right over your head

L

Hlowing you would have to leave for a little while. And it

would just be, you know, just full of dust and lint and just like

any place with cotton would be like.

-
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How long did you stay gone ‘if you left?

Well,'we:didn't you know, couldn't stay too long. But

sometlmes we would stay ah, may-be thirty mlnutes and then

come back or sometlmes we wouldn t be gone that long. It would

just be, kind of, according to how they were rushing us on our
fllllngs. |
What did the air lsok like when you returned?
Well, you know,'it.was still dusty.
How long did it stay dusty? |
Well, I'm just guessing, you know, at the best that i
can, would think but‘ I guess it would be around an hour be-
fore all of it, right in our part, would, you know, kind of
settle down.
, Okay. And I was talklng about blow1ng off the accumulated
dust over head?
Yes, that‘would be cleaning up.
And you mentioned also blowing off the mach:i.nes'>
Yes, that was when I left yarn preparations they were
still blow1ng machines.

now
I am talking about years back/before they made their
changes. |
Oh, vyes.

?_ Say fifteen or twenty years ago, how did they blow off

 the machines then?

oA Ms. Smith, Claimant
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Well, they would just use.the blow pipe and just blow them.

ust, you know, blow them all off.

What time of day would they do that?

- Well, they had different times, youiknow, théy started

down through the years.' They used to stop them off at eleveﬁ
and now they sto? thém off at: twelve. '
What you were working eight machines at that time, twenty

years ago?

Yes. .
Did they blow off all eight machines every day?
Yes. |

Okay, and what did that entail?

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: Shotldn't
we be hearing what they've done in the last
five years?

MR. GENDRON: No Sir, I don't think

so, I believe the medical evidence will
.indicate byssinosis is something that can
cause very early on--and be irrepairable
within a few years.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: Is that

one of the exceptions that allows exposure
to go back to an unlimited time. Is

?
byssinosis in that category like =mstirofelibdoma?

16 . | Ms. Smith, Claimant
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MR. GENDRON: I wculd say so.

DEPUTY COMMISSTIONER YATES: Is it in

the Statute that way?

MR. GENDRON: I don't know.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: --—-exposure

- of course, but there is no statutbry

limitation going back, like radium, asbestos,
and there are several more that are specifically
listed and I am just wondering if you are saying
cotton is one of them?

MR. GENDRON: Well, the Statute of Limitations

of course for filing the claim is two years from
date of discovery and five yeafs from last employ- |
ment and we filed it within two yeérs of date d discovery.

- DEPUTY COMMISSIONER VYATES: Last employment

or last injurious exposure?

MR. GENDRON: Last of injurious exposure,

I'm sorry. And we complied with that Statﬁte and
now we are establishing how she got the exposure
and it may well be that the most injurious portion
of her eprsure was twenty-five or thirty years
ago. And it could have become irreversible at that

time.

17 74 o Statements
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Ms. Smith, we were talking about blowing off your

particular machine twenty-some years ago and you indicated

‘that they blew off your machine once a day, did they do them

fall at the same time or one at a time?

| Well, at thet particular time, they were deing them all
at one time and we were kind of in the middle of ah, you know,
Phere they were doing all the blowing. They were blowing |
from the spool room down ih our part and the winders that

was down below us at that time and we were right in the middle.

So we were where, you know, we would always get the most of

the cotton and the dust and the dirt and all that, you know.

So you were continuing'to work during the time that the

ﬁachlnes were belng cleaned?
1 Well, we had to some. |
Z How long did it teke to clean the machines?

It would usually, and all together, of course, one would
%1nlsh may-be a little sooner than the other but altogether
it would take around an hour. |

Any process involved in cleanlng the machines was 51mply
blowlng the cotton off, was it?

; Yes.

Well what did the air look like when they blew the-cetton
?ff the machines?

i

Real dusty{ dirty looking.

[
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| How long did that last?
‘ Back years ago, I think it would take them around an hour,
é think, o get all the cleaning ana all they did, done.
|

Can you describe the air in the room at the times that
they weren't blowing cotton dust Of£? |

Well, you really couldn;t, you know, you couldn't really

see anything,without it was somebody doing some blowing or

%omething.like that, you know, you couldn't really, you know,
éee nothing in the air.' But it was,-you know, it waS~a.lot

éf lint and all because you could tell by the way it would
get on your clothes and in your hair, and all of that.

‘At the end of the shift, can you describe how you loocked?
Well, we had to blow off before we went out. We would

either have to go out with-cotton in your hair or either you

ﬂad to come and brush it out one.
|

] .
BY DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: Q How long ago was this?

Well, that has been.all these years that I have been .-
working there until just recently.
What is, just recently?

MR. GENDRON: I am going to come to

all of that.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: I will just

say this to you, Mr. Gendron, the defense

may come up to show that she has had

19 "6 Ms. Smith, Claimant
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absolutely no exposure in the preceding

five years and ah

MR. GENDRON: Your Honor, please I, we

are going to work from the beginning to the
| end. Since exposure happens'to be an issue
‘ in this case, I think we need to cover it
thoroughly and we will deal with the last

five years.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: I am just
trying to push you to that point.

MR. GENDRON: We'll get there, ha.

You were blow1ng off for years after your work shift, is
i .

that what you are say1ng9
. Yes.
When you say) you were blowing off, what does that mean,

what did you have to do?

Well, you would just take a blow pipe, you know, and just

'blow your clothes off.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: Like a barber

does when you get a haircut, I guess, is what

it means, Mr. Gendron.

MR. GENDRON: Yes Sir, right. I have to

fill the requirements : of the record.

20 ' Ms. Smith, Claimant
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} Now, just so we don't overlook this, when did you stop
Flowing off? Personally?
| Ah, Well, I hope I'ﬁ right, but‘I think it has been
about a year ago they stopped us from blowing off.
What do you mean, they stopped you from blowing off?
Well, thay just asked us to qg@it using the blow pipe.
They asked you to quit u51ng it, why were you still
biow1ng off mp:until a year ago?

| - :
' Well, because we were dirty, we had lint and cotton all

‘over us?

Where did the lint and cotton come from?

All over the‘mill, from totton I guess.

Now, we were talking about blowing off overhead and
blow1ng off the machines fifteen and twenty years ‘ago, dld
that go on all through the period of your employment w1th
ﬁleldcrest?

‘ Yes. |

But you mentioned some changes?

Yes. | |

What changes took place recently?

Well, they have did a lot of cleaning up and work in the
éard room and down through the spinning. They have cleaned
ﬂt up. And they have QOt up to the yarn preparation and they

are putting in, I think the way that I understood it, which I

21 78 Ms, Smith, ClaJ_mant
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am not there right now but it is something like a vacuum, that

is something,that sucks all the dust up.

UH Huh.

“And it is really getting to be a clean place to work

and my department that I was working at, is, they are working -

on it now. And then when they finish that, they will be
through.
Sb they started down in card, and spinning, and they are
Working ﬁoward the yarn preparation?
Yes.
You are not working in yarn preparation amymore?
No. |
"When did you leave yarn prepafation?
‘ ' now

It was in May but I have forgotten/what day it was.

Okay. What was the cdndition of the air in yarn

preparation when you left?
VI'don't know.

Had the éircumstances changed much as far as the cotton
?ust in the air at the time that you left yarn preparation?
No, it-was the same.

About the same?
Yes.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES:

Are ybu claiming any disability from work

- other than a staged situation?

7S
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MR. GENDRON: No Sir, this claimant

is filed purely under Section 56.1 Sub-
Section 20, as specified.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: What

stage are .you claiming?

MR. GENDRON: Three. .

Okay, so, from the condition you described twenty years

ago, when you left thé yarn preparation department the
conditions had not changed drastically, is that what you are

‘saying?

Yes.

But changes were being made in the area?

Yes. |

- overhead vacuum cleaner, you mentioned installed?

In our part?

In the yarn preparation?

It was after I left from up there.

After you left?

Yes.

Did you ever wear a respirator or é mask or anything?

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: I don't have

anything filed in defense of any violation of
the safety rule?

MR. GENDRON: Well

23 ‘ Ms. Smith, Claimant
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DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: T haVen't

found one.

MR. GENDRON: No Sir, that is not the

purpose of this, introduction of this

evidence, though.

DEPUTY CQMMISSIONER YATES: Okay.

Did you ever wear a mask or respirator?

Théy had started, right before.I went out.of u$ wearing
them. And that was, you'know, it was real hard_to‘brééfhe
vith one on in there. | |

Did you try?

I tried, yes.

Were you able to use it?

Well, I tried and it was awful hard.

Was wearing a respirator something that was voluntary,

or was it a - company . requirement?

V_It was a company requirement.
Okay. Was it required in.. the card room?
Not at that time, noy they didn't.
Was it required iﬁ the spinning room?
No.
- But it was required in yarn preparation?

Yes.

24 81 Ms. Smith, Claimant
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Did you ever smoke cigarettes?
Yes.
When did you bégin to smoke cigarettes?

Well, when I was a real young girl I smoked a little

i

while and then I stopped, and then I don't, I guess, it was,

|
I/ am not good at years but I will do the best I can in
L : o . :
rémembering. It was, may-be; I was around 'forty' or some-
tﬁing. I started smoking with my husband and, ah, so I
| : .

s*oked about two and a half years égo.

You smoked from the time that you were 'forty' until.

two and a half years ago?

Yes,-now that is the best that I can remember the years.

Okay.

It was after my little girl was born and she is thirteen

‘so I will have to kind of-

| Give your child.noﬁ roughly ninevyears then, is that
right?
N Yes.

| During the nine-year-period, how many packs a day did
yég smoke? | |

i Well, I smoked, ah, it was over a pack. It would be

a%ound from a pack and a half to two packs of cigarettes a

d%y.
|
i
i
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Were you ailowed to smoke in the mill?

Yes.

During the time you were working?

Well, we had, you know, smoking booths where we could
take

Had to take é-breék to go and smoke?

Yes. |

This back and a half to two packs a dayvthat,you
smoked, were they filter cigarettes? |

Yes. ’

Is there anything’special.about the way that you smoked
them? | | |

Yes, I thihk that the reasén that i smokéd. it was just
2 ner&ous tension like and, that I was just smoke, just to
be, I reckon, just doing something. And I was, you know, I
would light one and‘sometimes I would lave two cigarettes 1lit
at the same time. And it was just,rmre'or less, jusﬁ a.
nervous thing. |

Did you smokelthé whole cigarette when you smoked?

No, I just more-or-less let it burn up.

Can, let me ask you this first; do vou have a prdblem
with your breathing now? |

| Well, i have, like if I‘climb steps, or if I overwork,vI

do.
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When did you first notice your breathing problem?

Well, this is another real hard question, it has been
years ago. I worked twenty—five years on second shift before
I got day and before then I had some problems of breathing.
Because like, when I would go out of the mill at night and
hlt the cold air, you know, I could tell its real tlghtness.

Uh Huh

- And then when I would go home, you know, and llke for a

ﬁlttle while when I would get home, it would be the same way.

|

éfter I went to work on days when. you go out of air conditioned

and hit hot air, its just, you know, it is just an awful
feellng. You just can't get no breath or nothing. |
Your breathing problems them‘first manifested themselves
about twenty years ago?

Yes, You know, of course,

And you began to smoke about ten or eleven years ago?
- Yes.

What, if any, breathing problems‘did you have before you
&ent to work at Fieldcrest?
| Not any.
Do you have any other problems other than shortness of
breath?

No.

?”n Ms. Smith, Claimant
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" and Mondéy was ‘your worse day, how far into the week did it

When you first noticed your breathing problem, did you

motlce any relations, well, let me put it this way: was it
better, worse, or no difference, when you were 1n the mJ.ll'>
Well it was worse when I was in the mill.
How did you notice it?

Well, like the first day that you would go back to work

- if it was a Monday, or any first day from being out for a

while and you would go in, well, gradually on up into the day

Qou would just get short of -breath, and you would have this

tightness in your chest,. and you would almost have to just

pant for breath, which I was doing when I went out of there.
And as I say, the first day of any week was always the worse.
Okay, noW, ﬁhat was when you first noticed your problem?
Yes.

‘Was that true just up until recently when you léft it?

Yes,

Your first day was still the worse?
‘Yes.

When you first began to notice your breathing problems

continue to bother you?

Well, as I recall at first, you know, it wéuld you know,

'after the first day, the others would be, you know, pretty

good. And then when I went out, after I went to Dr. Harris

28 85 : Ms. Smith, Claimant

/7O :



ol A s o

SR

then I went out for about two months with my leg. ‘Then when

I went back, I couldn't tell any difference in any days, they

all wére bad. I couldn't breathé, you know, at all. I mean,
Lne day was just as bad as the'other.l I guess . just staying
cut for a whilelahd then going back into it is what caused it
to‘be so bad. |

Now, you are not in yarn preparation any more?

No.

Where are you working now?

. Down ih the seWingrdepartment.

What do fhey do in the sewing department?

Well, they just hem towels and cut towels and where I am

at, they mostly hem them and pick the first class out of
ééconds.‘ | -

How are you breathing now? _
y ' Well, it is a whole lot better.. I don't have no problem,
Qoﬁ know, as lohg as I don't have to walk up steps,or iift,
or overwork, I do fine.

What happens when you have to walk up steps or 1lift?

Well, I just have to stop and wait and, I just can't

‘rush up them, I just have to, you know, for I am so out of

breath I can't make it.
Did anybody at Fieldcrest ever tell you that cotton dust
would cause any damage?

No.

29 86 Ms. Smith, Claimant
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Can you describe your functions at home?

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: Is this

going to help ﬁs any, Mr. Gendron?

MR. GENDRON: Probably not. I will

Have .you:hadany cotton dust exposure, Ms. Smith, that you

are aware bf,'anywhere other than at Fieldcrest Mills?

MR. DOSS: I don't have any questions.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: Alright,

then leave, do you have anyone else?

MR. GENDRON: No, Sir.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: Do you

- MR. DOSS: Mr. Baggett, please,

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: Allright, -

Q
withdraw the question.
Q
A No.
0 Answer to Mr. Doss, please.
?
have anyone to put on?
- Your Honor.
go ahead.
KENNETH ROGER BAGGETT, WITNESS

BY MR. DOSS:

Q

A

State your full name, please?

KENNETH ROGER BAGGETT,.

30 : Ms. Smith, Claimant

87 _
’. / // )/'




>0 » 0 » ©

Where do you live, Mr. Gaggett?

Greensboro, North Carolina.

By whom are you employed?

o Fieldcrest Mills.

In what capédity are you employed?

Director of Safety, Workmen's Compensafion, and OSHA
Compliance. v
- MR. DOSS: And I would like to mark
these three for identifiéation. |

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: Are these

to be admitted into evidence?
MR, DOSS: Yes, let me look at them

‘and I will see how many of them Mr. Gendron

has got.

late to and. . entail.

brogram for Fieldcrest Mills. They relate to the total self
insured‘Workmen's Compensation Programs for Virginia,
orth Carolina, and Georgia.

Alright, sir.

Théy.relate to the total cooperate compliance pngrams

for all OSHA standards and regulations.

31 88 '~ Mr. Baggett, Witness
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\ Mr., Baggett, specifically what does your job duties re-

They relate to the total safety and accident prevention _



Mr. Baggett, state whether or not is a part of your duties,

'and your job duties, whether or not it is your responsibility
to be aware of and see to the measurements of dust'levels in
bur plante? A

| Since the OSHA Act was enacted in 1971, after that it has

been my responsibility. _

| I want you to look at, if that is Exhibit 1 which is also

attached

MR. DOSS: Your Horor, is Exhibit B to.

the answers to the interrogatories. _ |
" And identify it for me, please? |
This is a compilation of the respirable dust levels at
the Fieldale Towel Mill Quilling Department.
Is this the department that Ms. Smlth was worklng in?
Yes, it is.
State what the permissable limits of levels weretin‘that'

&rea at the time that those levels were taken?

MR. GENDRON: I object, no proper

foundation has been laid for that.’

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: You mean
the OSHA limits?

MR. DOSS: That's right.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: Am I to

conclude that if I allow the testimony that

89
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if it is within the OSHA limits that is

therefore must follow that there can be

- no injurious exposure, is that the con-

clusion that you are driving toward?

MR. DOSS: It is evidence of lack
of exposure or it is e?idence of lack of
sufficient exposure. We are going to take
other téstimony as the Commissioner has
already indicated and this is just part of
it. It won't all rise and fall on the
strength 6f one person's testimony.
Mr. Baggett has already testified that he
is responsible for the .OSHA compliance and
we think that it bears on the levels. She
has testified as to how dﬁsty it was and
it floating in the air, and hanging on the
ceiling, and things like this, and We are
entitled to shbw what those levels were
for the behefit of the record. ‘As to
whether or not they were permissable by OSHA
standards and the evidence will speak for
itself.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: I will let

it come in but I would recommend both sides

Statements
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y”m‘.

to look at Volume 58 6fAthe printed
Commission Opinions that has just been
released. None of them deal with
cotton dust bu£ deals.with the extent .
of the amount of exposure in asbestos.
‘And therevare several cases in there

in which £he‘Full Commission and, I be- -
ldieve, the éupréﬁe Court took ohe of‘
those. I know about the case Nixon v.

Caudel Hyatt, it is 219 Virginia, I

_believe. But you all take é look through
there and see what the Commission has been
doing with these, but I will let this come
in.

What were the permissable limits at that time in that

§rea?

‘The time, the dates of the sample shown on this sheet

the_permissable limits was a thousand micrograms.

-And what are those figures there

BY DERPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES:

Q

A

© Per what?

Per cubic metér of air.

MR. GENDRON: Those are not OSHA

standards.

{
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At the time of these samples.

MR. GENDRON: Your Honor, just for

the record, I will register a hearsay to

that,

BY MRL DOSS:

State what the figures thet are on this exhibit and what
'terms are they expressed?
These are expressed in micrograms per cubic meter of air.
Okay. I want you to look at Defendant's Exhibit.é and
'Lell me what that is a copy of.
Thls is a compllatlon of the total plant's cotton dust
;evels. 'This is expressed in milligrams per cubic meter of -
air. |
Alright, does it show the area in which Ms. Smith would
have been employed?
| No, it doesn't. |
MR. DOSS: We will withdraw‘that

one, Your Honor. I thought it showed the

area. | |
Identify that exhibit for me, please. sir?
This is a complilation of all of the spirometry that has

been administered to Ms. Smith since the Fieldcrest Mills
’ rd

medical surveillance program was, had its census—-

35 Mr. Baggett, Witness
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State whether or not this is the compilation of

pulmonary function tests that were provided as exhibits to
answer to your interrogatories?

Yes, it is.

You reviewed those?

Yes sir.

‘What are the figures that.are represented on thé chart,
and what are the figures that are fepfeSented by the
pulmonary function test? : | -

The FEV-1 and the FVC.

Is that the test that are performed on Ms. Smith to

‘demostrate pulmonary function?

Yes it is and those two =-- the FEV-1 and FVC;

Now, on thié spirometerAtest that was gubmitted in
gnswers.to interrogatories and on the chart here which shows
it altogether once, there is more than one FEV-1 figure and
ﬁVC figure, what do those represent?

| Those represeht a FEV-1 and FVC prior to going to work

1

and FEV-1 and FVC after six hours of exposure.

What is the purpose of having a spirometer test at the

%ime upon entering the mill and a spirometer test six hours
éfter being in the mill?

)

|
| To determine reactivity to the enviroment.

36 93 Mr. Baggett, Witness'
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Would you state what the figures on

as to the reactability of Mrs. Smith?

MR. GENDRON: Objection. It calls
for a medical conclusion. .

MR° DOSS: No it doesn't, he is
reading his figures.

MR, GENDRON: Well, that is an

interpretation of a medical examination.

- MR, DOSS:: It is not a medical exami~ .

nation.

DEPUTYV COMMISSIONER Y_ATES: _Who took
the test, who administered it?

MR. DOSS: Under the auspices of
Mr. Baggett's office. ﬁe has testified

earlier that it is his job to administer

‘these programs and to see that they are.

taken care of. We respectfully submit
and he will testify from his records, from
the records that are kept in his office.

ME. GENDRON: Your Honor, if I may, he

- also said that it was an indication of

pulmonary function which is obviously a
medical question and he is offering an

interpretation of a medical examination.

3 94 Statements
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MR. DOSS: The mills are required
by OSHA standards, Your Honor, to keep
these records. We are suppose to take
the test on entering, before enteriﬁg
the building and after six hours exposﬁre.
Mr. Baggett has got to apply some sort of
interpretation in administering the pro-
gram. The figﬁres speak for themseives..
I am not asking him to give medical .
opinions, I am asking him to determine, te
state what the figures that are shown on
the pulmonary function test Which has
already been submitted to Mr. Gendron reflect.
And he is entitled to show that. “He has to

do that to admister the program under OSHA

regulations

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: Who gives

the test, though?
'MR. DOSS: There are several people who
give the test.

DEPUTY COMMISSICONER YATES: Medical

sources?

MR. DOSS: Not all. This is not any

different from the same test that is given
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by the -- Lung Association in the base-
ment of the Baptist Church.:

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATSES: Oh, I

realize that if ydu go in the hospital
you get a lot of tests that is done by
- lab techniclans that are, very likely, a

part of the record.

MR. GENDRON: Those tests are inter-
preted by medical doctors.

| | DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: I agree.

MR. DOSS: Not entirely.

MR. GENDRON: Well, at that, the item

speaks for itself, why dqn't you just
introduce it and let it speak for itself,
.why does it call for an interpretation?

MR. DOSS: Alright, wili you égree
to that?

MR. GENDRON: Well, it's going in over

my objection but its in already.
MR, DOSS: 1I'll do that. It will
shdrten the problem.

MR. GENDRON: Alright.

i MR. DOSS: That is No. 3, Your FKFonor.
And I'll give you No. 1 back, and ¥WNo. 2

96
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DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MILLER: Any other

questions?
MR. DOSSs No, Sir.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MILLER: Mr. Gendron.

o GENDRON:

"I o T YRS S, YR SRS

Mr. Baggett, with regard to Exhibit No;'l which'was some
sort of indication that the pollution levels'iﬁ the qﬁilling
department? |

That is correc£.

vaw arevthey'measured?_

A vertical elutriator.

Beg your»pardon?:

Avvertical elutéiator.

And where is that placed?

‘Vertical eluctriator is placed‘in'proximity to the work
sta£ions of. the individuals(és>to determine the -- levels of
air that they would be exposed tb as they travérsed through
their work areas. | A |

You mean it is placed‘in on the level where the
employee happens to be? |

Approximately five feet, seven one-half inches to theA——
Can you recall your answer to the original interrogatories
filed about, let's see how the thing was, there were any
pollution measurement devices, I believe was the question

Yes sir.

97

Mr. Baggett, Witness

/v




>

d0O » ©

The answer was, there were no permanent devices in-

stalled.

There is never a permanent

Wait a minute, let's let him have a chance to look at

the question, Your Honor. Okay which‘question'are you asking?
What is your question, sir°

Question 6 of the Interrogatorles I originally flled was
to oleaee state whether each of the rooms listed in questlon 2
has a dev1ce designed to measure air pollutlon and 1f 50, -when
was - the device 1nstalled° The answer was, measurement |
reportlng of air pollution or 1nhalants are under the direction

of Ken Baggett and Lee Investor. To my knowledge, there is no

|permanent: installation of such a device. The interrogatories

were signed by you. How often was that device placed in the
rooh?‘ |

Every six months.

Every six months, for what period of time?

.For a period of six hours approximately four te six hours.
depending upon particular- -

And when was the last time it was in thebroom?

The last time this

The last time that partiCularitest Qas run?

-— when, she worked, I think, . Mrs. Smith stateithat she

worked on the first shift.

41 A Mr. Baggett, Witness
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Right.
Was in there on, on March 24, 1979.
That was the last time?

Yes.

Is that all that document shows, the results of that

March 24th test?

The March 24th test, the January, 1979 test,. the

September, 1978 test.

~all?

Okay, so it goes back to September, 1978 and that is

| On that document.
Did you do the compilation of the Spirometery test,
yourself? | |
; No sir.
Somebody else compiled that?
Yes sir. .
So you can't vertify whether or not those figures are

accurate?

No sir. -

Thank you.

MR, GENDRON: Thank, you, that's all

I have.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: 1I'll give

thirty days to have the depositions taken
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and the transcripts in the Commission's

interrogatories and all answers be made a

part of this record?

MR. GENDRON: Yes, Sir.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: Do you,
Mr. Doss?v
MR. DOSS: Yes, Sir.

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER YATES: The answer.

is 'yes' from both attorneys. Okay, and I

think that will do it.‘-

office. And do you gentlemen ask that the
WITNESSES DISMISSED
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Pneumozonioses (international classificat’ Vs é, UM ' A
T ' R’ y [
TADLE 98. INTERNATIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF PEKRSISTENT RADIOLOGICAL OPACITIES IN THE LUNG FIELDS .
. PROVOKED BY ‘THE INHALATION OF MINERAL DUSTS*
' ’ {Geneva, 1958)
No-
pneumo- | SUSPECT PNEUMOCONIOSIS
coniosis
Type of Linear e s
opacity opacities Small opacities Large opacities
"Qualitative
features o z L P m n
—_—— A B C
- Quantitative ’
¢ features . t{2(3i1f2lsf1{e|s3
< - ' -
Additional . .
symbols {co)/{cp) (ev) {di) {em) {hi) J - {ph) ‘ {px) l (tb)

* Including coal and carbon dusts,

DEFINITION AND COMMENTS

The object of the classlfcal!on is lo codify the rad:ologacal appearances of the pneumoconioses in a simple, easily reproducible way. It is_intended
lo describe the radiographic appearances of lhe persisltent opacities assocxaled with pneumoconiosis, not fo dcf’rjle pathological, entities, nor
to luke inlo account the question of working capacity. .

\there fl’xlerle is an appreciable difference in the appearance of the two tungs, the lwo appearances may be described separulely, begmnmg
with the riyht lunqg. .

2&%2?:;5 o No radiographic evidence of pneumoconiosis.
Suspect Z Ine 4 lung Ki o
opacities ncreased lung markings.
‘Pneumoconiosis
i‘;‘;z?&eq -L Numerous linear or reticular opacities, the lung pattern being normal, accentuated or obscured.
The categorisation depends on lhe erlen! and
: the profusion of the opacilies.
The followiny types are defined according to -
: . = Calegory 1: A small number of opacities In an
ihegrealestdlameleroflhePredommanlopacthes. area equivalent to at least two anterior rib
- : . . - i spaces and at ‘the most not greater than
Staall P Punctiform opacities. Size up to 1.5 mm. one-third of the two lung fields.
opucitiest “m  Micro-nodular or miliary opacities. Greatest Calegory 2: Opacities more mnumerous and
- diameter betwzen 1.5 and 3 mm. diffuse than in category 1 and distributed
. . over most of the lung flelds.
n Nodglar opacities. Size between 3 and 10 mm. Caleyory 3: Very numerous profuse opacities
' covering the whole or nearly the whole of
the lung flelds.
A An opacily having a longest diameter of between 1 and 5 cm, or several opacities each greater
. than 1 ¢m, the sum of whose long2st diameters does not exceed 5 cm.
;‘d:gftiosz B One or more opacities, larger or more numerous than those in category A, whose combined
p.. - area does not axceed one-third of one lung field. :
Cc One or mors iasge opacities, whose combined area exceeds one-third of one lung field.
Additional symbols
(co) abnormalities of the cardiac oullme To be replaced by (cp): cor pulmonale, if this condition
is strongly suspected.
. {cv) cavity.
(l;iee;c;rlr;:lri\-en (di) significant distortion of the intra-thoracic organs.
tional (em) marked emphysema.
symbols? (hi}- marked abnormalities of the hilar shadows.
’ {pl) significant pleural abnormalities.
(px) pneumothorax.
(tb) opacities suggestive of active tuberculosis.

t*The choice of order of the symbols is left to the convenience of the phys:cmn.

specified as {ar as possmlc

1058

31 The background of small opacities should bs
2‘The use of these symbols is optional.
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Pneumoconioses (international classification)

N

-rmscl'lc.ntu;__rorieswvrctukcnnphy{ snternational
Union Against Gancer'{UICC), the United Stutes Public
Health Service and o Canadianworking groupso that the

- clussification could be extended to usbestosis and,
more generally, to pneumoconioses with small irregular
opacities. The first report of ‘the G1CC was published
in 106S. This classification is given in Table 99.

short and extended classifieation, 1968

The international classification was revised in 1968
v the ILO, in consultation.with the Commission of
the European Cominunities.

The 1938 schemne, amended and called the ‘“‘short
classification”, was supplemented by an extended
classification {Table 100). The short classificalion ap-
-« lied to pneumoconioses with small regular rounded
f Lacities, and therefore to silivosis, coahworkers® pneu-
““moconiosis and pneumoconioses provoked by mixed
dusls. 1t was designed to provide a simple coding
svstem for practical purposes. Like the 1958 classi-
ficution, it divided radiological appearances into small
and large opacities; on the other hand linear opacities
were no longer regarded as part of the usual picture
of pneumoconioses with regular opacities, and the
syvmbol L. was omitted. The symbol Z indicated lung
or hilar appearances which were not sufficient to
dingnose pneumoconiosis, but which could be the
result of exposure to dusts and were therefore
relained for preventive purposes. The additional
indications, which the 1958 classification had consi-
dered oplional, were divided into obligatory indications
and optional indications The main innovation
was the extended classification taken from that of
the UICGC; it applied to all pneumoconioses: those
with small regular opacities which were covered
by the short classification, and those with small
irregular opacities, such as asbestosis. The classi-
fication thus took account of several factors such as
the clear or ill-defined appearance of the radiograph,
pleural changes (which were classified according to
severity), and the position of anomalies in the six
zoues into which the lung is divided. There were
12 categories, which provided a classification that
was much more precise and useful for epidemiological
investigations and the radiological evaluation of pneu-

movonioses, Standard rn(..c,'ruphs were chosen (sce
plates 1-13 of “Pncumoconioses and Other Lung
Diseases’). From the technical point of view, it should
he neoted that the use of high kilovoltages now
enables very detailed lung films to be obtained, thus
facililating the study of pneumoconioses.

International elassification (ILO/UICC), 1971

Shortly before this article was passed for press, the ILO
and UICC schemes were fully integrated following
a further revision of the classification. ‘

The short classification, which aimed at an over-all
cvaluation of the radiological table of pneumoconioses,
has been enlarged to cover pneumoconioses with smal}
irregular opacities, designated by the symbols s, f and u
of the extended classification. As a result, both classi-
fications now apply to all pneumoconioses, including
asbestosis. The symbol Z, which is now superfluous,
is deleted.

The extended classification aims at providing an
analytical description of radiographs and enables
certain paramelers necessary for the study of the
progress and epidemiology of pneumoconioses to he
quantified; it was revised and expanded with ‘other
symbols with this aim in view. A single set of standard
radiographs is in preparation: it will be codified under
both systems and will illustrate cases of silicosis, coal-
workers’ pneurnoconiosis, prieumoconioses provoked
by mixed dust, asbestosis and other pneumoconioses.

The ILOJUICC classification at present represents
the mest advanced stage of research in this field,
although no doubt it has defects which it will be
easier to assess after a certain time has €lapsed.
Today, however, what appears more essential than
the perfection of the scheme.is that it should be
applied as widely as possible and in the greatest
number of countries. The United States Federal
Coal Mine Health and Safety Act, 1969, which prescribes
the adoption of this classification in radiogiraphic
examinations of coalworkers, will no doubt quickly help
to enrich experience in this field. The other point that
should be emphasised is that the 1971 classification,
while being accessible to non-specialists, is equally
valid for research workers and, according to the needs,
can be applied in its synthetic or in its analytical form.

TABLE 100. INTERNATIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF RADIOGRAPHS OF PNEUMOCONIOSES (GENEVA, 1968)
GENERAL SCHEME

Radiographic Short classification

Extended classification
(regular and irregular opacities)

feature (regular opacities)
", pneunmoconiosis . o Rounded 0/-, 0/0, 0/1
e.aspect pneuvimoconiosis . zZ Irregular
PNEUMOCGCONIOSIS
Swall regular opacities
Profusion ' 1;2; 3 1/0, 171, 1/2; 2/1, 2/2, 2(3; 3/2, 3/3, 3/4
Type p; m{q}; n(r) p; m{q); n(r)
Extent —_ zones 1-6
Small irregular opacities :
Profusion —_ 110, 1/1, 1/2; 211, 2/2, 2/3; 3/2, 3/3, 3/4
Type — s, t, u
Extent — zones 1-6
Large opacities :
Size ] L A; B; C A; B; C
Outline : — wd (well defined)-id (ill defined)
Obligatory symbols . Grades
Pleural calcifications A , pic sile: diaphragm,wall, others 0,1, 2_, 3
Pleural thickening (significant) - pl site: costophrenic angle lowerlimit
. othersites 0,1,2,3
Cardiac oulline co anomalies —
o outline ill defined 0,1,2,3
Ereshell caleificalions . cs cs —
Active tuberculosis tha tha
Carcinoma cit ca -
()lhmj significant disease od od —

Optional symbels: ax .en ep cv di emm hi ho px rl

th K
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SPECIAL REPOR”I:

UICC/Cincinnati Classification of the
Radiographic Appearances of Pneumoconioses

\

A Cooberaﬁve Study by the UICCCormmittes

H. Bohlig, M.D.
Chefarzt dér Strahlenabteilung des
Stadtischen Krankenhauses, Ludenscheid, Germany

L. ]. Bristol, M.D,

Director, Silicosis Control Unit, Trudeau Institute, Inc.,
Medical Research Laboratories, Saranac Lake, New York

P. H. Cartier, M.D.
Medical Director, Thetford Industrial Clinic,
Thetford Mines, Quebec, Canada

B. Felson, M.D., F.C.C.P.

Professor and Director, Department of Radiology,
University of Cincinnati, Cincinnati, Ohio

J. C. Gilson, M.D., Chairman, UICC
Working Group

Director, Medical Research Council,
Pneumoconiosis Unit, Llandough Hospital, Penarth, U.K.

T. R. Grainger, M.D., F.C.C.P,
Medical Director, Canadian Johns Manville
Company, Ltd., Asbestos, Quebec, Canada

G. Jacobson, M.D.
Professor arid Chairman, Department of Radiology,
University of Southern California, Los Angeles

R. Kiviluoto, M.D.
Chief Radiologist, Municipal Hospital and
Dccent of Ra(fiology, Turku University, Turku, Finland

THE NEED FOR AND THE DEVELOPMENT
OF A NEW CLASSIFICATION

g Yhe International Conferences on the Biological Ef-

fects of Asbestos held in 1964 and 1963 indicated
renewed interest in the health hazards of asbestos dust
and the need- for further epidemiologic studies. This
research is likely to be of greater value if valid compari-
sons can be made in different countries, where the
methods of using asbestos differ and the exposures of the
workers may he to only une type of asbestos fiber or to
mixed asbestos and other dusts. A step towards improv-
ing comparability would be the existence of an interna-
tionally uceepted classification of the radiographs. The
International Union Against Cancer (UICC) Working
Croup on Ashestos and Cancer in 1964! recognized this
need and recommended that “a scheme based if possible

-
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W. S. Lainhart, M.D.

Deputy Director, Division of Epidemiology and
Special Services, Bureau of Occupational Safcty and
Health, Public Health Service, Cincinnati, Ohio

]. C. McDonald, M.D.

Professor of Epidemiology and Chairman, Department
of Epidemiology and Health, McGill Univernsity,
Montreal, Quebec, Canada e

E. P, Pendergrass, M.D.
Emeritus Professor of Radiology, Hosrit:ﬂ of the
University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

C. E. Rossiter

Statistician, Medical Research Council Pneutnoconiosis
Unit, Llandough Hospital, Penarth, U.K.; Assistant Professor
of Medical Statistics, Departiment of Epidemiology and
Health, McGill University, Montreal, Quebee, Canada

1. J. Selikoff, M.D., F.C.C.P.

Professor of Environmental Medicine, Mount Sinai
School of Medicine, New York, New York

G. K. Sluis—Crem.er, M.D.
Director, Miner’s Medical Bureau,
Johannesburg, South Africa

G. W. Wright, M.D. )
Head, Medical Research Department, St. Luke's
Hospital, Cleveland, Ohio

on an extension of the International Labour Organiza-
tion (ILO) 1958 Classification® be developed.” A num-
ber of schemes?$ have been suggested in the past, but
none has come into general use or has been systematical-
ly tested for variations in interpretation between ob-
servers and by the same ohserver on repeated occasions.

To meet this need a group working under the auspices
of the UICC Committee on Asbestos and Cancer in 1965
collected 123 films of men exposed to asbestos of dif-
ferent types and in different occupations from Canada,
Finland, Germany, South Africa, United Kingdom and
the United States. The films were read independently by
all the members of the group, using a classification
modified from one suggested by Bohlig® and Shuis-
Cremer and Theron.’® At about the same time, a group
of radiologists working with the US Public Health Ser-
vice, (USPHS) was also developing a classification for
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the films of men working in the ashestos manufacturing
indnstries in the United States. In March, 1967, Pro-
fessor J. C. McDonald and his colleagues had an im-
medinte need for a system of classifying several thousaud
films avuilable from Asbestos and Thetford Mines in
Quebec, where a survey of past and present asbestos
workers was in progress.

The three groups met at the USPHS National Center
for Urban and Industrial Health in Cincinnati for four
days in October/November, 1967. They reviewed the
results of the UICC reading trial, a pilot Cauadian trial,
and the experience of the USPHS group. A systematic
examination of the radiographic features and the ways of
recording them was made. Unanimous agreement was
achieved on a proposed new scheme designated as the
UICC/Cincinnati (U/C) classification which was an
extension of the ILO 1938 classification. Tt was decided
not to publish the proposal until tests had been made of
its practicability and a study of the inter- and intra-
observer variation carried out. During the period No-
vember, 1967 to April, 1968, 12 readers from six coun-
tries classified 100 films of asbestos workers. Following
this, the group met in London where it was decided that
the classification was sufficiently promising to be pub-
lished together with the evidence about its practicability
and observer variation. This report describes the pro-
posed classification and comments on the results of the
reading trials.

AIMS OF THE CLASSIFICATION

1. To provide a scheme for the systematic recording of
the various radiographic appearances associated with
exposure to ashestas and other dusts.

2. To provide a system in which the qualitatively dif-
ferent features of the film can be recorded separately and
graded. .

3. To provide a code that permits a brief description of
the important radiographic feutures of the pneumo-
conjoses. '

The primary aim is, therefore, to assist in epidemio-
logic studies of workers exposed to ashestos and other
dusts and to relate these findings to other information,
such as lung function, clinical features, past dust ex-
posure, and stuciies of morbidity and mortality. At this
time there is no attempt to establish a separate system of
grading asheastosis. The radiographic appearances mav
vary with different types of usbestos exposure as well as
with age and other factors. As the classification incor-
porates all the major features of the ILO 1958 scheme,
together with the additional features seen in ashestosis, it
is likely that the new proposals will prove adequate for
the classification of all types of pneumoconiosis. How-
ever, further tests are needed to establish this.

PHINCIPLES OF THE CLASSIFICATION

1. As far as possible it is purely descriptive of radio-
graphic appearances and does not use interpretive words
such as “fibrosis” or “infection™ which already have
definitions in terms of pathology.
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2. It describes the natural history of the changes pro-
duced by asbestos and other dusts as far as is kuown, but
it avoids the use of terms such as “carly stages,” “pro-
gressive,” or “final.”

3. It provides a system of recording semiquantitatively
(with the help of verbal descriptions and standard films)
features of the film which can be scparately assessed
with a reasonable degree of certainty.

4. It provides a means of describing the appearances
seen in workers known to have been exposed 1o ashestos
dust as well as other dusts.

The principles ave, therefore, similar to those used in
the ILO 1930 and 1958 schemes, but differ importantly
from schemes which were primarily systems of grading
the extent and severity of an assumed underlying pa-
thology.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE CLASSIFICATION

The ILO 1958 scheme divided the opacities in the
lung fields (lung parenchyma) into “small” and “large.”
The U/C scheme retains this main subdivision, but
further divides the small opacities into “rounded” and
“irregular,” and the large opacities into “well defined”
and “ill defined.” The ILO scheme recorded pleural
changes with a symbol “pl.” The U/ C scheme brings the
pleural changes into the main classification, with a sub-
division into “calcified” and “noncalcified.”® 1t also re-
cords the presence of a poorly delined cardiac outline oy
diaphragm or both within the main scheme, but retains
the symbols “co” (abnormal cardinc shape) and “¢p”
(suspect cor pulmonale) as defined in the 1LO, 1938
scheme and its later modification by the USPHSM
Table 1 shows how the ILO 1958 classification and the
U/C 1968 scheme fit together.

Provision has been made for the separate recording of
three features for each variable:

1. Type. For example, small or large, rounded or frregu-

lar, calcified, etc.

2. Profusion. By this is meant the number of opacities
(rounded or irregular) per unit area—eg, per zone (Ta-
ble 1). The word “profusion” is used in preference to
density because this latter word is also used radiological-
ly to describe the radiopacity of a shadow. The profusion
is graded on a basic 4-point scale, 0, 1, 2, 3, with a

means of increasing this to a 12-point seale when greater -

precision is required (Table 1).

3. Extent. The area (number of zones) of the lung ficld
affected or length, as in the case of cardiac border
involvement. This also provides information about the
site of abnormality, which may later be of value.

In the 1.0 1958 scheme, category 1 of small opacities
was defined in terms of the number of rib spaces in-
volved—a measure of extent. Categories 2 and 3 included
factors both of extent and of profusion. One of the
criticisms of the ILO 1938 scheme is that it failed to
provide for the classification of a filim with definite but

° The use of the word “calcified” is at viviance with the
general principle of not using interpretive woirds, but was
accepted beeanse of it wide use in radiology.
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Table }—Comparison of ILO 1958 and UICC/Cincinnati 1968 Classifications’

ILO 1958 - UICC/CINCINNATI 1968
No pneumoconiosis 0 10/- 0/0 0/1 (rounded or irregular)
Suspect pneumoconiosis Z
Small Rounded
Opacities Profusion 1 1/0 1/1 1/2
' 2 2/1 2/2 2/3
3. 3/2 3/3 3/4
Type P m n P qQTr
Extent — Lung z.ones, 1-3 on each side
Irregular . : )
Profusion — . 10 1/1 172
2/1 2/2 2/3
. _ 3/2 3/3 3/4
Type L s t u
Extent —_ Lung zones, 1-3 on each side
Large 1 Size A B C . A BC
Opacities Type - : wd (well defined) id (ill defined)
Other - Pleural thickening pl ‘ :
Peatures Costoph‘rgnic angle Right Left (Jlower limit standard film)
Other—type Diffuse Plaques (uncalcified)
-extent 1 2 3 T
11l defined diaphragm — ’
Site Right Left (lower limit standard film)
11l defined cardiac outline —_
Extent 1 2 3
Pleural calcification p!
Site Diaphragm Walls Other sites
Extent

1 2 3

Additional .’Symbols Used in Both Classifications (see text for definitions)

Obligatory in U/C and optional in ILO: ca ¢co ¢p es od tba

Optional in both U/C and ILO: = ax bu cn cv di

em hi ho kK px 1 tb

Notes’
Types (sizes) of

small opacities There are no changes of definition.

The letters 'q’ and ‘r’ are used in the U/C classification instead of ‘m’ and ‘n’ to reduce errors of transeription.

12 point scale for To use this, the film is classified io the -usual way by comparison with the standard films and “if durfng the

small opacities

process a neighboring category is considered as a serious alternative, record this after the formal eategory®’.
Thus a subcategory 2/1 is a Category 2 but Category 1 was considered as a serivus alternative.

very sparse rounded opacities seen in more than two rib.

spaces. This criticism is met in'the U/C scheme.

The classification recognizes the existence of a con-
tinuum of change from complete normality to the most
advanced category or grade in the recorded features. For

example, with regard to small opacities a flm may be .

correctly classified as a categorv 0 if there are no opaci-
ties seen or if it is thought to show a few which are not
sufficiently |[definite or numerous to reach the definition
of category 1. No sudden step from nommality to ab-
normality is implied at the 0-1 boundary.

Much thought was given to the advantages and dis-

advantages/of a separate classification for asbestosis. This
suggestion was unanimously rejected for two reasons:
1. Workers ‘exposed to asbestos dust frequently have also
been exposed to other types of dust, either in or outside
the asbestos industry. Therefore, the radiographic signs
of another {type of pneumoconiosis, or even combined
types, may be encountered among ashestos workers.

|
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2. The ILO 1958 scheme and its USPHS modification
have received wide international use. This was a strong
argument for attempting to develop an extension of that
scheme to cover asbestosis rather than develop a new
classification,

DeTaiLs oF THE CLASSIFICATION .

Table 2 is a sunumary of the classification in a form con-
venient for reference while reading radiographs.

Small Opacities

Small Rounded Opacities. These are classified as in the
1LO 1958 scheme modified by the USPHS, with some further
alteration of the verbal definitions. :

(a) Type. The nodules are clussified according to the ap-
proximate diamneter of the predominant opacities.

p = rounded opacities up to about 1.5 mm diameter.
= rounded opacities exceeding about 1.5 mm and up

to about 3 mm diameter.

.
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Table 2—UICC/Cincinnati Classification of Radiographic Appearances of Pnenmoconioses

Codes Definitions

Sl Raunded
Opacities FProfusion The category of profusion is based on asse=suient of the concentration of opacities in the affected
zures. The standard Alins define the mid cutegorics.

0/~ 0,0 0/1 Chutegury O—sn\mll rounded opacities ahsent or lesa profuse than in category 1.
1/,0 1/1 172 Categury 1—small rounded opacities definitely present but relutive fow in number.

2/1 272 273 Cutegory 2-—small rounded opacities numerous. .
The normal lung markings are usuxlly till visible.

3/2 3/3 374 Cutezory 3—atnall rounded opacities very numerous.
The normal lung markings are partly or totally ebscured.

Type P q r - The nodules are clussified according to the approximate dinmeter of the preduminant opacities.

p—rounded opacities up to abiout 1.5tnm diameter.

q—rounded opacities exceeding about 1.5mnm and up to about 3mm diswmcter,
r—rounded opacities exceeding about 3mm and up to about 10mm diamcter.

Extent . Lung zones The zonesin whicb the opacities are seen are recorded. Each lung ia divided into thirds—upper,
middle, lou er zones. Thus a maximum of 6 zones can be auffected.
Irregular
Profusion. The category of profusion is based on nasessmient of the concentration of opncities in the aflected
| . zones. The standard films define the mid categories.

: . 0/- 070 0/1 Category O—smull irregular opacities absent or less profuse than in category 1.

170 11 172 Category l—ﬂm:\ll irregular opacities definitely present but relatively few in number.
¢ norinal lung inarkings are usually visible.

271 2/2 2/3 Category 2—small irregular opacities numerous.
The normal lung markings are usually partly obscured.

3/2 3/3 3/4 Category 3—small irregular opacities very numerous.
: be normal lungz markings are usually totally obacured.

Type 5 t u Aps the opacities are irregular, the dimensions uscd for rounded opacities cannot be used, but
they can be roughly divided into three types.

s——fine irregulur or linear opacities.
t~medium irregular opacities, "

u—coarse (blotchy) irregular opacitiea.

Extent Lung zonea The zones in \\hlch the opacities are seen are recorded. Fach lung is divided into t,hmls—uppor.
- middle, lower zones—as for rounded opacities. . .

Large

See Size A B C Cstegory A—an opacity with greatest diameter bew een lcm and Scm, or several such opacities
pacities :

the sum of whose greatest dnmelers dues not cxceed Semn.

Cstegory B-—one or more opacities hrger or tnore numernus than those in category A whose
combined area dues not exceed one third of the area of the right lung.

Category C—one or more large opacities nhose combined ares exceeds one third of the area
- of the right lung.

Type wd id As well as the letter ‘A°, ‘B’° or ‘'C’, the nbbreviation ud or ‘id’ thould be used to indicate
" whether the opacities are well defined or ill defined.

. Other Pleuru! thickening

Features Costophrenic angle Right Left Obliteration of the costorbremc nngle is recorded scparately from thickening over other sites.
. . A lower limit standard film is provided.
) Other sites 1 2 3 Grade 0—not present or less than grade 1.
Grade 1—up to Smm thick and not exceeding one half of th~ projection of one luteral chest
wall. A lower liinit standard flm is provided.
: Grade 2—more than 5mm thick and up to one balf of the projection of one lateral chest wall
. or up to Sinm thick and exceeding one half of the projection of one lateral chest wall.
: Gradé 3—more than Smm thick and extending more than one hall of the projection of one
‘ : lateral chest wall.
| Diaphragm . . oy
; 11l defined Right Left The lower liniit is one third of the affected hetnidiaphragm.

A lower limit standsard film is provided
Cardiac outline

11l de&ned 1 2 3 Grade 0—up to one third of the Jength of the left eardine border or equivalent.
(shagginess) Grade 1—above one third and up to two thirds of the lenyth of the lcft cardiac burder or
equivalent.

Grade 2—above two thirds and up to the whole length of the left cardiae border or equivalent.

Grade 3—inore than the whole Iength of the left cardiuc border or cquivalent.
Pleural calcification . .
Diaphragm 1 2 3 Grade 0—no pleursl calcification seen.

Wali . . .
ulis CGrade 1—one or niore areas of pleural calcification, the sumn of whaose greatest dinineters does

Otber sites ~ not exceed 2crn,
Grade 2—one or more areas of pleural ealeification, the sum of whou=e greatest diameters exceeds
; 2¢m but does nnt exceed 10cm.
! Grade 3—one or tnore areas of pleural calcification, the sutn of whose greatest diameters exeeeds
! 10cm.
1]
Other Symbols
Obligatury Optional
ea —isuspect rancer of lung or pleura. ax —cualescence of small rounded pneumnncaniotic opacities.
co —a nurinality of cardiac size or shape. bu —bull: L .
cp —isuspect cor pulmonale. en —ealeifiertion in small parenchymal opaeities,
es —egpshell calcifieation of hilar or mediastinul lIymph oy —eavity.
nodes. di —marked distortion of the intra- th.xr’u e organs.
tba—opacities suzgestive of active clinically significant . ein—muarked emphiysema.
tuhcrr ulnsia, hi —marked enburgement of hidar xha ulm\ 9.
od —other signifiennt disesse. This includes disease not ho ~-haneycomb lung.
rebated to dust exposure, e.g. surgical or traumatic k —Kerley (septal) tinea.
d vmage to chest walla, bronchiectasis, cte. px ==—pueumothorax.

rl -—pneumoe nniosts modified by rheumintaid procesa.
tb —inactive tuberculosis,

~CHEST, VvOL. 58, NO. 1, JULY 1970

106 - /3!




_UIC‘C/'C!NCINNATI CLASSIFIC_{ ﬁ JN OF PNEUMOCONIOSES

r = rounded opacities exceeding about 3 mm diameter up
to about 10 nun diameter,

(b) Profusion, The standard filins define the midcategories.

Category O—simall rounded opacities absent or less profuse
than in category 1.

Category I—small ronnded opacities definitely present but
relatively few in nmmber. The vormal lung warkings are
usually visihile, .

Category 2—small rounded opacities namerous. The nor-
mal Jung markings are usuadly still visible,

Category 3—suudl rounded opacities very numerous. The
normal himg markings are partly or totully obscured.,

The category of profusion is based not on extent, but only on
the concentration of opacities in the affected zones.

(¢) Extent. The specific zones in which the opacities are

seen are recorded. Each lung ficld is divided into thirds—-

upper, middle, and lower zones. ‘Thus, there can be a maxi-
mum of six zones affected.

(d) Notes.

(1) ‘¢’ and r" are used in place of ‘m’ and *n” of the ILO
1958 scheme becanse of phonetic and scriptory errors caused
by using ‘m” and ‘n’. No change of definition is entailed.

(2) In category 1 small rounded opacities are commonly
seen in the upper and middle zones, but may occur in any
zones or in one lung only.

(3) There is evidence™ "™ that subdivision into finer grades
than the four categories, 0, 1, 2, 3, is possible without the use
of extra standard films, and convevs extra information for
epidemiologic purpuses. The instructions are to classify the
film in the usual way into one of the four categories and if,
during the process, a neighboring category is considered as a
serious alternative, record this after the formal category. Thus
category 2/1 is a filin which is category 2, but category 1 was
seriously considered as an alternative. The film which is with-
out doubt a category 2, ie, a midcategory closely similar in
profusion to the standard §lm, would be classified as 2/2.
In films within category 0, a subdivision is also possible. Thus,
category 0/1 is a film which is category 0, but category 1 was
seriously considered. Category 0/0 is a normal film without
amall opacities. Occeasionally films look exceptionally “nor-
mal” ie, there is exceptional clarity of the normal architecture.
These “barndoor” normal films are usually, though not
exclusively, from young individuals. Provision for these is
made by the category 0/-. Thus the formal four-point scale
becomes a 12-point scale: 0/-, 070, 0/1, 1/0, 1/1, 1/2, 2/1,
2/2, 2/3, 3/2, 3/3, 3/4. In practice this elaborated scale
takes no longer than the four-point system and it is easier
for the reader, as his doubts about the borderline films are
quickly recorded.

Small Irregular Opacities. This is the main new feature of
the classification. The term is used to deseribe features which
in other schemes have been called “linear,” “reticulur,”
“fibrotic,” “nctwork,” “honeyveonih.” 1t includes films which
wonld be classified as “L” in the ILO 1958 scheme, and also
some, but not all, films formerly read as “Z.” Smuall irregular
opucities are of varving thickness, shape, and density, and
often have a cnrved or linear appearance. They tead to
obscure the normad limg architecture (vascular pattern), par-
ticularly when present in considerable profusion, Hence,
obscuration of normal lung architecture is a feature of the
hizhier categories of both small “rounded” and small “irregu-
lar” opacities.

(a) Type. As the opacities are irregnlar, the dimensions

° Onford Enalish Dictionary: “Barndoor™ vsed jocularly as a
target oo Luge to he missed.
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used for the rounded opacitics cannot be applied, but to
conform to the geoeral scheme, the types may be ronglily
divided into three:

s = fine irregular or linear opacities,
t = medinm irregular opacities.
v = coarse (blotchy) irregudar opacities.

Assessment i made of the predoniinant type of small irregnlar
apacity by comparison with the appropriate standard film,

(b) Profusion. The standard films define the mideategories.

Category O—small jrregalar opucities absent or less profuse
than in category 1. ’

Category 1—small irregular opacities definitely present, but
relatively sparse. The normal lung markings are usuvally visible.

Category 2—small irregular opacities numerous. The nor-
mal lung markings are usually partly obscured.

Category 3—small irrezular opacities very numerous., The
normal lung markings are usually totully obscured.

The category of profusion is based not on extent, but only on
the concentration of opacities in the affected zones.

(¢) Extent. The specific zones in which the irregular
opacities are seen are recorded. Each lung is divided iuto
thirds—upper, middle, and Jower zomes, as for rounded
opacities.

(d) Notes .

(1) The types ‘s,” “t,” and “u’ are less well defined than the
‘P’ ‘q.) ‘r sequence of small rounded opacities. It is not
known whether subdividing irregular opacities.in this way
will be useful, nor was it known when ‘p,” ‘m,” and ‘n’ were
first sugzested that pathologic and functional differences
existed between the different types. Subsequent research has
shown they are meaningful "

(2) In category 1, small irregular opacities are more com-
monly scen in the lower zones, but may occur in any zones or
in one lung only.

(3) The differentiation between “rounded” and “irregu-
lar” opacities is readily seen by comparing the standard films
of each type, but films occur in which both types are seen.
It is recommended that hoth “rounded” and “irregular”
should be recorded if both types are clearly seen in the same
film. However, further research is needed to show how well
they can be differentinted.

(4) Experience in classifying films of those paeumoconi-
oses in which the small opacities are predominantly rounded
has revealed a small proportion which, though undoubtedly
abnormal and prubably the result of cust expasure, do not fit
well into the ILO 1938 classification. The U/C classification
provides a means of classifying these as they often fit well
into the “small irregular opacities™ group.

(5) Where there is a marked difference in profusion in
different parts of the lungs, the zones predominantly affected
are the ones over which averaging is made.

Large Opacities :

The scheme used is that in the 11.O 1938 classificution,
with the additional qualification of “well defined” (wd) and
“ill defined”™ (id). The “well defined™ large opacitics are
thase covered by A, B, and C in the 11,0 1938 system. The “ill
defined” are those opacities in which the edge is very poarly
differentinted from the surrounding lung. Large opacitivs of
that type sometimes occur in advanced ashestosis, but are
also seen in other types of pneumoconiosis. Thus U/C pro-
vides a more conplete system of recording the features of
large opacitics.

Category A—an opacity having a dinmeter exceeding 1 em
and up to and incduding 3 cm. o several opacities cach greater
than 1 cm, the sum of whose wreatest dimneters does not

excevd 3 cm.
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Category B—one or more opacities larger or more numerous
than those in category A whose combined area does not exceed
one-third of the right lung field.

Category C—one or mare opacities whose combined area
exceeds one-third of the right lung field.

Notes

(1) The abbreviation “wd” or “id” should be used to
indicate whether the shadows are well or ill defined. Refer-
ence to the standard film will help to make the dillerentiation.
Sometimes both types should be recorded.

(2) \When recording large opacities the type and category
of small opacities in the background should also be noted.
If small opacities are not seen, a comment to this effect must
be recorded.

Pleural Thickening

Pleural thickening is classified according to type {diffuse
or plaques}, site, and extent, but changes which might repre-
sent pleural thickening over the diaphragtn and cardiac out-
line are recorded separately because there is insufficient
evidence, especially in cases of asbestosis, to be certain
whether the ill defined outline of the cardiac border (shaggy
heart) or diaphragm or both results from pleural thickening
or alteration of adjacent lung parenchyma.

Cortophrenic Angle. Obliteration of the costrophrenic ang]e
is recorded separately from thickening over other areas be-
cause it is so commonly seen in individuals with no history of
dust exposure. A lower limit standard film is provided. No
upper limit film is used. If the thickening extends further up
the chest wall, then the film should be classified as costo-
phrenic angle obliteration and pleural thickening, if this is
up to grade 1 or more. Costophrenic angle obliteration is
recorded as absent or present, right or left.

Note: Leafing (scalloping) of the diaphragm should not be
recorded as costophrenic angle obliteration.

Chest Wall. Pleural thickening is recorded in four grades
as follows:

Grade 0 = not present or less than grade 1.

Grade 1 = definite pleural thickening up to 5 mm thick
which alone or combined with similar shadows does not
exceed one-half of the projection of one lateral chest wall.
The standard film is at the lower limit of grade 1.

Grade 2 = pleural thickeninz more than 5 mm thick and
up to half of a lateral chest wall, or less than 5 mm thick it it
extends more than the equivalent of one half of a lateral chest
wall,

Grade 3 = pleural thickening more than 5 5 mm thick and
extending more than the equivalent of one-half of a lateral
chest wall. .

Note: (1) Do not record the “companion” rib shadows that
simulate pleural thickening.

(2) The sharpness of the outline of the pleural thickening
varies greatly. In asbestos-exposed workers it may appear
as a well defined band along the lateral chest wall (see
Grade 1 standard film) or as 2 much more widespread shadow.
The widespread and well defined forms are recorded together
as “diffuse.” Occasionally, localized areas of uncalcified
pleural thickening—"“pleural plaques”—are seen on the dia-
phragm or chest wall, and should be recorded as such. The
diffuse and localized forms should be considered together
when grading pleural thickening.

(3) Widespread pleural thickening on the anterior or pos-
terior surfaces of the lung or chest wall may lead to veiling
or chscuration of the lungs (ground glass appearance). It is
graded on its maximum length. It is usually more than 5 mm

thick.
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1l Defined Diaphragm

This is recorded as absent or present and right or left. The
lower limit is one-third of the affected hemidiaphragm. A
lower limit standard film is provided.
Note: A single adhesion, scalloping, bhernia, eventration,
calcification, plagque, and tumor are not included within the
term “ill defined diaphragm.”
Il Defined Cardiac Outline

Only the length of the cardiac border affected is used for
grading. The degree of poorness of definition is not separately
recorded. Four grades are used. Regardless of which side is
affected, the grading is based on its length in relation to the
length of the left heart border.

Grade 0 = up to one-third of the length of the left car-
diac border or equivalent.

Crade 1 = between one-third and two-thirds of the length
of the left cardiac horder or equivalent.

Grade 2 = between two-thirds and the entire length of

the left cardiac border or equivalent.

Grade 3 = more than the length of the left cardiac bor-
der or equivalent.
Notes:

(1) Grade 1 is set fairly high so only the more definitely
abnormal films will be graded 1 or above.

(2) The sharpness of the cardiac horder is affected by
heart movement and hence the expasure time of the radio-
graph. If heart movement is thought to be the only cause for
the irregular cardiac border, do not record it.

(3) Cardiac fat pads are not included in the grading.

(4) In ashestos-exposed workers the earliest change in the
radiograph may be an ill defined cardiac outline,

Pleural Calcification

This feature is recorded separately from pleural thickening,
the site noted, and whether the calcification is uni- or bilat-
eral. It is also graded with the help of standard filins.

Grade 0 = no pleural calcification.

Grade 1 = an area of calcified pleura with greatest diam- -

eter not exceeding 2 em, or a number of such areas, the sum
of whose greatest diameters does not exceed 2 cm in length,

Crade 2 = an area of calcified pleura with greatest diam-
eter exceeding 2 cm and not exceeding 10 em, or a manher
of such areas, the sum of whose greatest dinmeters cxceeds
2 em but not more than 10 ¢m.

Crade 3 = an area of calcified pleura-with greatest diam-
eter exceeding 10 cm or a number of such areas whose sum
of greatest diameters exceeds 10 em.

Note: Uni- or bilaterality is recorded because cale xf‘c.mon due
to mineral dusts, including asbestos, is often hilateral whereas
that due to other causes, such as infection or trauma, is more
frequently unilateral.

Additional Symbols

Additional symbols are used as in the 11.O 1938 scheme to
record features which are not in the main classification. 1F all
symbuols are optional the recording is usually incomplete. Two
groups—obligatory and optional—are therefore recommended.
Obligatory Symbols
ca — suspect cancer of lung or pleura.

co — abnormality of cardiac outline in size and qh e, indicat-

ing cardiac disease.

cp — suspect cor pulmonale.

es — epushell calcification of hilar or wediastinal hymph nodes.
od — other significant disease. This includes disease not re-
lated to dust exposure, cg, surgical or traumatic damage to
chest walls, bronchiectasis, ete.

tha — active, clinically significant tubercidosis (eacludes cal-
cified primary complex).
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Optional Symbols

ax — suspeet coalescence of small rounded pnewinoconiotic
oputcities,

bu — bullae,

en =~ caleification in sinall parenchymal opacities.

oV — cavity.

di — marked distortion of the intrathoracic organs by pneumo-
coniosis.

em — mirked emphysema.

hi — marked enlargement of hilar shadows.

ho -- honeycombing of the ling.

k= Kerley (septal) lines.

px — pneumothorax, :
rl — pneamaconiosis madified by rheumatoid process.
tb — inactive tuberculosis.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

When deciding whether a film is to be classified
within the scheme the following recommendations are
made:

(1) Decide if there are no changes or if any of the
changes seen in the pleura or the parenchyma sufficient-
ly resemble the pattern of any of the pneumoconioses to
be recorded. If so, proceed with the classification.

(2) If it is probable that all the changes seen are the
result of some etiology other than pneumoconiosis, do
not classify but record opinion using appropriate sym-
bols and comments. )

(3) 1f changes might be due to pneumoconiosis, classify
features, but make a note that other etiology is possible.

In the U/C scheme, unlike the ILO scheme, no provi-

sion is made for doubtful pneumoconiosis. This omission -

is intentional, as the scheme is intended principally for
epidemiologic stuclies where a “suspect” group contrib-
utes little to the information. The provision of a 12-point
scale for both “small rounded” and “small irregular”
opacities provides a method of classifying radiographs
showing fewer small opacities than in category 1.

In epidemiologic studies failure to record all readings
can be an important source of loss of information. To
reduce this to a minimum the recording sheet (Fig. 1) is
so designed that at least one entry must be made be-
tween each pair of heavy lines. In Figure 1, ten sketches
of the roentgen appearance of jesions in pneumoconiosis
are given, together with their corresponding readings.

RESULTS OF TESTING THE CLASSIFICATION

(a) Practicability

The considerable increase in the amount of informa-
tion to Le recorded from each film compared with the
11O 1958 scheme might have reduced the practicability
of the U/C Classification. This did not prove to be the
case. Six members of the group classified nearly 16,000
chest films of past and present asbestos miners and mill
workers at Thetford Mines and Ashestos (Quebec,
Canada). No scrious difficulties were encountered with
the classificntion, Despite the number of abservations to
be made for cach film, each reader was able to classify
300-500 films a day. By using the reading sheets and
clerks to record, omissions were reduced to 0.3 percent

CHEST, VOL. 58, NO. 1, JULY 1970

ION OF PNEUMOCONIOSES

109

( 4 63

in 42,000 readings. The filins were a representative
sample of the population at risk and, therefore, con-
tained a high proportion of normal films; but some
abnormality, however slight, was recorded in substantinl
number. The classification was done using a set of provi-
sional standards derived mainly, though not exclusively,
from films available from the Quebec mines.

(b) Reproducibility of rcadings by the same obsercer
(intra-obsercer variation)®

The variation in reading by the same observer over a
few days to three months was investigated during the
classification of the 16,000 Canadian films. ¥For cach
observer, approximately 600 films selected at random
were fed back for a second reading without his knowl-
edge. This gave a realistic trial of intra-observer vavia-
tion under survey conditions, but the proportion of films
in some of the subgroups was too small to test fully their

- reproducibility.

The variation in the repeatability between the different
features was not large (78 percent to 93 percent); also
the range between observers was not very large. Tt was
also apparent that the variation between observers was
uniform so that no one observer was consistently higher
or lower in his repeatability when all the featvres were
taken together. These results were thought to he well
within the acceptable limits for a new classification on its
first use in a large survey,

(c) Agreement between different obserwn (mr(’r-ob-
sercer cariation)

After the meeting in Cincinnati, a further reading trinl
of 100 films read independently by 12 of the group was
organized. The 100 films were chosen so as to include
about 30 normal or nearly normal films. The films were
from six countries and covered most of the range of
features seen in asbestos-exposed workers. There were no
flms of coalminers or other types of pnéumoconioses in
which small opacities classifiable on the 1LO 1958~
scheme were the main feature. The 100,000 or so obser-
vations were tabulated for easy inspection and analysis.
(This tabulation may also be obtained on request).

Figure 2 shows the prevalence for the 12 readers of
minimal changes (category or grade 1 or more) for small
rounded opacities, small irregular opacities, pleural
thickening and calcification and ill defined diaphragm.
Agreement in réading calcified pleural plagues was Dest,
as would be expected. The readings of irregular small
opacities showed widest variation. ‘This variatiou results
in part from the lack of previous experience in grading
this type of opacity compared with small vounded opac-
ities and muy be expected to decrease with practice and
the improved standard films.

Inspection of the readings for each feature showed
that the instances where only one reader out of 12
reported a feature were not randomly distributed among
the readers. This strongly suggests that particular
readers were consistent in interpreting what they saw,
but at a higher or lower level than was aceepted by the
majority. This is au encouraging observation bheeause
systematic differences between readers can Le allowed
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,

for in the analysis when several readers are used in a
survey, ft also suggests that better definition "of the
grades, and discussions between readers on a survey, will
reduce hias between them while retaining the advan-
tages of independent separate readings.’? This was the
first use of the classification by 12 readers from six
countries with no opportunity for detailed mutual dis-
cussion on a pilot group of films, hence it was a stiff
test. : .

In summary, the tests of pruéticabi]ity, intra- and inter-
observer variation showed that the propased classifica-
tion had reached a stage where it was likely to be a use-
ful tool in epidemiologic studies.

Radiographic Technique

~In the reading trial on 100 films a comment was
recorded on radiographic technique: good or acceptable
(+), poor (+-), very poor (+—-), and unreadable
(U/R). '

Agreement about technique was worse than for any of
the radiographic features in the classification, but stan-
dard films were not used for this assessment. The
range “acceptable” to “very poor” was recorded by dif-
ferent ohservers on a quarter of the flms so that criteria
on what constitutes an acceptable film are not clearly
established.

The majority of the films were taken with conven-
tional methods and without grids. Proposals for achiev-
ing a higher proportion of good films by using grids and
high KV techniques were made by three members of the
group and are to be published.?® Al members of the
group agreed that the average technical standard of
routine and survey films was considerably below what

: 8 oo Soolieo

could be achieved with existing equipment, but the films
used in this trial were chosen from those readily avail-
able from many sources and so inevitably includéd a
wide variation in technique. It was also agreed that
there was a need for further trials to show the effect of
changes of technique on readings.

Discussion

The U/C scheme is a logical extension of the ILO
1958 system of classifying the radiographs of pneumo-
conioses, to include features seen in asbestos-exposed
workers. We believe that it will also be suitable for all
types of pneumoconiosis, though further tests on many
other forms of pneumoconiosis are necessary to prove
this. '

The important extensions are:

1. The replacement of the subdivision “L” of the 1958

scheme by categories of “small irregular opacities.”

. The subdivision “Z” is omitted.

3. Pleural changes, calcified and nou-calcified, are
bought into the main classification and graded.

4. The shaggy heart of asbestosis is recorded and graded
separately from pleural changes, as “ill defined car-
diac outline.” )

5. Similar changes in the diaphragms are recorded with-
out grading.

It is the intention to provide standard flms for the
categories and types of small “rounded” and “irregular”
opacities, large opacities, pleural thickening, pleural cal-

3]

‘cification, obliteration of the costophrenic angle (Jower

limit only), and the changes in cardiac and diaphrag-
matic outline. The method of producing the copies is still

Small rounded opacities - .
Small irtegular opacities =} e e oo o lo o o . .
Pléural_ thickening - * Qo .o .

Pleural calciﬁcat_ioh -
Il defined diaphragm . .

" 1 1 1 2 H

0 20

40 60 80

Prevalence of Abnormality (%)

Freune 2. Prevalence of abnormality for five indices of raciologic change (mean and rnae for

100 films read by 12 readers).
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under development, but in the interim, copies will be
available® muade by a better method than that used for
the 1LO 1958 standards,

At the Cincinnati meeting it was agreed that, in order
to maintain as close correspondence as possible with the
ILO schemes, the definition of categories of small
rounded opacities should not be changed, though this
might perpetuate the defect of the ILO 1958 scheme
that extent and profusion of the opacities were combined
in the definition. This has led to dificulties. There are
films with a few but definite small round opacities in
more than two rih spaces which by definition put the
film beyond category 1, but the films clearly have far less
profusion of opacities when compared with the category
2 standard. A meeting of experts at ILO in December,
19682 advised the separation of profusion and extent in
the new revision of the ILO scheme, so this change has
also been introduced into the U/C proposals. Thus, the
categories of small rounded and irregular opacities are
based only on profusion (concentration of opacities in a
defined area) using verbal definitions supported by stan-

. dard films which are intended to be midcategory exam-

ples. .
In recommending the use of the system of subcate-
gories of small opacities developed and tested by the
British National Coal Board’s Pneumoconiosis Field Re-
search Scheme, provision is made for the reader to use
either the formal categories 0, 1, 2, and 3, or the full 12-
point scale. This extended scale largely overcomes the
need for a category Z (“suspect” pneumoconiosis) be-
cause the subcategories 0/1 and 1/0 provide two ranges
on the continuum between a clearly normal film (0/0)
and one read as midcategory 1 (1/1). The 12-point
scale applies to both small rounded and irregular opaci-
ties. There is good evidence'3 that the reading levels in
the formal categories are not disturbed by adopting the
12-point scheme, which does not require extra standard
films and takes no longer to record, but does provide
more information. The extent 6f the small opacities is
recorded by noting the zones of the lung—upper, middle,
and lower—in which the abnormality is present but
without attempting to provide a grade for each zone.
There was good agreement among readers on the zones
affected. This innovation of mapping the distribution of
lesions may be of assistance in distinguishing changes
due to different dusts or from other causes.

Hovwever, separation of rounded from irregular opaci-
ties was less consistently.achieved. The inconsistency
here between readers shows the need for further trials on
groups of films covering a wide range of the types of
small opacities. Differences in reading levels and random
cerrors can be reduced Ly closer attention to the standard
films and prior discussions between readers, and proba-
bly by adopting the convention recommended of récord-
ing both rounded and irregular opacities if both types
are definitely seen. However, further research is needed
on this point. Independent readings still provide more

*The standard sets are available from the American College
of Radiology, 6900 Wisconsin Avenue, Chevy Chase, Mary-
land 20013 or fron Dr. ]] C. Gilson, MRC Pneumoconiosis
Unit, Llandough Hospital, Penarth CF6 IXW, U K.

( UICC COMMITTEE -

information than ‘atlempting to get agreement hetween
the observers on each film 1*

All classifications are compromises between excessive
complexity and over-simplification. The U/C scheme
appeurs considerably more complex than the 1LO 1958
system, but in practice it is no more difficult to use.
Muny of the features noted in the U/C scheme are in
fact observed in the course of complete scrutiny of any
film and the classification provides a simple means of
recording these features semigquantitatively. In the Que-
bec study the readers reported very few films which
could not be adequately described. The overall consis-
tency of reading pattern when viewing the computer
tabulations of the 100 films came as some surprise to
the authors, especially as there had not been any exten-
sive discussions on the pilot group of films among all the
readers before the trial.

Improvements of the scheme are likely to come when
more is known about the correlations between the separ-
ate features recorded and pathology, Jung function, and
type and intensity of past dust exposure. Information on
this is already accumulating.®!

Susiatary Axp CoONCLUSIONS

The International Union Against Cancer (UICC)
convened a Working Group on Asbestos and Cancer in
1964 which recommended that an international classifi-
cation of the radiographic appearances of the chest flins

. of asbestos-exposed workers be developed.

Three interested groups—the UICC Working Party,
the U.S. Public Health Service Croup of Radiologists,
and a McGill University epidemiologic research group—
met in Cincinnati in November, 1967. Agreement was
achieved on a proposed new classification which is an
extension of the International Labour Organization
(ILO) 1958 scheme. Tests of the practicability and intra-
and inter-observer varjations made subsequently were
sufliciently encouraging for the Group to recommend
publication of the scheme at their next meeting in April
1968. _

The principal extensions from the 1LO 1938 scheme
are: . o

1. Small opacities are subdivided into “rounded™ (as
in the ILO 1958 scheme) and “irregular.”” This new
“irregulku™ group has four categories, 0-3, and de-
scribes verbully and with standard films the linear or
irregular small opacities which are frequently seen
in ashestosis and in some of the other pneumoconiases.

2. Large opacities, defined as in the ILO 1938 scheme,
carry an extra comment on whether the outline of the
shadow is well or ill-defined. ‘

3. Pleural thickening, for which a single symbol was
used in the 1LO 1938 scheme, is brought iuto the
main classification and divided into “caleified” and
“noncalcified.” A system of grading, with standard
filns, is provided. Costophrenic angle obliteration is
separately recorded.

4. Ml-defined cardiae outline (shaggy heart) and dia-
phragmatic outline are also sepavately classilied, using
standard films.

112
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5. The additional symbols used in the 1LO scheme are
divided into an obligatory and an optional group.
With a well-designed reading sheet, the classification

was found cusy to use by six readers from four countries

in 16,000 radiographs from a survey of asbestos miners
and mill workers in Quebec. The variation within the
same observers was tested and found to be reasonably

small. The variation between observers was tested in a

study of 100 radiographs read by 12 readers from six

countries. The results indicate that the classification
should be satisfactory for many epidemiologic purposes.

But it is clear that further improvement in defnitions

and in the standard films might be e\pected to improve

the agreement between readers.

The classification is known as the UICC/Cincinnati
Classification of the Radiographic Appearances of Pneu-
moconioses. We believe it can be used to describe all the
principal types of pneumoconiosis.
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Saltzman 4 Direct _ -2~

The following deposition of DR. HERBERT
SALTZMAN, called as a witness by the defendant,
was taken before N. Anrette P. Myers, Court Reporter_'
and Notary Public in and for the State of North
Carolina at Duke Medical Centef, burham, North
Carolina, Room 0587, on Friday, September. 26,

1980, commencing at 11:10 a.m,

Whereaupon,

DR. HERBERT SALTZMAN,

having been dﬁly swoxrn,
was examined and tesﬁified
as follows: |
DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. DOSS: |
(DEFENDANT'S EXHIBITS 1 and 2,
SALTZMAN'S DEPOSITION,
MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)
MRf DOSS: Doctor, my nam2 is ﬁen Doss and
I represent Fieldcrest Mills , who's the defendaht 
employer in this case with Mrs. Evelyn Adams Smith.
This is Mr. Ken - Baggett of Fieldcrest Mills,.

who's Director of Workmen's Compensation and Safety
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Salzzman

-we've worked out by agreemant of counsel and the

- Direct | _ ;3_
at Fieldcrest.(indicates persecn at counsel's
right).

The Commissgion in Virginia who has this
case has left the record open for to allow each
of us, if we so desire, to cross examine the.
doctors that are in this case, and I believe that

we probablyv can agree Ed, that pursuant to that

witness tofbe here today so that notice_of,thé
time and date and place of taking the deposition.
would be waived. .

MR. GENDRbN: Yee,

MR. DOSS: You.have already bezn sworn,-
so let me ask you about Mrs. Smith, who I believe
you have seén and you rendéred a report.
I have,
The court reporter has marked for identification
Defendaﬁt's Exhibit 1, .which I will hand you,
which appears to'bersix (6) pages, and state
whathar or aot that compriseﬁ your report . that
was rendered upon your examination of Mrs. Smith. -
(Compares exhibit with file) Identical, absolutely.
okay, now, Doctor, I want to ask you a few questions

about the report and for the purposes of thes rest
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Saltzman

A

2

- assembled hor 1aboratory baae.

"All right, sir.

Direct -4~
Qf my questions would you refer to your cbpy and
tell what your diagrosis was of Mrs. Smith, after
your examination.
(Looking at report) Chronic obstructive pulmonary
diseése, chronic byssinosis more likely thanAnot;
possible contribution by cigarette amoking and
emphysama.
Okay, and these aré set out on page 2 of-your reporf
is that correct?
Yes,
All right,

Yeah, well, the emphysema I got 1nto after I

Okay.

That's outlined more, I think, on page 3, as a matter

of fact.

The last paragraph.

All right, sir, now, for the purposa of our dis~
cussion today, the report indicates that you saw
Mrs. Smith on May the 6th, 1980, is that correct?
ves.

And that you took a history --

Yes.

120" ¢
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Saltzman

Q

o0 -

Direct | ' =5
--of Mrs., Smith?
And vou conducted a physical examination df
Mrs. Swmith? |
Yes,
And you‘had pulmonary function studies done?
Yes. |

Blood gas tests done?

Yes.
-And. other related testsg?

‘Yes.

Pursuant to examining her pulmonary condition?

" Yes,

During- your examination you found some ‘other
medical problems which you'd indicated that these

were unrelated to her pulmonary problem as I

understand?

Yes. .

"All right, sir.

Now, the pulmonary function studies that
wera conductad are attached to your report as
page 6, I believe, is that correct, Doctoxr?

Yesa, I have one right here.

Now, the pulmonary function test does not diagnose

any specific disease, does it?

121, /
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That's correct.
It only indicates whether or not there is impair-
ment of pulmonary function?
Yes.
Okay. I believe--~ _
(Interposing) it would be fair to qualify that by
saying that there are certain kinds of impairment
in a pulmohary function test that are appropriaté
to certain diagnosis. .
You cannot dlagnose byssinosis based on a pulmonary
fucntlons study?

No.

It really is to measure impairment?

Yes.

You also cannot diagnose byssinosia by X=-ray?

That is correct.

X-ray can show other pulmonary diseases?

Yes. |

Othey than byssinosig?

Yes, |

Arnd you diﬁ conduct some x-ray studies of Mrs. Smitﬁ
Now, diagnosis of byssinosis is éssentially

based on history of exposure, is it not?--Togethér

with pulmonary impairment? .
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A history of exposure is essential plus

documgntation of chronic obstructive pulmonary

disease by pulmonary function testing.

So, you find out from the pylmonary function study -

whether or not there is, in fact, impairment and
then - you'gd to phase 2 to try find out what
caused that impairment?

Preciéely, a certain kind of impairment. |
Right, and that is when.yoﬁ get concerned about
ekposure “OX nongxposure to cotton dust.

In one or the other order.

Right, I seea.

Now, theAx-ray studies thai yoﬁ made of Mrs,
Smith were poéitive for emphysema, #efe.they not?
They--the x-rays showed4—let'me be very specific
on this. The x-rays showedla@erinflation_apd
x-rays showed increased linear density scar;ing-

The x-rays showed some curvilinear markings
suggesting a cyst or blebs.

Only the latter part of the x-ray findings
in itself is sugge$tive-of emphysema per se. The
hyperinflation, the increased markings can be seen
in garden variety chronic bronchitis, or chronic

bronchitis <called chronic byssinosis or in any




- FORM 2094

07002

BAYOHNE, N.1,

PENGAD CC..

12

13

15

¥

18
19

20

g

i g

Saltzman

&

b~
5

o

=

~examination. One can make a strong presumption

bzcause you didn't have the samples to work with?

Direct | : -8
form of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease.
The diagnosis of emphyséma in this lady's
case that I made waé based in part on the X-ray
changes and in part on the degree of hyperiﬁflatioﬁ
in her pulmonary function test, which was relafivelf
‘marked'and'in*part‘oﬁ-certain.subtletiesAin the |
pulmonary function test that want bayond what one
ugsually sees in a simple chronic brenchitis,
chronic byssinosis,
All right, and it was based on those observations
that you diagnosed émphysema?
Yes. |
Okay.
Yes, now; I would state that in addition, emphysema
“is a péthologic diagnosis. It's a diagnosis which

can:be made: jin absolute terms by microscopic

however, based on the ‘kind of data which I~~
you've alluded to..

Okay, but you--you didn’t make those other tests

That's corract.
Thode are done at autopsy?

Or at--

’
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Direct ' -G

(Interposing) Or live biopsy.

Right.

And yeu did not perform those on Mrs. Smith?

Did not.

Emphysema and chronic bronchitis are diseases that
are common to the gsneral public, are théy'not?
Yes, |

They éan be gotten by any pérscn in any working
environment? |

Yes.

Now, a person who's exposed to cotton dust, say, in
a textile mill, will not necessarily as a matter

of course contract byssinosis, will they?

.No.

Okay, some do and some don't.

Yes.

Okay, all right, in taking the history from Mrs.

Smith,; she : told you that she had wcrkéd in a
textile mill and that she had been in~-been
exposad to cotton dust while working in that
textile'miil?

Yes.

You do not know the level of cotton dgst that

Mrs, Smith would have been exposed to, do you?

125 iz
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“had smoked one to two packs a day during a ten yéar

I believe in the trade you'd call that a fifteen

‘to twenty pack year history’of cigarette - axposure?

- Direct ~10-
No, I have 6nly her sﬁbjective description.
Okay. 1In history taking from Mrs. Smith, she also
told you she had smoked cigarettes? |
Yes,

And I believe she told you that essentially she

interval?

Yes.

And whether or not she had smoked longer or less
than that, you don't know, you take her word for it3

That's right.

It's going to be someplace betwe=n ten or twenty.
Okay. |
You might split the difference.
Depending on whether she smoked one pack or: two
packsa? |
Right.
All right, siz.

Do you consider that significant tobacco
exposura?
Yes.

And of course, any longer time, if the recoxrd

126 / -
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Direct ' -11-
indicates that Mrs. Smifh had, in fact, smoked
‘longer would be even more significant exXposure?
(No response)

Would you agree with that? A
Yes, I think that it - ig clear thaﬁ the injury |
asgociated with cigarette smoking penetrates to
a different degree iﬁ peopla. |
Right. |
Just as people who work in.a cotton mill may get
into txrouble or may not. -

People may smoke and_hoﬁ_get into trouble
and most of thém don't, some do;
Is_it not true Doctor,that a person with emphysama
and chronic‘b;onchitis and who has smqked, but
haé hever been exposed to céfton dust cduld

exhibit the same symptoms and same pulmonary

- functions and same x-ray findings that Mrs. Smith

exhibited?
Yes, yes.

MR. GENDRON: I'm $oTry¥, I was writing
can youlrepeat that‘just for my benefit?

MR; DOSS: I'l1l try to rapeaﬁ it for you
and if that doesn't suit you, we can go back.

(referring to reporter's recoxd)
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.Direct _ ~12~
I asked him that isr'% it trus that a

person with emphysema, shronic bronchitis and
who has smoked but who had never been exposad to
cotton dust could exhibit the sams3  symptoms,
pulmohary function and x-ray as Mrs. Smith did.
2nd, his answer was yes. |
(Mr; Doés) If Mrs, Smith‘haa.come-intb see you
Doctox, and exhibited the same symptoms and
pulmonary function; same x-ray findings as wvere
shown on your examination, minus the history that
she had worked in a textile plant, you would
have‘diagnosed-emphysama, would you not?

I-~-I would have to give you a qualified yes. -

‘There would also have to be minus the histdry of

syﬁptcmatology associated with working in a cotton.
mill specifically, okay?_

But, if you are addressing that to the
symptoms and signs at the time I saw her at the
office, irrespective of that earlier history, ny :
answex would be yes,

Well, the earlier history being the history you

" took ftom her?

Yes,

So, essentially, when we throw in the byssinosis

w8,

AW
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Direct ' -13-
componant of her pulmohary problem it is
essentially referred to history of exposure?

Absolutely,

- Okay.

History of exposure and symptoms associated with
that exposure. |

Right.

To be precise,

Meaning reaction to it?

- Okay, Now, reactiqn to cotton dust, generally

speaking to people who are employed in the textile

trade, is measured in part by a decreasa in what
you call FEV1?

Yes,

And decrease in FVC, forced vital capacity?

Yes,

After some period of. exposure?

Yes.

Gznerally speaking, this --in ths trade, this
is=-~these tests when pexformed are performed after,

say, 8ix hours of exposure?

- Before and after.

Before and after.

A test before exposure and a test six hours after
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exposure?

- Yes.,

Now, your past experience dééling with psople
who worked in the textile mill and with textile
company indicate that that is how the tests are
condﬁcted, is that correct? |

Yes, | |

Is that a fair way of conducting such éltest to
indicate reactibility to exposure. .
Reactivity, Yes, at the appropriate time.
Right. |

In the course of the illness.

Okay. ©Now, if a person has a better FEV1 function

- or better FVC function after six hovurs of exposure

- as compared to pre-work exposure, would you conclude

from that then thatlpérson has not had reaction

to cctton dust exposure?

I would conclﬁde that it was not then demonstrable
on that day under those conditions.

Okay,

- And the reason for it are  several.

One might be that the patient doas not
reaSt to the cotton dust.

Right.
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Direct | | ~15~
Anoﬁher might b2 the patient might havé takén
medicatién.
Right.
Another might be that the patient wés testad
at a point in the natural history of this illness
whera the changes,we;e fixed and reactivity.no |
longer particularly evident.

The--there are a lot of 'variatibné. lI
would, in general, expact that a patient with
chronic obstructive puimonary discase would héve
some reactivity present, would given the prb@er

quélity of testing be worge at the end of the

day than at the beginning.

Okay.

But there are--
(Interposing) Exceptions.
Explanaéions.

Well, assuming that the person who was conducting

‘the test inquired as to whether or not this subject

*

was on madication and conducted the tast, in -

4
ra

ace,
prior to exposure and, in fact, after six hours
of exposure and did this not on one occasison but
ovér a series of occasions ovar a prolonged period

of time, say, for several years, if the FEV1 and

41
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Direct -16-

FVC was better after six hours exposure -hén as
compare to pre-work exposurs, you would conclude ~
from that, that that parson has not had a reaction_
tobcotton dust, wduld you not?

I would,vgiveﬁ the qualifications.

Right, sir.

“ You could, you know, the other qualification, that

the syatem worked on other pzople.

" Right.

And showed the responsze of people whp hévéhit.
Right.. One of the alternative conclusions wouid
be that the person.. does not react to cdtton dust?
It certainly would.

Doctor, we--maybe Mr. Géndron‘and I both and I'm
sure yourself have heard from timélto time

déscriptions from people who've been employed in

the textile industry about cotton dust,being in
the air and the lint getting on their hair and

their clothes énd.being dusty. That is not the gust|

that iz respirable, iz ix?
Well, it's respirable but the pure cotton itself
is thought not to be the cause--

(Interposing) Okay.

——of the injury. It is thought to be associated

132 ¢



RS
—

<

Saltzman Direct ' ' ~17~

2 | with the bract material.

3|0 The trash.

4 A Which is called trash.

510 All right, sir, so, it is generally accepted inl
6 i l. the medical field that the harmfulvpart -~ that

causes byssinosis is the part that's being

g ' respired but is not seen?

o | a (No responsa)

i Q Is that correct? _

1M | A I think that's correct.
e Okay. |

13 - Let meAstate it another way. I'm trying to
14 o make sure I understand. |

15 o | The descripﬁioha of the cotton in the air
16 ' arnd the cotton dust and the iint that'svin your

17 | hair and the lint that's on your nose is not a

-
3
I3
~
=
x
o
w

18 | true indication of the--the agent that the person
3 19 is exposzad td that causes the problem?b
: 20 | a That would.be true or not £rue depending upon U
é 21 whathar the concentration of thelagant corxalates
; 22 | with the concentration of lint.
§ 23| & If you got more of the seen stuff, you might
24 have morz of the unsaen stuff?
2J A Possibly, you know, your pecple would have a better
133
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Direct . ~18-

idea of that.
Okay.

Depending on the location.

I want to show you another document that Doctox, .

I believe you have -seen before which has been

identified as Dafendant's Exhibit 2 and it is,

for the record, classified as Table 98, "International

‘Classification of Persistent ~Radiological

Opacities in the Lung Fizlds Provoked by the
Inhalétion of Mineral Dustg".

Take a look at that doéumehtP Doctor. (hands
to witness) |

Ha&e you seen that before?
I'm familiar with it; oh, yesz, 'yes.
Doctor, state whether or not you can stage
byssinosis according to that chart?

You cannot.

Okay.

It is useless for byssinosis.

This is for pneumocoaniosis.
This is a pneumoconiosis chart.
Yes.
And that chart has as its basis tha diagnosis of

pneumononiosis basad on radiographic evidence?

134
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Direct -10-

Yeah, in coal miners in particular which is for
what it was designed.

Do you know of any way of grading, staging or
cerrelating degrees of byssinosisvbased on radio-
graphic evidence? |

No.

- Okay.

(DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 3,

SALTZMAN'S DEPCSITION,

MARKED FOR IDE! JTIFLCATIOV )

Doctor, I hand you anothar docunent which
has b881 *dentlflaias Defendant's Exh*blh 3,
and agk you please, if you will tell me what
that is. |
It 'looks like the bills for the work-up of the
patient;
Okay, that wbuld have been when Mrs. Smith was
down to have these tests that were done that
you've described?
Right, yeah, which were done on the 6th and 13th of
May. - |
Okay, now, under Block 16&, 2dmitting Diagnosis,
would you tell me what thosz are, please?

(reading frem exhibit) "Other diseases of—-"
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No, I den't even know who put it there.

Diract -~20-
-somathing, "diseases of aortic valve, rheumatic
psoriasis"‘and I see them, I didn'+t put theﬁ
there. _ |
Okay, and under 17 thereis additional diagnosis
of other psoriasis, is that correct?
ves.
That iz a skin disorder, izn't it?
Yes. |
‘That does nct relate to pulmonary function problems?
Does nbt.
The first one, Doctor that I want to calif your
attention to is 'S192, other disease.of lung”.

Is 5192 a kind of classification of

disease?
(looks at exhibit) That must have some significance
relevant to classification buf--.
Is that not the International Classification of
Diseases numbers? Is ﬁhat what that's used for?
It may weil be, I do not use those.

You do not. Do you know who put that on there?

Do you know whether or not thez number 5192 is a

part of the Internaticnal Classification of Diszasesp

I don't know whether that's true or no:. I would

R
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Doctor, I want to hand you another exhibit which

Direct -21-
guess it has to do with the standaxd classification
systém. |
Okay, do you know off the top of your head what
5192 is?

I do not.
(DEFENDANT'S EXHIﬁIT 4,
SALTZMAN'S DEPCSITION,

MARKED rOR IDENTIFICATION.)

has been identified as Defendant's Exhibit 4,
which is essentially a xerox copy of the face:
page of the book and the other pages have to do
with the classification system inside invelving
the respiratory systém, at least, that's what I'm
Saying. I want you to look at it and tell me if
that's correct, please, sir. |

It's so labeled, thé International Classification of
Diseases.' |

- Are you familiar with that book?

Yaah, I'm familiaxr with the hook.

Are you familar with that system of classification?
i'm generally familiar‘with the--that the system
exist,

And would you look and tell me for the record,

//Lé;‘}/f—
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Direct -22~
Please, what the classificatioen is for 519.2?
"Other diseasa of lung, Broncholithiasis,
Bronchopneumonia or pneumonia: allergic, 1lipid,

Loeffler's pneumonia, Pneumonitis: cholesterol, -

- eosinophilic, Pulmolithiasis, Pulmonary eosinophilis

Okay, Dr. Saltzman, just a few more questions.
Sure.

When you saw Mrs. Smith in April, I'm sorry, in
May-ofvl980, did you have the benefit Qf'the-reporﬁ

of Dr. Reginald Harris?

Mo,

Have you seen it since?

NOo

Have you ever seen it?
No.

MR. DOSS: Thank you, Doctor, that's all.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. GENDRON:

Qf

N

Doctor, lei me start with—ffirst with the questions
that Mr, Doss has addresséd and then move on to
some more general information.

Pfobably the best thing to address first
would be this billing statement from the Duke

University Private Diagnostic Clinic. Do you

’ N
o 7
TS
[
e
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Cross ‘ -23-

~have any responsibility or controi over the prepar-

ation of that document?

None. ‘ ‘

I notice thét the admitting doctor which is blank
number 10 is leftblank on that document, did you
give any direction with regard to the preparation
of this document? |
‘I--when I_fill'éﬁt the administrative.sheeﬁ, I
would put-diagnésis{:not a code and then"é clerk
will take the diagnosis ard put a ccée ndﬁﬁer on.
They clearly; At least, put an erronsous code
number on it or at least this one. |

That code number does not correspond with the
diagnosis that you made?

It does not.. |

(Looks at note) I think it would be better: to

- come back to some of those.

You and Mr. Doss discussed levels of cotton
dust exposure. Did Mrs, Smith give‘you any details
of exactly where she worked within the Fieldcrest
plant?

Yes, she stated that she worked as a quiller tender,
and I undeistood this to be & location between the .
spinning room and.weave room. That is, in reiative

/
VR
-’/{:‘f‘- Sy

/
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-Would the--ln your diagnosis, would the fact,"if“

Cross - C =24
terms, near the front end of the mill., And she
described her exposure to cotton dust as being
subStantial |
You also dlseussed the difference in the pure cotfon
dust and the bract or the . trash of the cotton
dugt, where--where is most of the bract encov..ntered9
Most of it is=s encountered in the openlnq rocm'
and there 1s progreselvely less as one moves
througn cardlng, splnnlng and weav1pg.‘f
Mrs. Smith was in the department whlch was between
splnnlng and weav:.ng‘> | .

As she stated to nme, yes.

1t were true, that there was no lelSlon, no walls
or separation between the card room and whern

Mra. Smith worked nake any differenca?

It would imply the likelihood of a greater exposure
to the bract material.

Switch tracks fordjust a moment. How do you--~

noWw does one normally contract byssinosis or

suffer the effects of it? |

I presume you refer to the chronic byssinosis?

Yes, sir.

Typically this occurs as the result of prolonged

A ~
eyl

i
/ ,»‘_") ~2
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Cross S _ —25-
occupational exposure to cotton dust: in thb~z
front part of a mill over a period of five years
or longer. |

There are arguments about theemacé_length
of time necessary to incur chronid byssinosis,
but for the purposes of the State of North
Carolina wa accept five yesars asltLe absolute
minimuh.

Okaf, you mentioned front line exposure"wsdld—-

MR. DOSS: (Interposing) Excuse ne, let
me just for clarification ask on that point, when
you say, "the. State of North Carolina", aré'you
talking about the medical people in North Carolina
or the 'Industrial Commission in North Carolina?
Medical and Industrial Commission and also the
United Ringdom. | |

It was ten yeérs and we just revieﬁed this
last Monday with the British, but you khow, at
the bell ehd of the curve, you know,'they and up—Q
you end up stretching it, but this is now what
is accapted.

(rix. Gendrcﬁf You mentionad front line exposure,
would working in the seme room as a card room
be front line exposure?

8 - -
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Cross -26-
Yeah, opening, carding, spinning and weaving,
the epidemiologic distribution is of lesser and
lesser fréquency as one moves away from opening
and carding towards weaving.
Okay. Spinning or a position between spinning
and weaving would or would not be consider front
line?
It would.
It would, and of course, if it just happened to be

in the same room with carding that would just make

it all the more front line?

Yes, front end. .

Front end?
Front end, in mill termms.
All right.

Did Mrs. Smith give you a historf inlregard
to how long she'd worked in a cotton mill?
She stated that she had worked in'the same area
for approximately thirty-three years.
So, obviously her position in the mill and length of
time fhat she was exposed WaS'éonsistent with the
diagnosis of byssinosis?
Yes.

If orne were to--and this is more in the. nature of

142
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Cross -27-
a hypothetical question than one that relates
specifically to Mrs. Smith, if cone ware to S
suffer the effects of byssinosis and the disease
were to progress, does it or doces it not become
irreversikle? |
It becomes irreversible.
Based upon your examination and treatment of Mrs.
Smith was She~—would you say that her condition is
reve:sible or irreversible?
Irreversible, in the main.
In the main?

Do you want to elaborate  on that?

Most patients with chronic robstructiﬁe pulmonary
disease will feel better or.worse at different
times.

Sometimes this has to do with intercurrent
infection making them fesl worse and feeling batter
when these superimposed effects are ameliorated.

‘Sometimes patients with chronic obstructive
pulimonary diszase, incliuding byssinosis, may have
multiple pulmonary problems. They may have an
element of reversible airway obstruction, typic¢ally |-
small. | |

The reversible portion would be small?
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Wouléd ke small.

Suppeose a person reached an irreversible stage
and then the environment in which they worked ox
iived which was causing this problem was cleaned
up, would it make any difference to that parson?
Not at this stage.

Okay, I believe vou earlier indicated the answver
to this question, but just to be suie, how long
would it take a person to reach the irreversible

stage?

hat it calls for soaculation abkout sonme

MR, GENDRON: All right, vou mav answer,

Well, it is vexy variable in the individual, but

we typically see irraversibla changas after ten

vears.

W P ) A N - o e Ty ay e Ao imae oty o o]
(¥r, Gzndron) Aftar mors than han vazes:,

4 - . -
And 1n regponsz2 to a quastion Hr., Dess asikzd ¥you,
iz gen2r3lly accantad wiitiiin the madical
nrofaza’on Dot In ki Unite? Ttatas and Creat

MR, DO5S: I'm ¢golng to oblact to tha guasti
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Iz byssinesiz a problem or diassase suffared by

the general public?
Can the general public contract byszinosis?

Why is that?
The léck of ex?osurento cotton dust.
Of course, the general public has some gxposure
to cotton dust, I assume you mean from that a
métter of degree?
fes, as~-

- MR. DOSS: (Interposing) I'm going to object

to counsel assuming what exposure the general

public has got.

(Mr. Gendron) Well, can you distinguish between

thevgenéral-publié's exposure and those people

who may suffer from byssinosis?

Well, people who suffer from byssinosiswork iﬁ

cotton textile mills orxr in hemp mills or flax mills.
I'm not aware of this diagnosis being made )

under other circﬁmstances.

People who suffer from byssinosis work in cotton

textile mills, hemp or flax mills?




Saltzman

Cxoss : ~30-

Yes.

Why»is it that those people who suffer from
byssinosis and the general public does not?
Those people who are so exposed occupationally
inhale cotton dust and certain of the raw
ingredients or trash associated with “the cotton
dust,

Could you just give us a brief definition of
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease?

Chronic obstructive pulmonary dizease refefs to
one, a disease which is chronic, which is character-
ized by obstruction of the flow of air through

the airways and out of the lung and which the
obstruction is, in the main, »ermanent and
irrevarsible,

All right, Mrs, Smith, referring to y&ur diégnosis,
has chrohic obstructive pulmonary disease?

Yes, ves, now, I have to clarify my previous

answer by saying that there is one form of

chrnoic obstructive pulmonary disease, bronchial
asthma, in which the definition is slightly
different, and in which reversibility is a cardinal
part of +the definition.

The definition of chronic obstructive pulmonary
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diseasg would encompass——?
A variety.
A variety of  problems?
Yes.
Is Dbronchitis within that?
Yes,
Cétegory?
Yes,
It falls undér the . rubric of chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease?
Yes,

Could you tell us, please, what bronchitis is?

‘Bronchitis is a--~chronic bronchitis is a chronic

ulmonary condition characterized by couch,:
I

variable sputum production and in its fullblown

0

‘form by airway obstruction, which is, in the main,

irreversible, with proliferation of certain glands
in the soft tiésues, i.e., the mucus membranes
linipg the airway and thickening of the membranes
in areés, and that's what 1t 1is,.

How is--how do those symotoms of bronchitis vary

from the symptoms of--well, let me withdraw that

guastion.
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Chronlc pronchitis and chronic byssinosis are
indistinguishable with two sxcaptions.

One is the occupation exvozure and the
second is, many patients with chronic bronchitis-—--
chronic byssinosis have earlier history of certain

o the raw cotton

o
ot

acute symptoms when expgose

dust . in the mill during the early part of the

work week,

You're saying, if I follow vou correctly,- then,
that thes symptoms of bvssinosis and bronchitis
are identical?

Are identical with those exceptionsf

Okay, with those exceptions which would mean then

that the byssinosis is eSsentially bronchitis

-caused by cotton dust exposure?
‘I think that is a fair way of putting it.

You mentioned certain acute symptoms from people

suffering from byssinosis, could you tell us what

they might be?

Typically, the

worker describe
congestion or h
sometines wheez

Tr

.(:

25€e SVInY

initial part of the work week the
s symptoms such as tightness or
eaviness accompanied by cougn,

ing and restlessness,
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the work week,

they disappear completely during the wezkand.

They characteristically do so during the
early phase of which the symptoms first appear
and then occur again in acute form at the beginning
of the next work week,. |

Is this what you describe as HMonday Morning

Yeah, there may be fever which is likely to
imply suprainfection.
So, people who have been removed from the cotton

dust exposure and then put back into it on Monday

&)

mbrning have more acute symptoms, is that basically
what you're saying?

Yes,

And that would generally last through part of the
day on Monday and then subside? |
Yes, - |

How about after the diseaze has reached its

he Moandav mornin

\_(_2

u
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e
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irraversible stage, is ¢

)

Because at that point they have permansnt changes
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and byssinosis?

Cross o ~34-
and they have svmptoms throughout the week and
throughout the weekend.

These patients will ofﬁen feel worse
when working than when not worlking, It's not
clear how much that has to do with inhaling
foreign material and how ﬁuch it has to d6 with
working.

You've diagnosed Mrs. Smith as having emphvsema

Yes.
What is emphysema exactly?

Yecu've already described byssinosis as
being bronchitis caused by cotton dust, what
is emphysema?
Yes. v

MR. DOSS: I'm going to object to that
last statement because that's not what the doctor
testified to.
(Mr. Gendron) If that's not what you testified
to, would you tell us what you did say?

Wall, I--I thought I said Mrs, Smith had chronic

byssinosis and emphysema.

Right.

I think it .would bereascnable to presume--well, when
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an elenent of pronchitis independent of bronchitis

that-is implicit in chronic byssincsis is hard to
sort out.

She's been a cigarette smoker.
Okay;, I think what Mr, Doss was objecting to--~
(Intetposing) Yeah, Itm not sure on that.
~-1s the definition of byssinosis is bronchitis
caused by cotton dust;

Is that what you said the definition was?

‘Yeah, I think that's a fair definition.

" You can't--you can't separate out clinically

and pathologically chronic bronchitis from byssinosi

aside from the occupational history, there is
simply an occupational form of chronic bronchitis.
All right, then, what is emphysema?

Emphysema is a form of c11 nic obstructive

pulmonary disease with it's cardinal characttrlstlc

There is an actual loss of lung tissue that
is progressive and it is associated with airway
obstruction. 2And it may well be associated with

other kinds of chronic obstructive pulnonary
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disease, including chronic bronchitis if the
individual is a smoker.

But, the cardinal distinction is that lung
tissue ié lost with time. |
Okay.
And there are certain_chaiacteristics. of that
on ;hat. -
Physical effect, then, of emphysema show up
primarily within the lung?
Yes.
Where do the physical effects of bronchitis™ and
byssinosis showAup?
They show up within the lungs but primarily thé
airways of the lungs, in the bronchii?
Tubes and air passages?
Tubeé, yes,
So the symptoms are fairly distinguishable
between the two?

The symptoms may not be distinguishable.
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pathology is different
‘There is a great overlap in the pulimonary
function test. There are some fine distinctions

that may or may not apply in pulmonary function.
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Schilling Index describes?

Cross ~-37~

It is possible to see changes in the chast
x-ray that point toward eméhysema, Symptoms? . No.
Symptoms in the chronic state.

In your opinion hoth of these diseases were
present in Mrs, Smith?

Yes,

Briefly, Doctor, would you tell us what the

-

The Schiiling Index is a crude classification of
byssinosis which incorporates the initial\écute
phase and extends to chronic irreversible phase.
It goes through a 0, 1/2, 1, 2, 3 sequence
in which the lowest number refer, in generél, to
those individuals who had this asthma-like |
transient, early in the work week symptomatoloay
which is tot--with transient changes in the
pulmonary function tésts which is totally reversibklg
and the Class '3 refers to the irreversible
inpairment then, symptomatically and by pulmonary
function tests.
Shecilling has class or stage -1, 2 and 3, is that
correcc? '
Yeah, and sometimas he's uséd a class 1/2.

Okay. ©Now, in the s

oS

me vein, the AMA Scale gozs
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Yes,

But, it's based on different criteria?

Well, yeah, and it is not specifically,felated to
byssinosis, 1It's a general classification of
respiratory impairment.

And Schilling is specifically relatad to byssino-
sis ? | |

Yes, : -

What is that?
The Karnofski Scale turns it arouand.

That is, the Karnofski is genarally a scale
of impairment, of functional capability rather
than impairment.

It describes what an individual is capable
of doing based on his total medical assessment.

ically to lung disease

t

- ] s A e P S 4w 1
It does not ralate spaci

such and such.
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this individual is capable of doin
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Karngfs?i to measure COPD?~—Or clagsify it?
12rs but they're not in very
- common use.
The classificaticn that sometimes has been

~grafted on and used are those of the Heart

Association which is used to classify patients

-

ous

'.._'.

with heart disease. And, some of these var

{

classificatiéns they use have been enployed also
in iung disease. They are particularly b?qause
the exercise tests, stress tests have commonly
be&p worked out with heart fitness criteria.

Are these three we have discussed the most commoh
three in use?.

Yes.

Yeah, I want to add that the AMA classificatio
is a_nationally used scéle which~--in which the
classification for, let's say, respiratory
impairment also correspondS to classifications

or cardiac

they use for orthopaedic problems

problams cor other svitoms,

o

kay, o, once again, this Schilling is the only
one that pertains specifically and exclusively to
byssinosis?

Yes.
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Cross ' ~40-~
Mr. Doss askad you if you had seen Dr. Harris'®
report, dated August 29th, 1980 on Mrs. Smith.

I'll show you that,

f

If you'll refer to the conclusions page.
(turns to page)
Ycu indicated in your report that you classified

Mrs. Smith AMA categorv 3, Dr. Harris has her in

category 4.

How do you make a determination of what
category a patient is in?
There are three --there are three or four--three
yardsticks ‘which can be used.

bne is the symptomatic performance of the’
patient. What the patient describes as his or
her capabilitieé.

The patient describes herself as having to

~walk slowly on level ground, having some difficultie

therein. And that, stptomatically, generally,

conforms to a stage 3, AMA level of impairment.

1]

At the same time she is cepable of working
and most people who are cabable of industrial .
employment are generally thought to be better

than that ‘and conform to stage 2.

On the other hand, she was doing a job she .

/5
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Cross | T-4]--
knows how to do, and our experience has been |
that people continue to work at levels of
impairmen# that would not make it possible with
less experiénced or less motivated,

If one turns to her -pulmonary functions

test, the--that conforms to a stage 4, because she

.has a--her FEV1 is below fifty percent (50%)

and everything else in the pulmonary function
test corresponds.with that. ‘ B

I'm taiking about the tests that we did.
Right.
If one looks at her cardio-respiratory exercise

test this patient had a severe subnormal performance

‘and was somewheres roughly on the 3-4 interface.

She could easily be classified as stage
4 on that basis. She could be classified as
stage 3.

My bias has been, where I thought I had good
information from the patient, that‘I would often

o ey L A Jo o . ’ S =4 K Ty g A - s LN
use the symptomatic classification but--and it

oy

was hard for me to relate hexr ability to continue

‘to woxk, you know, out performing her symptoms.

Way out performing her pulmonary function test,

and put her in a classification that applies to

/5
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someone who is essenﬁially an invalid.

you have--

(Interposing) It's these little thinés.

You had a borderline then between 3 and 4 on
that? |

Absolutely.

~And you placed her in class 3 based primarily on

~what she told you she was able to do?

Yes,
In spite of the fact that she tested sicker than

that?

‘Her tests-were--showed more severe impairment

than her symptomatic performance,

Now, just a point of clarification before we go
on. Now, the AMA Scale from 1 through 4 you
describe categories which are more severe--strike
that. |

Less severe in stage 1 and progressively

-more severe through stage 47?

Yes,

On the Schilling Scale you're'describing a
problem which is less severe at stage 1 and more
saevere t;rough staga 3?

Yesg,
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Cross ~43-~
Ybur report doesn't include any Schilling
classification, are you in any position to make
one today?

Schilling 3.

Schilling 3.

That's related to her byssinodic state?
Yes.
Doctor, basdd on your experience, training and
on your treatment and diagnosis of Mrs. Sﬁith,
is it your opinion that she has byssinosis or

not? . : ,

Yes.

Okay, and you have just stated that she is stage
. 1
Yes,

MR. GENDRON: That's all I have.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY " MR. DOSS:

0

MR. DOSS: Just a few more questions.
Doctor, Qhen talking with Mo, Cendron apout
exposure, a great dzal of your testimony, I would
assume, was from a general standpoint and not--
maybe not totally related to Mrs. Smith?

Is that correct?

/,)77’/

(it -
P /4
7/
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That'’s right.

as it relates to Mrs. Smith, you
are not aware of the levels of cotton dust
exposure, are you? |
I have no okjective information.
You have simply what she told you?
Yes,
Do you know what is done in the quilling depart- 
‘ment? What kind of operation is performed? °
Not in details, she did give me some desc:iption,
I don't have precise information on that,
Have you ever keen into any cotton mill and ever
taken any dust levels?
No.
Based on what you have read and studied and from
your past experience,“if it is a sewing threadv
that Mrs. Smith works with in‘the quilling departmen
would you expect there %o be a significant amount
of dust, cotton dust from that operation?
I wouldn't expect it from working with finished
thread.
Okay. If working with finished thread in a
re—packagingvproc,ssbts opposed to a varn processiag

4

operation, would that be an operation which you

t,
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of pulmonary diseases?

Redirect ~45-
would expect there to be.a significant amount of
dust? |
No.

Would you consider four hundred (400) micrograms
to be significant cotton dust exposure? N
That's thought to be a low level.

And three hundred and two hundred would be'evén
less?

Yes.

COPD, Doctor, chronic obst . stive pulmonary

disease is a broad classification for a number

Yes,

Inciuding but not limited«to emphysema, chronic
bronchitis and bySSinosis? |

Yes, |

Chronic 6bstruc£ive pulmonary disease does not
in and of itself give any indication of the specifig
pulmonary prcblem from which one may suffer?
That's correct.

Or --or what its causal relation may or may not
be tc, say, work environment?

Correct.

Because pecple whec do not work in textile mills

161
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Redirect -46~

can have and do get COPD?

In the form of emphysema, in the form of chronic
bronchitis?
Yes.
You can get chronic brOnchitis without working
in a cotton mill, can't YOu?
Yeah.
The Schilling Index and the AMA Scalé that you
testified about, neither of those two are based
on x-ray evidence, are they?
You're correct.

There are x-ray criteria in the AMA index
but they're very general and a minor part of the

classification.

That brings to mind, the AMA classification is

. a rather complicated classification.

Complicated, it applies to a lot of illnesses,

there are a lot of x-ray criteria in it, but

there~-they’'re very general. They have very little

impact on the ultimate classification.

It~--the AMA classification also has a great deal
of involvement with the--with the cardio--the
heart aspects of pulmonary iméairment too, doesn't

it?
f///'-—':
¥ o
./{) /
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A - Yeah, yes, that covers things like tuberculosis.

Right.

And cancer, almost anything that has comes--
(Interposing) Right, what it amounts to when

you use the classification is that it is about.as
,gqod a4 guess as you can come up with, isn't it?

I thin it——thét—-I find that as a statement, vaéue.

The AMA classificatiqn,.l Find help_ui.

It doesn't make a diagnosis,

‘Right,

But, it.doés help to compartmentalize patients
into groups that are definable in terms of impair-

ment.,

15 | ' Its vaguzsness comes from the problems of
1wy - assessing very complicated biologic_vsyStems,

: 17 , : humans.

E 18| - "And it can be-Qery unvague--it can bhe very

é 19 | precise on some individuals. It can be very

: 20 vague in others.

§ 2 | | That depends on many fastovs.

g 22 00 In your report ycu originally interpreted Mrs.

? 23 ' ' Smith to have a class 3, AMA respiratory impairment,
24 thirty~five percent (325%) whole body?
25 | That'é correct.

%1
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~Redirect ~48-

t-h

And you interpreted that half of this impairment
to reflect byssinosis. |

Yes, very arbitratily.

Now, byssinosis is the only'one'of the COPD

diseases that could have related to her occupa~’

tional exposure?

" Yes.

You're talking about half of the thirty-five

percent of the whole body in ybur report?’

Yes.

All right, now, sir, as you've previously
testified, the basis of that is essentially the

history of exposure as conveyed to you by Mrs.

Smith, correct?

- The history of exposure and the symptoms associated

with it,  ves.

'Okay, the symptoms being pulmonary impairment?

In the early work week,

Okay.

The pulmonary impairment could havé related

to any c¢f the other COPD 'diseases, and in fact,
you did so--diagnose one of them as “emphysema,

isn't that correct?

© I think that her present pulmonary impairment

(/&
P
i . ‘
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Redirect -49~

symptoﬁstand objective finéings cénnot be--
could'occﬁr in some one ﬁho ;ad never gone into
a cotton mill, that's absolutely true.

right.

The‘symptoms she described tha: she worked in

the mill years ago have some significance, if

. they're valid diagnostically in terms of

byssinosis,

She did describe early work week, an .early
work week asthma equivalent, if you want to use
that term, Monday morning symptoms.

If the history is accurate that has
diagnqstiC"significance.

All right, now, one of the things about bronchitis
is the chronic cough. -
Yes.

With production of ~sputum?
Over some prolonged period of time?

Now, Mrs. MSmith did not relate those symptoms'
to you, did she?
(Looks in medical file) she did indeed relate

cough and sputum production in my rough notes.

/G
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That was noi in the typad report,

was you told Mr. Gendron..

‘byssinosis as a special form of chornic bronchitis

Redirect ~50~
I emphasized in my typad notes the
wheezing and ths breathlessness that were initially
transient and then persistent.
In my rough noteé she did describe cough
in association with the wheezing. She did

describe brownish sputum expectoration.

That was left out in the typed report?

Now, I want to make sure I understood what it

-

Did you tell Mr., Gendroh while ago that
chronic bronchitis was caused by e#posure to
cotton dust?

I said that chronic bronchitis is indistinguishabla
from chronic byssinosis aside from the occupation--
(Interposing) Okay.
—~exposufe history.

And that one can choose to describe chronic

due to the cotton dust exposure.

It is indistinguishable symptomatically.
and pathologically otherwise.
Okay, you indicated to me earlier, Doctor, that

number one, a person can have emphysema and never
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Radirect ~52.-

have worked in a textile mill?

Yes.

A person who has worked in a £extile mill may

also ha&e emphyseﬁa?

Absolutely.

A person may have chronic bronchitis who has never
vorked in a textile mill?

Yes,

Som2body who had worked in a textile mi;l.may'also
have chronic bronchitis? |

Trve, yes, sir,

A person may have worked in a textile mill for a
long, long period of time, more than ten years,
and not have byssinosis?

That’s correct.

' But, a person may have worked in a textile mill

for longer than ten years and may have byssinosis?
Yes.

So, if a person has worked in a textile mill, who

M - 1 3 : S . EEER . = — e =
a3 smokKed crgareties and nas a4 gragnoesls QL

emphysema, he could just have likely gotten that
emphysema from someplace other than the workplace?
We presently think that the emphysema has nothing

to do with workplace.

-
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Ckay,  a parson who has worked in a cotton mll1
and smoked cigarettes and had a diagnosis of

chronic bronchitis, ccould have just as well have

~gotten that chronlc bronchitis from someplace

else and c1garette smoxlng°

Yes,

A person who has worked in.a cotton mill--strike

the question.
As far as Mrs. Smith is concerned, her

diagnosis of COPD or pulmonary problems could

“have just as well have come from cigarette
,smokJng or from emphysema unrelated to her
employment in a textile mill, could it not?

Yes,

MR. DOSS: Thank vyou.
MR. GENDRON: Doctor, just a couple of

brief questions.

RE~CROSS~EXAMINATION BY MR, GENDRON:

By

Tith regard to harxmful expeosure, if arson nas

0
'U

worked for thirty years in the yarn preparation
department, which is between spinning and weaving
but in the same room as the card room, do you’

consider it likely that they have harmful e>Dosure7

//'d?')\
, 7

168




- FORM 2094

07002

N.J.

nE,

BAYOQ

PI"ENGAD CO.,

10

1

12

13

14

- 15

17
18
19 |

20

21

22

23

24

25

16 |

Saltzman

. processed

Re-croés ~-53-
I'm coing to object to that unless.
he can tell us what those levels wera, as pure
speculation. | |

MR. GENDRON: Okay, let me just say--this

is for the record, that this is in direct response

‘to a question propounded by Mr. Doss to the doctor

with regard tb exposures,
My answer to the question is, yes, presuming ‘there
have been éignificant levels of cotton dust.
Okay. |

With regard to significant levels of cotton,
did I understand you to tell Mr. Doss that this
cotton you can see in the air, is filtering'down,
getting on machines and clothes, that is most
likely the harmless type of cotton dust, but, if
that's in the air most likely the harmful—tYpe
cotton dust is also in the air?
I think that obviously depends on the technology
of the system.

That depends - on wnat--now the cotiton was:
at the point at which oﬂe sees it.
Okay.
In the mills that exposures that relate to thz

patients - that I am seeing, these genesrally relate
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Cthirty-forty vear.
been in meny mills, bu
all mills, harmful exposura
raw--to the ﬁrash part of <cctton in those
conditions.
Suppose a person had worked in a cotton mill
for thirty yeérs, and today there was absolutely

‘no cotton dust in the air, does that mean that
° ;

the person could not contract byssinosis?.

No, because one would need to know what the
exposure was over that' thirty vears,

All right, can emphysema be caused or contributed

" to by other chronic obstructive pulmonaryv diseases?

Under certain circumstances, yes, as a general
response.

Okay,

Is there any way to tell which came first
if you have two pulmonary problems and they both

existed at the time of the diagnosis?

e
s}

-
LN

~
: s,

2

Ul

One would have to Geal with more

There are certain conditions which we are
not talking about today but which clearly lead
on to emphysema and certain of those individuals,

there are certain kinds of exposures which clearly
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aggravawe the process.

But,. bne would have to deal with specific
entities,
Is byssinosis one of those things that ;ould ‘
aggravate or cause emphysema?
Not to my khowledge. |

You've expressed no opinion with regard to what

i

effect cigeretta smcking may have had on Mrs.
B .

+

‘Smith's condition. Do you hold no opinion in

that regard or has it just been omitted or what?

MR, DOSS: I'm going to object to counsellor's
question as it incorrectly states the doctor's
position about what he said akout cigarette smoking

in this patient.

n

MR. GENDRON: I withdraw that gquestion.
(Mr, Gendron)‘ Let me put it this way.
You stated in response to Mr. Doss's
question, I belie&e, and if I'm wrbng cofrect me,
that cigarette 'smoking could have an effect on
the pulmonary conditicon of Mrs. Smith?
Yes.
Bﬁt, if you gave an opihion of>your own as tc whethe
it did, I.don't recall,

Did you give such an opinion?

PN
,/4/7
’a , .,fd.'" .
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Re-Cross
I don’t'fhinkAI clearly stated it.

I think that——tﬁis. This lady almo--
very, very probably has emphysema,'baséd on the
information we know abcut her,

The fact that she did smoke cigarettes almost
certainly aggravated that problem, if it wasn't
‘a2 major factor in its cause.

We cannot know'all of the reasons why one
individual develops émphysema, but we--there are--—
there 1s a very significanﬁ correlation between
cigarette smokihg and emphysemanis chanages.

And, it would be reasonable to presume that wi
her smoking history,with having emphysema, that

there is a relationship between the two.

You mean emphysema and smoking?

Yes.

Is there any relationship between smoking and
byssinosis?

xay, there is'an—-there is reason to spzaculate
and Ehink that emphysema induced by cigarette
smoking combired with the chronic byssinosis
process would lead té more impairmant than one
of these processes alone, or than ths two

in terms

of their individual

processes' sum,

th
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Saltzman

contrikutions.

If we study in éxperimental models conditions
in which one condition is present and then add
a second condition and compére the two conditions_
separately to the sum of the two, the sum of the

two will produce more impairment of function in

the laboratory.

‘Let me go back a moment, but you said, I believe

that cigarette smoking may have caused Ehe‘emphysema
Yes,

But,»cigarette smoking could not have caused the
bys;inosis?
That's correct.
But, the two problems togsiher may be more
important than the sum of the two halves?
Yes,

MR. GENDRON: Thank you, that's all I have.

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. DOSS:

.

1.3 - " — : ~ K N -~ . £ ¥ - St
T thirk you also told ma that all of Mrs, Smith's

problems could have been caused by tha cigarette

smoking?

Okay, or could have b=zan causad by the emphysema?

N

.. ’)‘,‘

J

S e -
; B
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Further Redirect - =58~

]

i

Yes, possible.
MR. DOSS: Thank vyou, Doctor;
MR. GENDRON: I have one last question
and I‘ll be through.

Sure,

o

FURTHER RE-CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. GENDRON:

Doctor, you say thaf all her problems could have
‘been caused by the cigarette smoking, but so
far you've stated no opinion as to whether they
were, are you capable or are you in a positionv
to do that? |
My--based on the information that I had, I think
that this lady has both emphysema and chronic
byssinosis. |

I think thatvon a more likely than not basis
that chronic byssinosis is a component, significant
component of her pulmonary problem. | ‘

That is based on the information that I have.

FURPHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. DOSS:

MR. DOSS: Would your opinion be the same
Doctor if pulmonary function studiss done on Mrs.'
Smith over a period of about eight consecutive
years indicated that her FEVlfs and F--

s c{f ¥

/ L./

;. 4
/
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Further Pedirect -59~

HMR. GENDRON: (Interposing) Okject to
that . questicn because there is no foundation
iﬁ.the record of what you're about to say has been
done.

MR. DOSS: The record has been introduced
at the last hearing.
(Mr. Doss) That the test indicate +hat the FEV]
and FVC were better after six hours of-exposure
than pre—woik-w T

'MR. GENDRON: (Interposing) Excuse me, I
need to lodge another objection. Ths document may
have been entered but there's been no interpretation
oxr explanation of  the document, ;nd thereﬁore,
the foundation has not been properly laid.

'MR. DOSS: Go ahead and answer it, Doctor,
I would certainly have to rethink my diagnosis.

See, it depends on variables that we'vez
already talked about.
(Mr. Doss) Right,

It--it would depend, of course, you know, one

thing I didn't talk about is what was the pretreatmen

value, how ¢lose was it to normal.
I think what I'm saying is that, tha further
down the road she was when they started testing

ot

7N e
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Further Redirect -50-

har the

—
v

ess cen--diagnostic is the pre- and

PoOst-treatment relationship.

cr

If you take someone early on who has a
normal FVC and you put them in the mill and--

for six hours and you test them, and there is

- no change, then you've got a very clearcut result,

0

Well, what if there is change?
And if there is change, you've got a very
significént result, either way. )
If it changes for the better?
If it changes for the better; you're not dealing
with acute byssinosis,

MR, DOSS: Thank yoﬁ.
But, if you see someone who's got a fifty percent

vital--forced vital capacity, then you test them,

you're already dealing with damaged goods. And,

~the interpretation is different.

You're ~.dealing with somebody with some sort of
pulmonary probklem?
Absolutely.
Not necessarily byssinosis?
That's correct.
MR, DOSS: Thank vou,

MR, GENDRON: But, that person is in a
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Colloguy -61~

category where -an incresase between

the ralationship betwszsn FBEV and FVC really
makes no difference, |

It's more difficult to interpret.

GENDRON:

MR. All right.

MR.‘DOSS: It does make some difference.
(LAUGHTER) |
Yes, |
MR, DOSS: That's all.
MR.'GENDRCN: We'll stop.

(WITNESS EXCUSED)

FURTHER DEPONENT SAITH NOT
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‘were more severe at the beginning of the week and were clearly not continuous

" 1ife. There is no other personal or collateral history of allergy related

DUKE UNIVERSIT{ MEDICAL CENTER ("ﬂH,EWﬂwamms
3 \

. e
MEDICAL NOTE N6 & 242

Dr. Saleﬁig

NDDC'»?\ 3 DEFEFNDANTIS

{8, EXHIBIT 5
5/6/30 | 3 f ;7
N

The patient is a 5l-year-old widow and textile mill emp o?egbfrom Bassett, Virginia
where she lives in a conventional rural setting. There are dwo children. She has
been exposed to cotton dust in a textile mill in the same arel\ior approximately

33 years. She works as a quiller tender (between the spinning room and weave
room). The exposure to cotton dust, according to the patient, is substantial.

She did smoke one to two packs of cigarettes a day during a 10 year interval,
terminating this habit 1 1/2 years ago. There is a dog house pet{and house plants.

CHIEF COMPLAINT: ' Shortness of breath.

‘\ .
HISTORY: S Beginning 10 years ago the patient noted the
y onset of some chest tightness, wheezing,
breathlessness and a feeling of being unwell in association vith work. Symptoms

then. Gradually during the subsequent 10 years this pattern has. continued with
a significant change/in that symptoms are mow continuous although she remains
bothered more early un the week than later., Recently dust masks have been given
to employees in that area. She finds these so uncomfortable that she cannot wear
them when working however. At present the patient may be short of breaﬁh without
exertion at times and she cannot keep up with her contemporaries walkinz cn level

ground. She has had mild symptoms of spring and autumn hay fever throughout her

illnesses. There is no history of childhood asthma. Recently she has taken a
l1iquid medicine for breathing, in the evening. - Other significant medical:problems
have included psoriasis for which she is followed (salve used in treatment and
generally adequately controlled) and a chronic left lower leg ulcer during the
past 10 years for which she is also being followed elsewhere. The review bf systems
otherwise was positive for difficulty in sleeping, chest pain with bad breathing
episodes between the shoulders and under both breasts, the need for two pillows at
night, occasionally waking up short of breath and she did have a pelvic examination
sithin the past year. .The past wedical history otherwise was positive for the
usual childhood illnesses and intermittent pleurisy (last time 1978). A benign
cyst was removed from the right breast operatively. The family history was
uninformative.

Physical examination revealed a well developed, slender white lady in no.acute
distress. Vital signs: weight 114; height 5'4": temp. 36.5; BP 80/60; ;
respirations 24; pulse 16. :

Skin: psoriasis near elbows-stasls changes on skin of lower extremities.
Lymphatics: no significant systemic lymphadenopathy. ,

Head, Neck: narroved retinal arterioles, normal pupillary reflexes and ocular
motion, slightly swollen nasal mucous membianes but nasal passages are adequate,
normal traasillumination of sinuses, normal tympanic and pharyngeal membranes,
supple neck without masses. .

Thorax: symmetrical,decrgased~excursionst Normal resonance. Very distant breath
sounds. With forced maximal exhalation the explratory breath sound was prolonged
and expiratory wheezes were heard over both lungs.
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5/6/80/‘

Cardiovascular: regular rhythm, no gallops or murmurs. Decrease in pedal pulses
bilaterally. :

Breasts$: no masses.

Abdomen: no masses or tenderness

Pelvic+Rectal: gynecologic examination elsewvhere.

Extremities: varices present bilaterally. Edema and sta31s changes on Skln.-
Chronlc ulcer on left leg above ankle (bandage) :

Assessment: , 1) chronic obstructive pulmenary discase,
chronic by551n031s more likely than not-possible
contribution by cigarette smoking
2) psoriasis-medical treatment elsewhere
3) .peripheral varices and stasis ulcer
(medical treatment elsewhere) :

4) atherosclerosis and physical .. f1nd1n0s

‘ of peripheral vascular 1nquff1c1ency

| ' 5) mild allergic rhlnltls‘

Recomménded management: 1) data base to be expanded with complete blood
C count, clean catch urinalysis, 18 blood chemistrie
ECG, chest x-ray, pulmonary function -fests and
cardiorespiratory exercise test with arterial
blood gases. I will review the results of these
tests and provide a completed assessment to the

" patient and her attorney, Mr. Gendron

Herbert A. SaltZman, M. D,

-

HAS/cm .
D: 5/6/80

T: 5/6/80

ce: Patient
Mr. Gendron

CBC: hemoglobin 13.3; hematocrit 39.4; RBC 4.61; WBC 6500; neutrophil 5§; lymphocyte
355 monocyte 4; eosinophil 2; basophil 1; normocytic; normochromic; adequate™platelets
MCV &6; MCHC 34.3. .

Urine: yellow, hazy; pH 5.0; sp. gr. 1.020; protein 0; sugar 0; WBC rare; RBC 0;
cpithelial cell occ.; bacteria 0; casts 0; ketone bodies 0; benzidine 0.

Chem 6: sugar 76; BUN 13; sodium 144; potassium 4.3; chloride 10§&; CO2 content 30.
(hcm T? total protein 6.1; albumin 4.0; calcium 9.§; phosphorus 3.4; cholesterol 20§;
uric acid 4.1; creatinine 0.§; total bilirubin 0.4; alkalinc phosphatase 75; LD 204;
SCOT 1§,

Chest x-rxay:  PA and lateral views of chest show nonspecific increase in markings

in all lung fields; lincar scarring is noted in both upper lung fields and apical
pleural thickcning is prescnt bilaterally; many of the markings are curvilincar
suggesting cysts and/or blebs; diaphragms arc low and flattened; cardiac silhouette

within normal limits; this patient does have a slight k)phO%lS'uuﬁitfmctus deformity

12t damde 2n manFuacn A diiatian AL tha Aantasrias nadd actinnm,



ECG:

DUKE UNIVERSITS MEDICAL CENTER C SMITH, Evelyn Adams
N6 & 242
-3 . Dr. Saltzman
/2Amﬁﬁf\\
5/6/80

sinus brédycérdia, rate 58; otherwise normal ECG; no\previous ECG found.

ADDENDUM : S
The assembled laboratory base has been reviewed.Chest x-ray changes are those of
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease with a significant component of emphysema.
Pulmonary function tests are entirely consistent with the radiologic picture,
revealing severe wventilatory obstruction, marked hyperinflation (absolute and
~relative) and severely impaired carbon monoxide transfer. The cardiorespiratory
exercise test was abnormal with subnormal aerobic performance. At the maximal
level of exercise attained, ventilation was the limiting parametér¢ Normal
gas exchange was maintained under these conditioms with.normal resting arterial
blood gases (Pa02 of 88 and PaCO02 of 40 mmHg). With progressive exercise oxygen-—
ation of arterial blood improved (105 and 37 mmHg respectlvely for Pa02 and PaC02
at 75 Natts)

/éhe following comments bear on questions relevant to causes of pulmonary impairment
and quantitation of impairment. Clearly the patient has had an occupatlonal
exposure to cotton dust. Clearly she has severe chronic obstructive pulmonary
disease. Emphysema and chronic bronchitis are the evident causes for her chronic
obstructive pulmonary disease. I interpret byssinosis to be a-more likely than
not etiologic factor in the evolution of chronic bronchitis. The role of
cigarette smoking is difficult to quantitate here. It may well contribute to
bronchitis symptoms. The emphysema can be regarded presently as reflecting .
factors other than cotton dust exposure. Cigarette smoking may be a relative .
cdusative factor. There are no nonpulmonary work related problems, identified in
this work-up.  The patient does have other significant medical conditions. These
are enumerated in my note of 5/6/80. They do not appear to be functionally
limiting. I interpret this patient to have Class III AMA respiratory impairment-
35% whole body. 1I. interpret half of this impairment to reflect byssinosis. By .
conventional criteria this patient has sufficiently severe respiratory impairment

" to be unable to withstand the rigors of regular industrial employment./ Since she
is presently gainfully employed under these circumstances a discrepanly exists.
This is not uncommon in a motivated individual performing a familiar job for which
compensatory techuiques have been learned. Clearly the patient requires long term
medical supervision and treatment for her severe chronic lung disease. Clearly

she should not continue to work in an environment containing noxious or potentially

noxious inhalants.
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DUKE UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER NAME: SMITH, EVELYN
HISTORY #: N68 242

WARD: MPDC ,
DOCTOR: SALTZMAN j

PULMONARY FUNCTION LABORATORY

. EXERCISE TEST
TION: Evaluate exercise capacity of pat-

lent w
cotton

TEST C

ith history of occupational exposure to | HEIGHT (cm): 165.1

dust (34 years).

ONDITIONS:

.
M
S

Cl

A)

- He
. oF:
OBSERVA

/\\
WEIGHT (kg): 532;3’/’*5 ‘
AGE: 51 DATEY 5/13/8Q0 {‘

TME: 11:30 A.M.
EDICATIONS: None.

MOKING HISTORY: Quit 1% years ago;
prior to quitting.
JRRENT ACTIVITIES:'Can walk slowly on the level without much

difficulty. Climbing stairs, sweeping and moppin:
causes shortness of breath. ' ‘

1 to 2 packs/day for 10 years

cterial blood pressure and blood samples were obtained from a
: cannula in the right brachial artery.

2art rate was obtained from the EKG (CMS)‘

1tient had never ridden a bicycle prior to the test.
\TIONS: Patient terminated exercise after 50 seconds at 75 watts

Hue to |
bf 123 ¥

|leg fatigue and shortness of breath". She reached a heart rate

There ws
(lactic)
t/hich t}
Arterial
with exe

-

INTERPR

Il 02/m+n (55% of predicted maximum*).
was 54.7 L/min

insufficiency.

3/min (70% of predicted maximum) with an oxygen uptake of-811
Her minute ventilation, at 75 wattg
which is 118% of the previously measured MVV (MVV = 46.2).
1S no evidence of exercise induced bronchospasm. A metabolic
acidosis developed during the exercise, but the work rate at

le anaerobic threshold ‘was reached could not be determined.

. oxygenation improved and blood pressure increased appropriately
2rcise. There were no changes in the EKG to suggest coronary

Y

normal o
cngage i

'without

NEL :nk

-
Y02 na

s *VO2 at

\ETATION: This patient's aerobic capacity is lels than predicted ‘
lue to ventilatory impairment. She should not [be expected to

n sustained activities requiring more than 9.?jml 0o /1ain/kg**
developing ventilatory mechanical difficultiei._ g ' '

. Q"\
Aol
1{C Voo litsomano _ -
: ?éﬁfé? Leathg}man, Ph.D./J. %. Kylstra, M.D.
« = 48-0.37 x age (ml/kg/min). = ‘ l
60% QEmax/bbdy weight.

- AR2 :

See -opposite side for numerical data and references.

'7/67-




3
H

/88 - = -

3
i

BlPa ..
130/7%.
35
:f‘\__ﬂ

140/75

- 165/85

" (mmHg)

A1
74311

pHa "™
7.43
7.39

7

\
J

Pagz
mnig
88
101
10L
105

(

j

PaCoO
{mmHg
40
37
35
37

RE
‘meq/L

-2.2

R
1.08
1.21

1.31

7™ V02 . R,
.» STPD/mdn) | {VCC2/VOy)
158
371
587
8ll

/S

N

Vco%min
171
449
701

1063

(L, BTPS/min) (mL,£TPs> (beaig/min)KmL,STPD
66
85
103
123

419
564
746
912

54,7

25.9
39.6

4

- f
+ !

“(wat
Rest

50
75
100
125
150
175
200
250

in)

" NORMAL VALUES

602 (mi/rin) = { . + 5.8 Wt (kg)
4+ 10.1 work (watts) ’

002 max (L/min) =
males: 4.2 - 0.032 age (yrs)
females: 2.6 - 0.014 age (yrs)

HR max = 210 - 0.65 age (yrs)

Activity ﬁoz(ml/min/kg)
Driving car , . 9.0
Walking on level - 10.5
House painting ~ 10.5
Volleyball " 10.6
Sweeping floors 11.0

‘Making beds 11.7
Automobilé repair . 12.6
Danciﬁg (foxtrot) 13.3

Bicycling on level 15.1 -

Golfing ) 16.3
Weeding . ) V 17.7 .
Tennis : | | 20.8 5§  .
Chopping wood 23.0
' Basketball | 24.0
Digging .  28.0
REFERENCES

Consolazio, C. F., Johnson, R. E., Pecora,

L. J. Physiological Measurements of Meta-
bolic Function in Man. pp. 330-331, 439.

" New York, Toronto, London. MecGraw-Hill,1963.

Jones, N. L., Campbell, E. J. M., Edwards,
R. H. T., Robertson, D. G. Clinical Exer-
cise Testing. pp. 34, 202. Philadelphia,
London, Toronto. W. B. Saunders Co. 1975.

Wasserman, K., Whipp, B. "Exercise Physi-
ology in Health and Disease', Am. Bev. Resp.
Dis., 112:219 -~ 249, 1975.
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PATIEVT SMITH EVELYN
THEIGHT y 65. WEIGHT
o | ‘

- DETERVMINATION

FORCED EXP VOL,LC(FEV1)
TIMED VG Z1SEC, (FEVI %)
vAX MID FLOW, L/SEC
{PEAK FLOW, L/MIN

MAX BR CAP,L/MIN (MVV)

RESPIRATORY RATE (F)
VENTIL>L/MIN (VE)
TIDAL. VOL,vL C(VT)
02 UPT.sML/MIN (V02)
VENT EQUIV L/igevL

INSP CAPACITY,L (CIC)
EXP RES$RVE,L CERW)
CALC VCs L .

FUNC RES VOL»L CFRC)
TOT LING CAP,L (TLO)
RESI'D VOL,L C(RW)
(RV/TLC) X 100, %

HE MIX TIME,vIN

DLCO» ML/MIN/MYM HG

MEAY OF o.
SAL TZMAN~==~==~ MPDC--~
COOFP GO@D
N 68242

LH
BEFORE ISUPPREL

NPTION=
INTERPRETATION: Severe

VITAL CAPACITY,L (FVC)

FEMALE  AGE S1.
111,

ACTUAL PRED ZPRED

2.68 3.15 8 Se
1.00 2.51. - 4G.

38. 80. 43 .
- «30 3.10 10.
106, 319.  33.
46.2 110.0 42,

22,

8. 45

388.

153.
) S0 5 }<205

1. 64
« 51 »
2.14 3.15 68 .
4,05 :
5. 69 . 4.56 125,
3.54 1.41 251,
62. 31. 200.
3. @ <3

8.1 .23.5 34.

--=-~-5/13/80

obstruction. There 1s absolute as well aé

‘ relative hyperinflation.
, is severely impaired.

4184

Carbon monoxide transfer
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OPINION BY YATES
Deputy Commissioner

HOV 2 11853
Hearing before Deputy Commissioner YATES, in
Hartinsville, Virginia on September 10, 1980.
| This case is before the Commission on application
of the plaintiff, filed MarcH 27, 1980, alleging an occupational
disease (byssinosis) which should be the responsibility of the.

déféndaﬁt. By stipulation, the Commission finds an average weekly

wage of $180.24. The case is defended on the basis of no showing of

an occupational disease, which is the responsibility of this
eﬁploye#;.and further that byssinosis is‘not stageable. The
plaihtiff further contends that she should be awarded specific
disability as provided by Section 65.1-56 (20), Code of Virginia.
Such a staging would provide 300 weeks specific disability. |

| All medical reports, including post-hearing medical
depositions, are made part of this hearing record.

; Dr. Saltzman forthrightly conceded that byssinosis
cannot be detected by radiological procedures and that its
presence can be determined only from exposure to minute. unseen
particles of cotton waste and to symptoms related by the afflicted
individwal. Dr. Saltzman remained unshaken in his deposition
that a person with no exposure to cotton dust with a history of
cigaretﬁe smoking of over ten years (such as this plaintiff)

could exhibit exactly the same symptoms as this plaintiff. Dr.

Saltzman, based on the long exposure of this plaintiff in the
defendant's cotton mill, has drawn the conclusion that the
plaintiff is afflicted with byssinosis. Dr. Saltzman indicated

a staging reached by a determination on a classification known
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" Dr. Saltzman indicatedvthat byssinoéis is the same
chronic bronchitis. He agreed in his deposition that
bronchitis is, in itself, a common disease of life afflicting
ral population without the cotton duét exposure. According
altzman the minute waste matter from the cotton causes thév
itation of the bronchi and produces exactly the same
and results as does a case of bronchitis in a non-cotton ﬁof?er.
zman 1s not able to say that this plaintiff would never have
fflicted ﬁith bronchitis had she never worked in the cotton

that the heavy cigarette smoking over a number of years did

her problems. From the record before us it is apparent

=)

re are several imponderables present in this case from the
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plaintiﬁf's standpoint, such as the history of heavy cigarette
smoking,Fthe lack of a diégnostic staging acceptable to this.
Commissipn, andvthe incidence of chronic bronchitis among non-
cotton wﬁrkers. We cannot accept staging, as presented by this
plaintiff in accordance witﬁ'the determination thereof by symptoms
only, as}binding on this Commission. It is just as likely that
this plaintiff has been afflicted with her bronchial problems ég
an ordinhry disease of life (as aggravated by heavy cigarette
smoking over a period of ﬁeh'or'more years) as that she sustained
her bronghial préblems by pfolonged exposure (thirty-three years)
in tbis émployer's work place. We cannot adopt from several
possibilities, one of which would be favorable to the proponent
thereof,fthe theory most favorable to the proponent. Put ‘
differenfly, every proponent must carry the requisite burden of
proof (the burden of persuasion). It is our finding the plaintiff
has not éarried'the burden of proving an occupational disease which
can be sﬁown to have been caused by exposure at the employer's
business; and which is susceptible to a rating by X-ray as |

mandated by this Commission, See also the case of Janie L. Simpkins

v Dan River, Inc. (I. C. No. 639-117), decided against the

employee ‘on substantially similar facts, said denial affirmed by

the Full Commission on review November 6, 1980. )

This case is dismissed and stricken from the Commission's

hearing docket.
~ !
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Opinion by JAMES

APR 101981

REVIEW before the full Commission at Richmond, Virginia
on March 4, 1981, |
" This case is before the Full Commission for review
of the opinion of November 21, 1980 denying the employee's
claim for an occuvational disease (byssinosis) pursuant to
§65.1-56 (20), Code of Virginia.
The employer operates a garment factory and the claimant,
a fift&-one'year old female, has been emnloyed with this employer
continuously for a period of thirty-four years and continues. It .
is heritestimony that she worked in and around cotton dust'ﬁufihq
this entire time. Approximately ten years ago, she commenced to::
exverience tightness in her chest with wheezing and some diffi-
culty with breathing.
| Section 65;1—49, Code of Virginia, provides, in effect,
that the first communication of the diagnosis of an occupational
diseasé to the employee shall be treated as the hapvening of an
injury by accident. The record discloses that the pafties either
. agreed. that the communication date was August 29, 1979, or that
the claimant alleges this to be the date. The claimant did not

testify to a communication date.
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pational disease pursuant to §65.1-46, Code of Virginia, and said

statute read as

To prevail the claimant must prove she contracted an occu-

follows:

"As used in this Act, unless the

context clearly indicates otherwise,

the term "occupational disease" means

a disease arising out of and in the
course of the employment. No ordinary
disease of life to which the general
public is exposed outside of the employ-
ment shall be compensable, except:

(1)

(2)

When it follows as an incident of
occupational disease as defined in
this title; or

When it is an infectious or contagious
disease contracted in the course of
employment in a hospital or sanitarium
or public health laboratory.

" A disease shall be deemed to arise out of
the employment only if there is apparent

to the rational mind, upon consideration of
all the circumstances:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

A direct causal connection between
the conditions under which work is
performed and the occupational disease,

It can be seen to have followed as a
natural incident of the work as a re-
sult of the exposure occasioned by the
nature of the employment,

It can be fairly traced to the employ-
ment as the proximate cause,

It does not come from a hazard to which: -

workmen would have been equally gxposed
outside of the employment,

It is incidental to the character of the
business and not independent of the re-
lation of employer and employee, and

It must appear to have had its origin in
a risk connected with the employment and
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to have flowed from that source as a
natural consequence, though it need not
have been foreseen or expected before its
contraction."” : )
Further, to receive compensation pursuant to §65.1-56,
Code of;Virginia, subsection 20, the disease must be étaged.
ﬁhe record also reveals that for approximately ten
years iﬁmediately prior to the filing of the application befofe .
this Coﬁmission asserting this claim this claimant had smoked.‘ H
one and;a half to two packs of cigarettes daily.
fhe claimant also must prove that the occupational
disease;alleged was caused by her employment;' If it is Jjust as
probable that the conditions claimed resulted from a non-compen-

sable cause (smoking) as that it resulted from a compensable cause

(cotton dust exposure)} the claim must fail. Van Geuder v. Common-

wealth, 192 Va. 548, 65 S.E. (2d) 565; Tuck v. Roanoke Memorial

Hospital, 52 0.I.C. 261,

In the case of Hansel v. Sherman Textiles, Record No.

80101C2Q7, the Court of Appeals of North Carolina, on October 7,
198b, réversed a holding by the Full Commission of the Industrial
Commission of North Carolina awarding compensation benefits for

the occﬁpational disease of "byssinosis" on the ground, "our

review $f the record reveals that the absence of specific findings
with reépect to the amount of cotton dust ordinarily present in

the area where plaintiff worked leads us to conciude that the
Commission's findings that the plaintiff contracted byssinosis as
a result of her exposure to cotton dust in her employment with )
the defendant is unsupported by sufficient competent evideﬁce."

The physician relied upon by the claimant in that case tegtified

in part, "In her particular case, I don't reallv have any réliable

information as to what the particular fiber was and the extent of
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exposure in various fibers and exposure, and to what was in

the

weed room. It is more difficult to answer that gquestion.

The case before us contains evidence from only two

physicians, both of whom are pulmonary specialists.

Dr. T. Reginald Harris, in a letter of September 17,

1979, said inbpart as follows:

"*** She has significant obstructive
lung disease which is most likely
both byssinosis and emphysema, ***"

In a report from'Dr. H. A. Saltzman dated May 6, 1980,

he 5aid in part as follows:

aﬁd

"The following comments bear on questions
relevant to causes of pulmonary impair-

ment and quantitation of impairment.

Clearly the patient has had an occupational
exposure to cotton dust. Clearly she has
severe chronic obstructive pulmonary dis-

ease. Emphysema and chronic bronchitis are

the evident causes for her chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease. I interpret byssinosis ,
- to be a more likely than not etiologic factor
in the evolution of chronic bronchitis. The
role of cigarette smoking is difficult to
quantitate here. It may well contribute to
bronchitis symptoms. The emphysema can be
regarded presently as reflecting factors

other than cotton dust exposure. Cigarette
- smoking may be a relative causative factor.
There are no nonpulmonary work related problems,
identified in this work~up. The patient does
have other significant medical conditions.
These are enumerated in my note of 5/6/80.

They do not appear to be functionally limiting.
I interpret this patient to have Class III AMA
respiratory 1mpa1rment - 35% whole body. I
interpret half of this impairment to reflect
byssinosis. By conventional criteria, this
patient has sufficiently severe respiratory
impairment to be unable to withstand the rigors
of regular industrial employment.***"

Dr. Salztman was deposed on pages 9 and 10, 11,12,13'

19 of his deposition he said in part as follows:

"BY MR. DOSS:

Q You do not know the level of cotton
dust that Mrs. Smith would have been
exposed to, do YOH?
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QO

No, I have only her subjective de-
scription.

Okay. 'In history taking from Mrs. Smith,

- she also told you she had smoked cigarettes:

Yes,.

And I believe she told you that essentially
she had smoked one to two packs a day
during a ten year interval?

Yes,

* % k % *

Is it not true Doctor that a person .
with emphysema and chronic bronchitis
and who has smoked, but has never been
exposed to cotton dust could exhibit

the same functions and same x-ray findings
that Mrs. Smith exhibited?

Ves, yes."

* * % % %

(Mr. Doss) If Mrs. Smith had come into
see you Doctor, and exhibited the same
symptoms and pulmonary function, same
x-ray findings as were shown on your
examination, minus the history that she
had worked in a textile plant, you would
have diagnosed emphysema, would you not?

I —- I would have to give you a gualified

ves. There wold also have to be a minus
the history of symptomatology associated
with working in a cotton mill specifically,
okay? _ .

But, if you are addressing that to the
symptoms and signs at the time I saw her

at the office, irrespective of that earlier
history, my answer would be yes.

Well, the earlier history being the history
vou took from her? ot

Yes.

So, essentially, when we throw in the
byssinosis component of her pulmonary
problem it is essentially referred to
history of exposure?

Absolutely.
Okay.

History of exposure and symptoms associated
with that exposure..-
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Q Right.

i A To be precise.
Q Meaniné reaction to it?
A Yes."

* %k k * *

i Q Do you know of any wav of grading, staging

or correlating degrees of bv551n051s based
! on radiographic evidence? :

A No."
:Dr. Saltiman also testified that byssinosis is
essent;ally bronchitis caused by cotton dust.  He also agreed
that a diagnosis could not be determined by radiological proCedqgég
nér could the staging of said disease be based upon x-rays as is
normaliy the procedure in silicosis or coal workers pneumoconiosis
! , ‘
cases.- Dr. Saltzman had found that the claimant suffered with
third stage byssinoiss.based upon the "Schillihg Index."™ The
éhysician went on to say the FSchilling Index" is a crude classi-
ficatién of byssinosis which incorporates the initial acute phase
and ex#ends to chronic irreversible phase". The bottom line is
that tﬁe only method of diagnésis is history given by the person
involvéd. In this respect Dr. Saltzman made. it clear that hé had'
no kno&ledge of the cotton dust level where the claimant worked
exceptiby the history from the claimant.
 The Hearing Commissioner denied the claim on the

ground' that the claimant had not carried the burden of proof |
in an bccupational disease which can be shown to have been

caused by exposure in the employer's business and which is

susceotlble to a rating by x-ray as mandated by this Comm1551on.'

He also quoted the case of Janie L. Simpkins v. Dan River, Inc.,
(I.C. No. 639-117) which was decided against the employee on
subst&ntially similar facts by the Full Commission.

, It is readily apparent that these physicians have

| . 193




' found that this claimant suffers with third or fourth stage

by551n051s and also suffers from emphysema and bronchitis all
of whlch are causing the claimant discomfort and disability.
The byssln051s.d1agn051s was made without any first hand know-
ledge as to the extent of claimant's exposure to cotton dust, and
the stading was made based upon the "Schilling Index" which
Dr; Saltzman readily admits is a crude method 1=‘urther, the
lalmant is sufFerlng aoparently from two conditions and oerhaos PRy
- three, one of which is not job related in any form or Fashlon
(emnhYSema) and as stated above, the claimant must prove her
dlsabllng condltlon, or that she has one through three stage
by551nosls, is solely the result of her employment. The evi-
dence does not so prove

;Thls.dec151on is not based on the fact that the gquide-
lines aet by the Commission calls for a determination of the
presenée of byssinosis by radiographic findings as it is apparent
that tﬂis is impossible. Such impossible guidelines cannot take
precedence over the statutory provisions of §65.1- 56 which contalns
no guldellnes.

jWe agree with the Hearing Commissioner that the evidence
Simply;fails to preponderate in proving that this claimant con- -
tracted the occupational disease of (byssinosis - Stage 3)
which arose out of and in the course of her employment.

\ .
Accordingly, the Full Commission finds that the November. :

|
21, 19180 opinion is correct and that decision is hereby

. AFPIRMED.
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.II
THE ERROR ASSIGNED
1) The Industrial Conmj:_ssion erred in holding that the Claimant
had not carried the burden of proving causal connection between the
di:lsease she suffered and her occupation. |
} 2) The Industrial Commission erred in failing to rule that the

claimant ‘had shown aggravation of a pre-existing condition.

|
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